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Application Form

Organization Information
If you would like to complete this application in Word first and copy your answers over later, use the 
following link: Download Application

The evaluation rubric that will be used to score your request is now available here: Download Rubric

Please pay attention to character limits while working on your draft. These limits include spaces.

Organization Name* 
Early Learning Coalition of Pinellas

Proposal Name* 
Please choose a short name to identify this project within the grant portal:

Mobile Family Resource Center

EIN* 
59-3726679

Incorporation Year* 
What year did your organization incorporate? This will be the year listed on your determination letter from the 
Internal Revenue Service.

2000

Organizational Mission Statement* 
What is your organization’s mission statement? This should be no longer than one or two sentences.

Revolutionize early learning to inspire children, engage families, and elevate educators

Unique Entity ID (SAM) 
Please provide your organization's Unique Entity ID number. This is a specific number used by the federal 
government to identify your organization. This is different from a DUNS number, which the federal government no 
longer uses.

If you do not have a Unique Entity ID number, you can create an account on SAM.gov and apply for one here (it is 

https://pinellascf.org/wp-content/uploads/Small-Purchases-Application-ARPA-Nonprofit-Capital-Project-Fund.docx
https://pinellascf.org/wp-content/uploads/Small-Purchases-Rubric-ARPA-Nonprofit-Capital-Project-Fund.pdf
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free and may take 3-4 days for approval): https://sam.gov/content/home

This field is optional as to not stop a qualifying organization from applying. However, a Unique Entity ID number 
will be required if your organization is approved for a grant. Your organization should apply for a number now if it 
does not yet have one.

Character Limit: 12

ZDNFZVC6LCB7

Annual Operating Budget Size* 
Please provide the amount of your annual operating budget, (expenditures only) for your entire organization.

$103,283,249.00

Amount Requested* 
The maximum grant amount is $199,999.

$112,320.00

Parent Non-Profit/Subsidiaries* 
If your organization has a parent non-profit that has multiple subsidiaries, will multiple subsidiaries be applying in 
this process?

Example
Better Tomorrow is the parent non-profit of three organizations. Two of those organizations want to apply in this 
process. Both would select "Yes" on this question.

No

Request Specifics
Organization Programmatic Background* 
Please describe the programming your organization offers to the community and the length of time it has been 
doing so. What does your organization do and how long has it been doing it?

The Early Learning Coalition (ELC) is a private, nonprofit corporation that connects families with affordable 
and accessible early education and school-age programs to ensure young children have the necessary tools 
and resources to succeed in school and life. Understanding that a parent is a child's first teacher, ELC’s Child 
Care Resource and Referral (CCR&R) program is a free resource created in May 2000 to assist families in 
finding high-quality care specific to the household's needs. We provide developmental screenings that are 
conducted and interpreted by ELC's Screening and Intervention Services Department, help parents detect 
possible areas of concern, and identify children who may benefit from Supportive Intervention Services (SIS) 
or other resources or referrals. For families in need of financial support, ELC’s School Readiness (SR) Program 

https://sam.gov/content/home


Julie Mastry Early Learning Coalition of Pinellas County Inc.

Printed On: 1 October 2022 ARPA Nonprofit Capital Project Fund - Small Purchases 4

offers partial scholarships to working families with young children aged from birth to 12 years old requiring 
affordable options for high-quality child care. SR funding pays a portion of childcare costs based on the 
family's income and risk factors. Created in August 2005, Florida's Voluntary Prekindergarten (VPK) is a free 
program to help 4 and 5-year-olds prepare for kindergarten and build the foundation for their educational 
success.

Community Need* 
Please describe the community need that exists for your programming. If you are able to cite quantitative, local 
data, that will strengthen your proposal.

The COVID-19 pandemic has had a significant impact on families searching for high-quality care. Pinellas 
County's early learning success rates remain strong, with 73% of children finishing the Voluntary 
Prekindergarten (VPK) program ready for kindergarten. However, approximately 15% fewer families are 
enrolling in early learning programs than before the pandemic, with access to care listed as the primary 
barrier for many families we serve. 

Families can apply and enroll for Voluntary Prekindergarten (VPK) or School Readiness (SR) programs 
online. Even with 24-hour access to the online portal, there are still significant obstacles to reaching families 
for enrollment. The enrollment process can be cumbersome to many families with technology, language, and 
literacy challenges. Low-income families still access technology at a much lower rate than higher-income 
families, with only 6% having computers at home, and 53% with access to broadband internet, in contrast to 
80% of families with incomes above $30,000. The lack of access to high-tech communication resources in the 
household has become a growing issue, especially during the pandemic, in reaching families who struggle 
financially and remain isolated due to language and literacy barriers.

A lack of child care impacts a parent's financial stability and affects early childhood development. Access to 
care is a top barrier, especially for women returning from the workforce. Nearly 1 in 3 parents in Florida said 
that without child care or preschool, they are concerned that their children are missing out on critical 
learning opportunities in their early years, according to COVIDRelief.org.
Before the COVID-19 pandemic, the CCR&R Community Outreach Team would meet with families at 
partnering agencies to assist with resources and enrollment in north, mid and south county weekly. 
Unfortunately, we have been unable to meet with families due to long-term health and safety guidelines at 
partnering agencies.

Negative Economic Impact on Organization* 
The following question is the keystone of a strong application in this process. If your organization cannot 
demonstrate a negative economic impact from the pandemic, your application will not qualify for committee 
review. If you are uncertain about what constitutes negative economic impact or how to demonstrate it, please 
contact PCF staff for technical assistance.

Describe your organization’s negative economic impact arising from the COVID-19 pandemic. Examples could 
include:

• A reduction in revenue from 2019 to 2020

• Inflationary pressures

• Increases in demand for services that have not been compensated for through new revenue

• The use of reserves for unbudgeted expenses since the onset of the pandemic, and such use of reserves 
has prevented the purchase of capital assets
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• A need for capital assets to offset community need for which your organization does not have the 
resources to purchase due to the negative economic harm from the pandemic

• A need for additional capital assets to adapt operations to accommodate health and safety guidelines by 
the CDC

• Growth in restricted pandemic-related revenue that does not permit capital asset acquisition

You have the option to upload supporting documentation regarding negative economic impact. However, please 
limit your upload to no more than five pages.

Note: If you are applying for both a Small Purchase and Large Project, you may reuse the answer for this question 
PROVIDED THAT the negative economic impact is relevant to both requests. The Large Project Letter of Intent does 
not permit uploads to support the answer to this question.

ELC ALL Funding Race and Ethnicity 21-22 Enrollment numbers.pdf
Inflationary pressures: COVID-19 business closures and inflation severely impacted many working families 
who were already struggling to maintain due to childcare costs, transportation challenges, and high cost of 
living. It has forced many working families into a different socio-economic status. The changes in the number 
of families residing in a single household, along with added economic and technology barriers have had a 
negative impact on ELC’s VPK and SR enrollment. Approximately 10% fewer families are enrolling in early 
learning programs than before the pandemic, with transportation and access to wifi, and other easy-to-use 
technological devices as the main reasons for declines. The negative economic impact on ELC is reduced 
enrollment. This limits our ability to draw down (CRSSA, SR, and ARPA) funding to invest in quality and 
support program implementation. 

A need for capital assets to offset community needs for which your organization does not have the resources 
to purchase due to the negative economic harm from the pandemic. Low enrollment in School Readiness and 
VPK programs is due to a lack of awareness and barriers to enrollment. A Mobile Family Resource Center will 
expand recruitment and registration opportunities, thus increasing enrollment. Pinellas County is, therefore, 
unable to benefit from these additional funds. 

Growth in restricted pandemic-related revenue that does not permit capital asset acquisition. Under the 
CARES Act, CRRSA Grants, $13,260,242 were awarded to 688 childcare providers and $3,786,000 from 
Pinellas County in the 2020/21 fiscal year. In addition, we received an additional $6 million of ARPA funds, 
which would allow us to serve a total of 6,834 children. However, we are currently only serving 5,557 
children, leaving the funding of 1,250 children unable to be utilized.

Proposal Description* 

The American Rescue Plan Act requires a request that is reasonable and proportional to the level of economic 

impact your organization experienced. This means the request you describe below should not be greater than the 

economic harm your organization has suffered.

Please describe your purchase proposal and address the following:

• What will you be purchasing with these funds?

• What is the estimated lifespan of the purchase/improvement?

• How does it address the negative economic harm you described in the previous question?
What will you be purchasing with these funds?
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ELC plans to purchase a van with a vehicle wrapped with information, the location of ELC sites, and contact 
information. 

What is the estimated lifespan of the purchase/improvement? 
10+ years

How does it address the negative economic harm you described in the previous question? 
The Mobile Family Resource Center option would also allow us to reach families where they are! The Mobile 
Family Resource Center will allow us to increase our enrollment access for families with technology and 
transportation barriers. The Mobile Family Resource Center will also include educational resources to 
support families in need of at-home support, and recruitment materials for those interested in early 
childhood education careers. COVID-19 further exacerbated the already growing number of families in 
isolated and impoverished areas, the ‘Mobile Family Resource Center' proposal will help break through the 
disparity barriers of access by bringing the resources to the families where they exist with a laser focus on the 
QCT zones in Pinellas county. 

Van Activities (examples)
Mobile activities for children (Science, Math, Storytime…)
Tech support for providers  - laptop and hotspot, portable scanner… to assist providers with portal actions - 
specifically helpful during APU and Contracting periods
Activity packets (Early Literacy/Math) for parent/child activities to take home?
Literacy- book giveaways

Guiding Principles - Client Impact* 
The American Rescue Plan Act, which provides the funding for this grant program, aims to ensure an equitable 
recovery from the COVID-19 pandemic. The term “equity” is defined as:

The consistent and systematic fair, just, and impartial treatment of all individuals, including individuals who 
belong to underserved communities that have been denied such treatment, such as Black, Latino, and 
Indigenous and Native American persons, Asian Americans and Pacific Islanders and other persons of color; 
members of religious minorities; lesbian, gay, bisexual, transgender, and queer (LGBTQ+) persons; persons with 
disabilities; persons who live in rural areas; and persons otherwise adversely affected by persistent poverty or 
inequality.

One of the guiding principles of this fund is that it will apply a lens of equity to ensure the needs of specified 
priority populations are met.

Will this purchase benefit the community members defined above that have experienced disproportionate 
negative impacts from the COVID-19 pandemic? If so, how?

Yes, our Mobile Family Resource Center will enable us to reach Black, Latino, Indigenous, and Native 
American persons, Asian Americans and Pacific Islanders, and other persons of color; members of religious 
minorities; lesbian, gay, bisexual, transgender, and queer (LGBTQ+) persons; persons with disabilities to 
provide resources to people affected by persistent poverty or inequality and unable to access our various 
locations or online resources. The Mobile Resource Center will bring services to the communities with 
disparity barriers of access that COVID-19 further exacerbated. 
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Number Served* 
How many people will directly benefit from this capital purchase annually?

3500

Unduplicated vs. Duplicated* 
Is the number indicated above duplicated or unduplicated?
Duplicated: A client is counted each time they access services
Unduplicated: A client is counted once, regardless of the number of times they access services

Example: ABC Food Bank operates two mobile food pantries, one in Clearwater and one in St. Petersburg. Taylor, a 
Pinellas County resident, goes to both food pantries. If ABC Food Bank counts Taylor's visit TWICE, it is duplicated. 
If ABC Food Bank counts Taylor's visit ONCE, it is unduplicated.

Other (Explanation Required Below)

Other (Explanation Required) 
If you selected "Other" in the previous question, please explain how your organization determined the number of 
clients that will benefit from the proposed capital purchase.

ELC served 16,228 children during the 2021/22 program. The Mobile Family Resource Center, will 
significantly increase the ELC's ability to provide a venue for them to access services within their community, 
targeting families residing in the QCT zones. This will increase the number of children that the coalition will 
be able to reach.

The American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) prioritizes organizations that either have headquarters or carry out the 
majority of their operations inside Qualified Census Tracts (QCTs). QCTs are a standard method of identifying 
communities with a large proportion of low-income residents. The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban 
Development determines what areas qualify as QCT. 

To assess if your organization serves or is headquartered in a QCT, use the following link: 
https://www.huduser.gov/portal/sadda/sadda_qct.html

In the top right-hand corner, choose the state of Florida and Pinellas County. Then on the left-hand side of the 
screen, click the box next to “Color QCT Qualified Tracts.” The QCT zones are denoted in purple. You can also map 
your address by adding it into the address box at the top to see if your location is inside the zones.

https://www.huduser.gov/portal/sadda/sadda_qct.html
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Below, please provide the location of your operations and the location of your headquarters, if different.

Headquarters Location* 
Please provide your organization's headquarters address as it appears on your Sunbiz account. To check your 
Sunbiz registration, you may search here: https://dos.myflorida.com/sunbiz/search/

2536 Countryside Blvd - STE 500  Clearwater, FL  33763

QCT Determination - Headquarters* 
Is this organization headquartered in a QCT?

https://dos.myflorida.com/sunbiz/search/
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No

Purchase Location* 
Where will the majority of the activities related to the purchase(s) take place?

Examples

• If you are proposing the purchase of a van that will deliver to multiple areas within Pinellas County, 
specifically mention what areas those are.

• If your purchase enables remote access to your services, such as telehealth, provide geographical data 
around where the majority of your clients reside (presuming they will access your services from their 
residence).

The Mobile Family Resource Center will be available to families throughout Pinellas County.  We will be 
represented in all communities and all zip code area locations weekly. Our area of focus will be within QCT 
specified zones such as Tarpon Springs, Rainbow Village/GRAYDI Ridgecrest area, Clearwater, South St. 
Petersburg, and the High Point area in Clearwater. 

QCT Determination - Purchase* 
Does this organization's proposed purchase benefit residents of QCTs?

No

Community Connection
This section aims to capture general demographic data about your organization and to see how you engage 
with and represent the community you serve. PCF has generalized the demographic data questions more than 
it has in other processes because of the public nature of this process. PCF understands that identity disclosure 
can be a sensitive matter, and wants to respect your organization's board and staff. If your organization feels 
comfortable sharing more detailed demographic information, it may do so in the "Community Representation 
and Connection" section.

Community Representation and Connection* 
Describe how your organization is representative of, or has authentic connections to, the community your 
proposal seeks to serve. You can list other community-based organizations that work on programming with you 
and/or list examples of your work within this community.

The Early Learning Coalition has a deep connection to the families and child care providers we support.  We 
work alongside families and early learning educators to adopt innovative solutions to meet the needs of our 
community.  ELC regularly conducts focus group discussions with parents and surveys for child care 
providers to drive future goals for success. Our agency has an extremely diverse staff and are intentional with 
the men and women we hire, so they can reflect the community we serve.
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ELC staff members serve on a variety of committees in different disciplines according to the specialty areas of 
their work.  The following list below represents local organizations, agencies, and committees we serve on or 
collaborate with:
Florida Association for Infant Mental Health (FAIMH)
Concerned Organization for Quality Education for Black Students (COQEBS)
Thrive by Five Pinellas (TB5P)
Kinship Collaborative
Help Me Grow Program (HMGP)
Community Action Stops Abuse (CASA), Child welfare leadership
Tampa Bay Association for Black Journalists (TBABJ)
Juvenile Welfare Board- Family Services Initiative (JWB-FSI)
Family Enrichment Services (FES)
Florida Association for the Education of Young Children
Florida Grade-Level Reading Campaign
Home Instruction for Parents of Preschool Youngsters (HIPPY)
Infant Toddler Network
Joint Child Care Advisory Committee
Pinellas Campaign for Grade-Level Reading
Pinellas Chapter of FLAEYC
Pinellas Early Educators United Association (PEEUA)
Preschool Kindergarten Partnership
QCI Touchpoint (United Way Suncoast)
SPC ECE Advisory Committee
Tampa Bay Breastfeeding Taskforce
Pinellas County Schools
 West Central Early Steps
 Directions for Living
USF St. Petersburg
Florida Diagnostic and Learning Resources System (FDLRS)
Foundation for Healthy St. Petersburg
 Healthy Start Coalition
St. Petersburg College
CareerSource Pinellas
Department of Financial Services
Hope Villages of America (RCS Pinellas)
Pinellas County Dept. of Health
 211 Tampa Bay Cares
The chart below represents the staff demographics of the ELC of Pinellas:
White - 62%
Black - 22%
Asian - 2%
2 or more - 2%
Hispanic - 12%
Female - 95%
Male - 5%

Leadership Demographics - Board Membership* 
Do your board members consider themselves a member of one or more of the following populations? Check all 
that apply. 
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• BIPOC defined as Black, Latino, and Indigenous and Native American persons, Asian Americans and Pacific 
Islanders and other persons of color

• LGBTQ+ (Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual, Transgender, Queer+)

• Neurodiverse/physically disabled

BIPOC
LGBTQ+
Neurodiverse/physically disabled

Leadership Demographics - Executive Level Leadership Team* 
Does your executive leadership team consider themselves a member of one or more of the following populations? 
Check all that apply.

• BIPOC defined as Black, Latino, and Indigenous and Native American persons, Asian Americans and Pacific 
Islanders and other persons of color

• LGBTQ+ (Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual, Transgender, Queer+)

• Neurodiverse/physically disabled

If your organization is volunteer-run and does not have an executive leadership team, please select "Not 
applicable."

BIPOC

Leadership Demographics - CEO/Executive Director* 
Does your CEO/Executive Director consider themselves a member of one or more of the following populations? 
Check all that apply. 

• BIPOC defined as Black, Latino, and Indigenous and Native American persons, Asian Americans and Pacific 
Islanders and other persons of color

• LGBTQ+ defined as Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual, Transgender, Queer+

• Neurodiverse/physically disabled

If your organization is volunteer-run and does not have an executive leader, please select "Not applicable."

None of the above
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Proposal Costs
Purchase Estimates/Bids* 

You must combine all bids/estimates into one file.
Attach current verifiable bids, estimates, or price lists [from your potential vendor(s)]. Please ensure there is a date 
listed or when you obtained these estimates/bids, as they must be from within the past sixty (60) days.

• If your purchase is BELOW $75,000, you must upload TWO verifiable bids or estimates for the proposed 
purchases.

• If your purchase is EQUAL TO or MORE THAN $75,000, you must upload THREE verifiable bids or estimates 
for your proposed purchases.

This can be as simple as screenshots from Amazon or Best Buy (though PCF does not endorse or recommend any 
specific vendor) or may be from specialized vendors that sell your proposed purchase. If you have concerns 
regarding bids or estimates, please reach out to PCF staff.

ELC Quotes for PCF.pdf

Sole Source* 
In some cases, a proposed small purchase is only available from a single vendor, and as such, only one 
bid/estimate can be uploaded. If this is the case for your organization, please explain in the field below.
Otherwise, write "N/A" below.

In attempting to obtain 3 quotes for the build-out of the vans, most companies were not willing to quote 
without either an exact vehicle or details of the interior of the vehicle.  2 vendors required a $500 meeting to 
quote the build-out. The two additional companies I contacted with no success were: Bill Pennington Custom 
Design builds, and High Quality Custom Design.  Each of these two vendors explained that the precision of 
their build-out were unique to the vehicle they worked with.

Related Parties* 
Are any of the contractors/vendors that have provided bids/estimates a related party to your organization?

Examples of Related Parties

• A board member that owns the contracting company that provided a bid

• The relative of a director, officer, or executive team member owns a company that provided an estimate

• The CEO of the applying organization has a financial interest in the construction company providing a bid

If yes, identify the vendor and describe the relationship.
If no, write "No related parties below."

No related parties below.
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Budget Summary* 

Please use THIS TEMPLATE to indicate costs and any cash match your organization may have for the 
proposed purchases. Note: this spreadsheet will automatically round numbers to make it easier to read for 
committee members.
Please note that indirect costs are not permitted for small purchases.

If you have additional notes to add to your budget summary, you may do so in the text box below.

Budget-Template-Small-Capital-Purchases (1) (1).xlsx

Other Funding Sources* 
Please describe any other funding not already mentioned that your organization has applied for or obtained for 
this purchase.

This includes but is not limited to Community Block Development Grants (CBDG), local government grants 
(including Tourist Development Council funding), foundation grants, and private donors (you do not need to 
disclose donor identities but simply indicate the amount raised for this purchase). This includes any matching 
grants or in-kind contributions you may have obtained.

Please be sure these other funding sources are represented in the "Applicant Match" column in the budget 
summary uploaded above.
This includes but is not limited to Community Block Development Grants (CBDG), local government grants 
(including Tourist Development Council funding), foundation grants, and private donors (you do not need to 
disclose donor identities but simply indicate the amount raised for this purchase). This includes any matching 
grants or in-kind contributions you may have obtained.

The Office of Early Learning will provide the additional funding for ancillary items listed in the budget.

Changes in Operating Costs* 
Please answer this question based on the descriptions below:

• If this project increases ongoing operational costs (programmatic, operating maintenance or other costs), 
how will you compensate for the difference?

• If this purchase decreases ongoing operating costs, how will it do so?

• If this purchase does not affect operating costs, please note so below.

Estimated Annual Change in Operating Costs:
Fuel - $2000
Maintenance Agreement - $2400
Insurance - $2100   (will secure policy if awarded grant funds)

Total: $6500

https://pinellascf.org/wp-content/uploads/Budget-Template-Small-Capital-Purchases.xlsx
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Organization Documentation

Please reach out to PCF staff if you have trouble uploading the files below. We are 
able to assist with file conversion and file compression.

Organization Budget* 
Please upload your most recent, board-approved organizational budget for this fiscal year. PDF and Excel 
documents are accepted.

Budget FY 22-23.pdf

Board of Directors List* 
Please upload your Board of Directors list.

Excel, Word, and PDF file formats are accepted.

22-23 ELC BOD Member List.docx

IRS Form 990* 
Please upload a PDF copy of your most recently submitted IRS Form 990.

If Form 990 from your most recent fiscal year is delayed or you have received an extension, please explain in the 
text space below. You may also explain if you don't have a Form 990 due to organization type. You should still 
upload the most recent publicly available 990.

If you file a Form 990-EZ and do not have anything to attach, please note so below.

Only PDF files are permitted.

Form 990 -  June 30, 2021 (2).pdf

Most Recent Financial Statements* 
Upload a PDF version of your most recent financial statements. If you have audited financial statements, please 
upload the most recently conducted audit. If you do not have a recent audit, please explain why.

ELC Pinellas - 2021 FS.pdf
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Insurance Requirements
Evidence of Insurance Coverage* 
Grantees of the ARPA Nonprofit Capital Project Fund will be required to maintain appropriate insurance related to 
your operations and this purchase. PCF will determine whether this coverage is appropriate.

Please upload evidence of insurance.

If your organization does not have evidence of insurance coverage, please provide an explanation as to why.

General Liability 1-24-22 (4).pdf
Stahl Insurance will amend our policy to include the Van with the specifications outlined in the grant 
application, naming Pinellas Community Foundation as an additional insured.

Insurance Requirement* 
If you are awarded a contract from the ARPA Nonprofit Capital Project Fund, you will be required to list Pinellas 
Community Foundation as an additional insured through your general liability insurance or other appropriate 
coverages for the duration of the contract. If you would like to check with your insurance carrier on how to do this, 
here is the information about PCF you will need:

Pinellas Community Foundation
17755 US Highway 19 N
Suite 150
Clearwater, FL 33764
727-531-0058

Please check the box below to indicate that you understand and will be able to comply with this requirement if you 
are awarded a contract.

PCF will not ask for a certificate naming us as additional insured until the contracting stage.

Yes, I understand and will comply with this requirement if awarded a contract.

Post-Grant Requirements
Reporting Requirements Acknowledgment* 
Grantees will be required to submit a pre-award agreement within two weeks of receiving an award notice. In 
addition, grantees will be required to submit a report within 30 days after the purchase is completed.

Financial information justifying all expenditures will also need to be provided. This includes but is not limited to:

• Invoices

• Canceled checks

• Credit card statements, along with a record of paying the credit card.

If you have any questions, please contact Rose Cervantes, ARPA Program Officer at rcervantes@pinellascf.org.

mailto:rcervantes@pinellascf.org
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Yes, I agree to submit this grant agreement and impact report within the specified timeframes.

Additional Information
Budget Summary 

NO LONGER USED, REPLACED IN APP WITH UPLOAD FIELD INCLUDED

Please use THIS TEMPLATE to indicate costs and any cash match your organization may have for the 
proposed purchases.
Please note that indirect costs are not permitted for small purchases.

If you have additional notes to add to your budget summary, you may do so in the text box below.

Additional Upload 
If you have something to share, you can upload it here in PDF format.

Anything else to share? 
Is there anything else that you would like Pinellas Community Foundation to know or other information your 
organization would like to share that isn't addressed elsewhere in this application?

Brief Project Descriptor 
Please briefly describe this organization's request.

https://pinellascf.org/wp-content/uploads/ARPA-Budget-Template-Small-Purchases.xlsx
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File Attachment Summary
Applicant File Uploads
•   ELC ALL Funding Race and Ethnicity 21-22 Enrollment numbers.pdf
•   ELC Quotes for PCF.pdf
•   Budget-Template-Small-Capital-Purchases (1) (1).xlsx
•   Budget FY 22-23.pdf
•   22-23 ELC BOD Member List.docx
•   Form 990 -  June 30, 2021 (2).pdf
•   ELC Pinellas - 2021 FS.pdf
•   General Liability 1-24-22 (4).pdf
 



Hispanic Hispanic
Non-
Hispanic

Non-
Hispanic

Child Race 2+
Active 
Child Count Family Count

Active Child 
Count

Family 
Count

Asian 22 21 264 248
Black 400 296 5,526 3,734
White 1,501 1,269 5,439 4,627
2 or More Races 218 180 1,305 1,055
Prefer not to answer 424 374 345 315
Us Indian/Alaskan,Prefer not to answer
Grand Total 2,565 2,080 12,879 9,724

Annual Report ALL Funding Race and Ethnicity 21-22

Prefer Not to 
Answer

Prefer Not to 
Answer Grand Total

Grand 
Total

Active Child 
Count Family Count

Active Child 
Count

Family 
Count

35 35 321 302
281 262 6,207 4,183
498 486 7,438 6,270
114 113 1,637 1,325
653 587 1,422 1,250

1 1 1 1
1,582 1,464 17,026 12,881

19-20 20-21 21-22 22-23YTDVPK Enroll 18-19
Total Serve 6,537 6,207 5,233 5,613 4,766
Utilization 74% 69% 58% 63% 54%

19-20 20-21 21-22 As of 9-7-22SR Enrollm 18-19
Average En 6,122 6,518 6,736 5,907 5,557

6, ch000ilWe just received an additional $6m of ARPA which would allow us to serve a total of 6834 dren. 
We have funding to serve an additional 1250 children, funding that is not being utilized. 
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ARPA Nonprofit Capital Project Fund – Small Purchases Budget
Early Learning Coalition of Pinellas
Mobile Family Resource Center

A B C D E F G H
Line
Item Item (Description)

Price Per
Item

Quantity of
Item

Purchase
Total

ARPA Grant Funds
Requested Applicant  Match Funding Total

1 Mercedes 2023 Sprinter 170 $61,425 1 $ 61,425 $ 61,425 $ - $ 61,425
WB Cargo Diesel Van $ - $ - $ - $ -

2 Custom Coach Creations $45,395 1 $ 45,395 $ 45,395 $ - $ 45,395
$ - $ - $ - $ -

3 Discount Signs & Wraps $ 5,500.00 1 $ 5,500 $ 5,500 $ - $ 5,500
$ - $ - $ - $ - $ -

4 ELC Branded Event Tent $ 1,000.00 1 $ 1,000 $ - $ 1,000 $ 1,000
5 Branded chairs $ 30.00 10 $ 300 $ - $ 300 $ 300
6 HP Laptops $ 1,395.00 3 $ 4,185 $ - $ 4,185 $ 4,185
7 Epson Portable Scanners $ 180.00 3 $ 540 $ - $ 540 $ 540
8 HP Printer $ 180.00 1 $ 180 $ - $ 180 $ 180
9 ELC Information Table $ 56.00 2 $ 112 $ - $ 112 $ 112

$ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
$ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
$ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
$ - $ - $ - $ - $ -

TOTAL 23 $ 118,637 $ 112,320 $ 6,317 $ 118,637

THE "PURCHASE TOTAL" AND "FUNDING TOTAL" COLUMN SHOULD BE EQUAL
Columns E, H, and the "TOTAL" row are locked and cannot be edited

Key
Item (Description) Brief name/description of the purchase requested
Price per item The individual price of one unit of the proposed purchase
Quantity of Item The number of units of the proposed purchase you are requested
Purchase Total Total purchase cost of the proposed line item (quantity multipled by price)

ARPA Grant Funds Requested The amount of ARPA funding requested for this line item
Applicant Match The amount (if any) that you, the applicant, are contributing towards the purchase of the line item
Funding Total Total funding for proposed line item (ARPA grant request plus applicant match)



Early Learning Coalition of Pinellas County, Inc.
FY 2022/2023

Approved Budget

FY 2022/23           
Total

REVENUE

DEL - School Readiness Funding 38,685,160$          
DEL - School Readiness Funding -  Restitution 12,979$                 
DEL - School Readiness Funding -  $72M Expansion Funding 6,753,716$            
DEL - Quality Performance Differential Funding 1,647,986$            
DEL - Gold Seal Differential Funding 2,594,609$            
DEL -  PDG Mental Health Support Funding 10,196$                 
DEL - CRRSA Funding 3,281,340$            
DEL - ARPA Funding 27,328,778$          
DEL - ESSER Funding 43,529$                 
DEL - SR Program Assessment Funding 86,375$                 
DEL - Voluntary Prekindergarten Funding 16,305,298$          
DEL - VPK $15/hr Wage Incentive Funding 2,876,871$            
DEL - VPK Program Assessment Funding 171,515$               
UF - Flamingo Early Learning  Funding 48,000$                 
JWB -  SR Match Program Funding 1,000,000$            
JWB - SRPlus Program Funding 1,656,392$            
JWB -  SR Plus Child Screening Funding 166,584$               
JWB -  Program Assessment Funding 313,921$               
PCSB - Teen Parent Funding 300,000$               

TOTAL REVENUE 103,283,249$       

EXPENDITURES

Direct Child Care Expenses 62,996,079$          

Provider Grants  (CRRSA/ARPA) 30,693,247$          

Administrative, Support, & Program Expenses

Salary & Fringe Benefits 7,553,296$            
Professional Services - Accounting & Auditing 31,900$                 
Professional Services - Information Technology 65,940$                 
Professional Services - Document Storage 9,600$                   
Professional Services - Legal Services 8,697$                   
Professional Services - Temporary Employment 37,652$                 
Professional Services - Printing and Reproduction 22,467$                 
Professional Services - Repairs and Maintenance 3,152$                   
Professional Services -Other 142,090$               
Occupancy 510,130$               
Postage, Freight, and Delivery Services 6,550$                   
Rentals -  Office Equipment 50,138$                 
Office Supplies and Office Expense Items 36,160$                 
Communications - Phone & Internet 63,058$                 
Insurance and Surety Bonds 64,948$                 
Equipment 35,581$                 
Quality and Classroom materials 324,167$               
Teacher Scholarships  and Other Education Opportunities 94,992$                 
Teacher & Provider Stipends 298,595$               
Travel 64,659$                 
Bank Fees 7,467$                   
Application Software and Licenses and Support 80,700$                 
Web Service/hosting, support, back-up services and maintenance 51,294$                 
Dues and Subscriptions 30,690$                 

Admin Support & Program Expenses Total 9,593,923$            

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 103,283,249$       



FY 2022-23 Board of Directors

Name Representation
VACANT, Chair Private Sector and Appointed by the Governor

Elliott Stern, Acting Chair Private Sector Business 
Dr. Ricardo Davis, 
Treasurer Private Sector Business 

OPEN, Secretary Private Sector Business 

Faith Bornoff Pinellas County License Board, PCLB

Steven Meier CareerSource Pinellas 

Jennifer Mekler Pinellas County School District 

Celeste Fernandez Pinellas County Department of Children and Families 

Harry Fogle West Central Early Steps All Children’s Hospital

Ray Hensley Pinellas County Health Department

Fidel Johnson Private Sector Business 

Susan Johnson Private Sector Business 

Jeff Kostiha Private Sector Business 

Jackie Lang Representative of Private For-Profit Child Care Providers

Eric Lynn Private Sector Business 

Sandra Hopkins Representative Faith Based Child Care Providers

Dr. Susan Weber St. Petersburg College 

Comm. Janet Long Board of County Commissioners

Michael Mikurak Juvenile Welfare Board 

Karl Nurse Private Sector Business 

Victor Lucas Private Sector Business 

Trevor Pettiford Private Sector Business 

LaShonda Watson-Clark Pinellas Head Start 

Jack Geller Private Sector Business 

Amy Darby Private Sector Business  

Captain Scott Matthews Advisory Member – Pinellas County Sheriff Office 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 

To the Board of Directors of 
Early Learning Coalition of Pinellas County, Inc. 
Clearwater, Florida 

Report on the Financial Statements 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Early Learning Coalition of 
Pinellas County, Inc. (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the statements of financial 
position as of June 30, 2021 and 2020, and the related statements of activities and 
changes in net assets, functional expenses, and cash flows for the years then ended, and 
the related notes to the financial statements. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial 
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal 
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors’ Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our 
audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted 
in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained 
in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United 
States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors 
consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also 
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as 
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our audit opinion. 

Opinion 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material 
respects, the financial position of Early Learning Coalition of Pinellas County, Inc. as of 
June 30, 2021 and 2020, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years 
then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America. 
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Other Matters 
Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole. The 
accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance, as required by 
Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, 
and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, State of Florida Chapter 10.650, Rules of the Auditor General, 
and special audit guidance provided by Division of Early Learning is presented for purposes of additional 
analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of 
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used 
to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied 
in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and 
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the 
financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the 
information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated January 27, 
2022, on our consideration of Early Learning Coalition of Pinellas County, Inc.’s internal control over 
financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, 
and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to 
provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Early Learning Coalition of Pinellas County, Inc.’s internal control 
over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance 
with Government Auditing Standards in considering Early Learning Coalition of Pinellas County, Inc.’s 
internal control over financial reporting and compliance.  
 
Moss, Krusick & Associates, LLC 
 
Winter Park, Florida 
January 27, 2022 
 



Early Learning Coalition of Pinellas County, Inc.

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

June 30, 2021 and 2020

2021 2020
Current assets:

Cash 4,561,921$     3,975,542$     
Grants receivable 2,084,499       5,294,670       
Due from providers 1,022,223       2,201,896       
Prepaid expenses 43,593            77,682            

Total current assets 7,712,236       11,549,790     

Property and equipment, net 791                 6,894              

Total assets 7,713,027$     11,556,684$   

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable 6,628,050$     10,056,421$   
Accrued liabilities 477,213          579,441          
Due to providers -                  357,366          
Deferred revenue 90,747            55,812            

Total current liabilities 7,196,010       11,049,040     

Deferred rent - non current 99,031            128,704          

Total liabilities 7,295,041       11,177,744     

Net assets:
Without donor restrictions 417,986          378,940          

Total liabilities and net assets 7,713,027$     11,556,684$   

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

ASSETS

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Early Learning Coalition of Pinellas County, Inc.

STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020

2021 2020
REVENUES AND SUPPORT

Federal and state grants 66,362,409$     57,350,020$    
Local grants 857,592            1,048,885        
Matching funds 1,468,300         1,135,747        
Other income 43,691              42,884             

Total revenues and support 68,731,992       59,577,536      

EXPENSES
Program services:

School Readiness 53,072,880       40,987,939      
Voluntary Pre-Kindergarten 11,214,043       14,290,034      
Other 2,568,187         2,347,572        

Total program services 66,855,110       57,625,545      

Support services:
Management and general 1,837,836         1,892,693        

Total expenses 68,692,946       59,518,238      

 Changes in net assets 39,046              59,298             

NET ASSETS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 378,940            319,642           

NET ASSETS AT END OF YEAR 417,986$          378,940$         

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Early Learning Coalition of Pinellas County, Inc.

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

Year Ended June 30, 2021

Support Services
School Voluntary Pre- Management

Readiness Kindergarten Other Total and General Total 

Direct provider support 48,641,746$          11,199,550$          2,256,015$           62,097,311$           -$                        62,097,311$            
Salaries and benefits 3,926,191              14,493                   171,818                4,112,502                1,453,214               5,565,716                
Occupancy 254,152                  -                         -                        254,152                   134,226                  388,378                   
Contractual services 72,151                    -                         11,010                   83,161                     113,695                  196,856                   
Scholarships 23,485                    -                         78,278                   101,763                   -                          101,763                   
Office supplies and expense 61,272                    -                         11,725                   72,997                     21,280                    94,277                     
Communications 40,942                    -                         644                        41,586                     17,025                    58,611                     
Professional fees -                          -                         3,557                     3,557                       39,045                    42,602                     
Insurance -                          -                         -                        -                           39,483                    39,483                     
Dues and subscriptions 17,278                    -                         -                        17,278                     14,625                    31,903                     
Printing and postage 25,118                    -                         685                        25,803                     1,554                      27,357                     
Advertising -                          -                         21,512                   21,512                     -                          21,512                     
Travel and conferences 5,235                      -                         1,813                     7,048                       3,169                      10,217                     
Other expenses 3,511                      -                         5,027                     8,538                       520                         9,058                       
Depreciation -                          -                         6,103                     6,103                       -                          6,103                       
Repairs and maintenance 1,799                      -                         -                        1,799                       -                          1,799                       

Total expenses 53,072,880$          11,214,043$          2,568,187$           66,855,110$           1,837,836$             68,692,946$            

Program Services

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Early Learning Coalition of Pinellas County, Inc.

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

Year Ended June 30, 2020

Support Services
School Voluntary Pre- Management

Readiness Kindergarten Other Total and General Total

Direct provider support 36,196,721$          14,261,990$          1,845,332$           52,304,043$           -$                        52,304,043$            
Salaries and benefits 3,949,778              19,576                   158,296                4,127,650                1,400,723               5,528,373                
Office supplies and expense 260,791                  7,606                     160,224                428,621                   28,009                    456,630                   
Occupancy 220,853                  -                         -                        220,853                   171,200                  392,053                   
Contractual services 75,968                    322                        72,395                   148,685                   145,309                  293,994                   
Scholarships 181,791                  -                         58,350                   240,141                   -                          240,141                   
Communications 33,998                    -                         650                        34,648                     34,774                    69,422                     
Professional fees 8,500                      -                         -                        8,500                       45,000                    53,500                     
Travel and conferences 30,665                    45                          1,212                     31,922                     11,475                    43,397                     
Insurance -                          -                         -                        -                           38,662                    38,662                     
Advertising -                          -                         36,426                   36,426                     -                          36,426                     
Dues and subscriptions 9,907                      -                         899                        10,806                     15,844                    26,650                     
Other expenses 9,500                      -                         7,263                     16,763                     99                           16,862                     
Printing and postage 5,935                      495                        -                        6,430                       1,598                      8,028                       
Depreciation -                          -                         6,525                     6,525                       -                          6,525                       
Repairs and maintenance 3,532                      -                         -                        3,532                       -                          3,532                       

Total expenses 40,987,939$          14,290,034$          2,347,572$           57,625,545$           1,892,693$             59,518,238$            

Program Services

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Early Learning Coalition of Pinellas County, Inc.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended June 30, 2021 and 2020

2021 2020
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Changes in net assets 39,046$           59,298$           
Adjustments to reconcile changes in net assets to

net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation 6,103               6,525               
(Increase) decrease in assets:

Grants receivable 3,210,171        (3,554,374)      
Due from providers 1,179,673        89,088             
Prepaid expenses 34,089             (36,716)           

Increase (decrease) in liabilities:
Accounts payable (3,428,371)      5,175,886        
Accrued liabilities (102,228)         110,457           
Due to providers (357,366)         (121,383)         
Deferred rent (29,673)           (18,303)           
Deferred revenue 34,935             55,812             

Net cash provided by operating activities 586,379           1,766,290        

NET INCREASE IN CASH 586,379           1,766,290        

CASH AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 3,975,542        2,209,252        

CASH AT END OF YEAR 4,561,921$      3,975,542$      

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Early Learning Coalition of Pinellas County, Inc. 
 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

June 30, 2021 
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NOTE A – NATURE OF ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 
POLICIES 

 
1. Organization and nature of activities 

 The Early Learning Coalition of Pinellas County, Inc. (the "Coalition") is a Florida not-for-
profit corporation which began operations July 1, 2001. The Coalition is responsible for the 
development, implementation, and administrative oversight of publicly funded school 
readiness programs and voluntary pre-kindergarten programs in Pinellas County. The 
Coalition's mission is to revolutionize early learning to inspire children, engage families, and 
elevate educators. The governing body of the Coalition is the Board of Directors (the 
“Board”). 

 The Coalition contracted with Children’s Forum, Inc. for the Child Care WAGE$ Florida 
Program (WAGE$), subrecipient, for the year ended June 30, 2020. WAGE$ administers 
funds to supplement the salaries of low to moderate wage earner childcare providers in 
Pinellas County, Florida and is designed to increase stability and improve child care quality 
by reducing turnover and encouraging continued education of child care practitioners. 

2. Revenue recognition 

In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards board (FASB) issued Accounting 
Standards Update (ASU) 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (ASC 606), 
which prescribes a single, common revenue standard to replace most existing revenue 
recognition guidance, including most industry-specific requirements. The standard outlines a 
five-step model whereby revenue is recognized as performance obligations within a contract 
are satisfied.  

In June 2018, the FASB issued ASU No. 2018-08, Not-for-Profit Entities: Clarifying the 
Scope and the Accounting Guidance for Contributions Received and Contributions Made 
(ASC 958), which clarifies how transactions should be accounted for as contributions 
(nonreciprocal transactions) or exchange transactions and whether a contribution is 
conditional. 

The Coalition adopted ASC 606 and ASC 958 and all related amendments effective July 1, 
2019. The adoption of the new standards had no significant impact on the Coalition’s 
financial statements.  

Revenue from government grants is recorded when earned, which is generally when the 
allowable costs of the specific grant provisions have been incurred or the performance of 
services rendered. Such revenue is subject to audit by the grantor and, if the examination 
results in a deficiency of allowable expenses, the Coalition will be required to refund any 
deficiencies. Management is of the opinion that all monies recognized as revenue have been 
earned as of June 30, 2021 and 2020. These amounts are reflected as revenue without 
donor restrictions if received and expended in the same year. 

Revenue from program fees are recognized when the earnings process is substantially 
complete, and goods have been delivered or services performed. Revenues from program 
fees are recognized in the year to which they relate. As part of the Voluntary Pre-
Kindergarten grants, the Coalition receives advances on revenue which are to be repaid to 
the state. 

 



Early Learning Coalition of Pinellas County, Inc. 
 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

June 30, 2021 
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NOTE A – NATURE OF ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 
POLICIES (continued) 

 
3. Functional allocation of expenses 

The cost of providing the various programs and supporting services activities have been 
summarized on a functional basis in the statement of functional expenses. The statements of 
functional expenses present the natural classification detail of expenses by function. 
Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated among the programs and supporting services 
benefited. See Note I for additional information. 

4. Use of estimates 

 The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results 
could differ from those estimates. 

5. Basis of accounting and financial statement presentation 

 The accompanying financial statements and accompanying schedules have been prepared 
on the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. The Coalition reports information regarding its 
financial position and activities according to two classes of net assets as follows: 

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions 

Net assets without donor restrictions are available for use at the discretion of the Board 
and/or management for general operating purposes. From time to time, the Board 
designates a portion of these net assets for specific purposes which makes them unavailable 
for use at management’s discretion.  

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions 

Net assets with donor restrictions consist of assets whose use is limited by donor-imposed 
restrictions, time and/or purpose restrictions.  

The Coalition reports gifts of cash and other assets as revenue with donor restrictions if they 
are received with donor stipulations that limit the use of the donated assets. When a donor 
restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is 
accomplished, the net assets are reclassified as net assets without donor restriction and 
reported in the statement of activities as net assets released from restrictions. 

Some net assets with donor restrictions include a stipulation that assets provided be 
maintained permanently (perpetual in nature) while permitting the Coalition to expend the 
income generated by the assets in accordance with the provisions of additional donor 
imposed stipulations or a Board approved spending policy.  

6. Grants receivable 

 Grants receivable are due from federal and state governmental agencies and recorded when 
services are provided. The Coalition’s receivables as of June 30, 2021 and 2020, are due in 
less than one year and management believes that all receivables are fully collectible. 

 



Early Learning Coalition of Pinellas County, Inc. 
 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

June 30, 2021 
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NOTE A – NATURE OF ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 
POLICIES (continued) 

 
7. Concentration of credit risk 

Financial instruments, which potentially expose the Coalition to concentrations of credit risk, 
consist principally of cash bank deposits. The Coalition’s policy is to place its cash 
investments with high quality financial institutions. The Coalition maintains its cash in 
institutions which are Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation insured, which provide 
coverage on balances up to $250,000 per depositor per institution. At June 30, 2021 and 
2020, the Coalition had $4,315,787 and $3,741,342, respectively, in excess of federally 
insured limits. The Coalition has not experienced any losses in such accounts and does not 
believe it is exposed to any significant credit risk on cash and cash equivalents.  

8. Donated services, materials, and facilities 

 Donated services, materials, and facilities that are measurable are recorded as support at 
their fair market values at the date of receipt by the Coalition. A corresponding amount is 
recorded as expense or property and equipment. Donated services and facilities aggregating 
$4,000 and $5,000, for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively, are included 
in both revenues and expenses in the statements of activities and changes in net assets.  

9. Property and equipment 

Property and equipment are carried at cost if purchased, or at estimated fair value if acquired 
by gift. The Coalition capitalizes expenditures in excess of $5,000 and an estimated useful 
life greater than one year. Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method over the 
estimated useful lives of the respective assets, which range from 3 to 5 years. Property 
acquired with governmental funds is considered to be owned by the Coalition while used in 
the program for which it was purchased or in future authorized programs; however, its 
disposition and the ownership of any proceeds are subject to applicable regulations. 

10. Income taxes 

 The Coalition is exempt from income tax under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue 
Code; therefore, no income tax provision is required in the accompanying financial 
statements.  

  Management has analyzed its various federal and state filing positions and believes that its 
income tax filing positions and deductions are well documented and supported, and that no 
accruals for tax liabilities are necessary. Therefore, no reserves for uncertain income tax 
positions have been recorded. The Coalition remains subject to examination by the Internal 
Revenue Service for the years ended June 30, 2019 through June 30, 2021. 

11. Deferred revenue 

Deferred revenue represents grant revenues collected but not yet earned as of June 30, 
2021 and 2020. Revenues from grant proceeds are not recognized until expended. 

 

 
 



Early Learning Coalition of Pinellas County, Inc. 
 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

June 30, 2021 
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NOTE A – NATURE OF ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 
POLICIES (continued) 

 
12. Deferred rent 

For lease agreements that provide for escalating rent payments or rent-free occupancy 
periods, the Coalition recognizes rent expense on a straight-line basis over the non-
cancelable lease term and option renewal periods where failure to exercise such options 
would result in an economic penalty in such amount that renewal appears, at the inception of 
the lease, to be reasonably assured. The lease term commences on the date that the 
Coalition takes possession of or controls the physical use of the property. Deferred rent is 
included on the Statements of Financial Position. 

13. Advertising expense 

Advertising is expensed as incurred. Advertising expense for the years ended June 30, 2021 
and 2020, amounted to $21,512 and $36,426, respectively. 

14. Recent accounting pronouncements 

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, Leases, that requires lessees to put most 
leases on their balance sheets and recognize expenses on their income statements in a 
manner similar to today’s capital lease accounting. The guidance also eliminates today’s real 
estate specific provisions for all entities. For lessors, the guidance modifies the classification 
criteria for accounting for sales-type and direct financing leases. The new guidance is 
effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2021. Early adoption is permitted. The 
Coalition is evaluating the potential effects ASU 2016-02 will have on its financial statements. 

15. Subsequent events 

Management has evaluated the effect subsequent events would have on the accompanying 
financial statements through the date these financial statements were available to be issued 
on January 27, 2022. 
 
 

NOTE B – ECONOMIC DEPENDENCE 
 

The activities of the Coalition are conducted in Pinellas County, Florida and are supported by 
funding provided by government agencies. The Coalition receives approximately 97% and 96% 
of funding from federal and state grants passed through Division of Early Learning for the years 
ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively. A significant decline in funding to the Coalition 
could adversely affect the operating results of the Coalition. The continuance of state and federal 
funding is subject to annual legislative budgetary review. 

 
 
NOTE C – RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
 

As mandated by Chapter 1002, Part VI School Readiness; and 1002.83 Early Learning 
Coalitions, a certain member of the Coalition’s Board of Directors is an executive for a 
government agency that the Coalition is contracted with, considering them a related party. In 
order to achieve its objectives, the Coalition enters into related party transactions with this 
organization in which the Board Member is actively involved. The related party member is the 
Assistant Superintendent for Elementary & Special Education of Pinellas County Schools 
(“Pinellas County School Board”).  
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NOTE C – RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 
 

During the years ended June 30, the Coalition made payments to and had an outstanding 
payable balance to Pinellas County School Board as follows: 

    2021    2020  
 Payments made: 
  School Readiness $ 833,639 $ 9,305 
  Voluntary Pre-Kindergarten   3,790  7,274 
  Occupancy   29,216  29,216 

 Total payments   $ 866,645 $ 45,795 

 Payables at year end: $ 1,404 $ 2,724 
 

Effective July 1, 2010, the Florida Legislature mandated that all board members of Coalitions 
shall be considered eligible to vote on all matters, subject to the restrictions for related party 
transactions imposed on all board members by the By-Laws of the Coalition for related party 
transactions. 
 
On July 1, 2017, the Coalition entered into an agreement with the Pinellas County School Board 
to continue to serve teenage parents through teen parent program services known as Pinellas 
Teenage Parenting Program. The original agreement expired on June 30, 2018 and was 
renewed annually through June 30, 2022.  
 
On July 2, 2020, the Pinellas County School Board, through the Coalition, applied for and was 
awarded $833,639 for the Rising Kindergarten Summer Program (the “Program”). The Program 
provided a summer program for rising kindergarten students based on practices that produce the 
greatest gains and is targeted to support students with the most significant academic need. 

 
 
NOTE D – 401K PLAN 

 
The Coalition has a 401(k) retirement plan that provides a contribution of 5% of each employee's 
salary and will also match the employee's contribution up to 5% of salary. The contribution was 
$343,285 and $302,795 for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively. 

 
 
NOTE E – MATCH FROM LOCAL RESOURCES 
 

From the funds in General Appropriations Act, Specific Appropriation 85, $30,000,000 is 
provided to expand the provision of services to low income families at or below 200 percent of 
the federal poverty level as long as the income does not exceed 85 percent of the state median 
income. To be eligible for funding, the Coalition must match the state funds on a dollar-for-dollar 
basis and the local match must comply with federal Child Care and Development Block Grant 
matching requirements. During the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, the local matching 
requirements were met.  
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NOTE F – PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 
 

Property and equipment and accumulated depreciation at June 30, are summarized as follows:  

        2021   2020  

    Computers and equipment $ 130,135 $ 132,291 
    Furniture and fixtures                        23,206   23,206  
                                                        153,341 155,497 
    Less: accumulated depreciation         (152,550)  (148,603) 
    Property and equipment, net            $ 791  $ 6,894  

Depreciation expense for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, was $6,103 and $6,525, 
respectively.  

 
 
NOTE G – COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 
 

Operating leases 

The Coalition leases office space under various non-cancelable operating lease agreements 
that expire through September 2026. For financial statement reporting purposes, the 
Coalition records lease expenses over the lease term on a straight-line basis. Future 
minimum lease commitments are as follows: 

  Years ending June 30,  
 2022 $ 464,476 
 2023  518,258 
 2024  165,059 
 2025  160,235 
 2026  202,035 
 Thereafter  243,836 
  $ 1,753,899 

Rent expense for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, was $388,378 and $392,053, 
respectively.  
 

Related party 

During June 2017, the Coalition entered into a facility lease with the Pinellas County School 
Board, a related party, for the use of space within Pinellas Technical College – St. 
Petersburg. The lease expires November 2023 and includes an option to renew for an 
additional two years.  

During May 2021, the Coalition into a second facility lease with the Pinellas County School 
Board, for the use of space within Pinellas Technical College – St. Petersburg. The lease 
commenced on September 1, 2021, expires in five years, and includes an option to renew for 
an additional two years. 

See payments made to related parties at Note C. 
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NOTE G – COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (continued) 
 

Federal and state appropriated funds 

Amounts received from federal and state agencies are subject to audit and adjustment at the 
discretion of those entities. If expenditures are disallowed as a result of these audits, the 
claims for reimbursement would be a liability of the Coalition. 

Litigation 

In the normal course of conducting its operations, the Coalition occasionally becomes party 
to various legal actions and proceedings. As of the financial statement report date, 
management is not aware of any claims or legal action or any pending or threatening 
litigation, claims or assessments against the Coalition. 

 
 
NOTE H – CALCULATION OF MAXIMUM ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 
 

The following tables compare administrative expenses incurred to expenses subject to the 
maximum administrative expenses allowed by Division Early Learning (DEL) for the School 
Readiness and Voluntary Pre-Kindergarten programs for the years ended June 30: 

  School     Voluntary  
  Readiness  Pre-Kindergarten  Total  

2021:  

  Total administrative expenses subject 
   to 5% and 4% maximum  $ 1,451,915 $ 385,893 $ 1,837,808 

  Maximum 5% and 4% administrative  
   expenses allowable per DEL   2,026,660  447,847  2,474,507 

  Administrative expenses  
   (under) maximum $ (574,745) $ (61,954) $ (66,699) 
 

2020: 

  Total administrative expenses subject 
   to 5% and 4% maximum  $ 1,479,737 $ 412,955 $ 1,892,692 

  Maximum 5% and 4% administrative  
   expenses allowable per DEL   1,930,886  570,480  2,501,366 

  Administrative expenses  
   (under) maximum $ (451,149) $ (157,525) $ (608,674) 
 
 
NOTE I – FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES  

 
The financial statements report certain categories of expenses that are attributed to more than 
one program or supporting function. Therefore, expenses require allocation on a reasonable 
basis that is consistently applied. The expenses that are allocated include occupancy, which is 
allocated on a square footage basis, as well as salaries and benefits, professional fees, 
insurance, travel and conferences, repairs and maintenance, office supplies and expense, and 
other expenses, which are allocated on the basis of estimates of time and effort. 
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NOTE J – SCHEDULE OF FEDERAL AWARDS AND STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE 
 

The schedule of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance follows the 
accrual basis of accounting. Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America require recognition of the expenditures in the period incurred and recognition of the 
corresponding reimbursement once the amount is earned and collection is certain. 
Reconciliations of the schedule of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance 
to federal and state expenditures included in the statements of activities and changes in net 
assets is as follows:  
 
 Federal expenditures – schedule of federal awards and state 

 financial assistance $ 54,764,155 
 
 Less: refunds / adjustments remitted back to DEL  (1,708)  
 
 Total federal expenditures  54,762,447  
 
 Total state expenditures – schedule of federal awards and state  
 financial assistance   11,601,383 
 
 Less: refunds / adjustments remitted back to DEL  (1,421)  
 
 Total state expenditures  11,599,962  
 
 Federal and state expenditures – statements of activities 

 and changes in net assets  $ 66,362,409  
 
 

NOTE K – RISK AND UNCERTAINTY 
 
On January 30, 2020, the World Health Organization ("WHO") announced a global health 
emergency because of a new strain of coronavirus originating in Wuhan, China (the "COVID-19 
outbreak") and the risks to the international community as the virus spreads globally beyond its 
point of origin. In March 2020, the WHO classified the COVID-19 outbreak as a pandemic, based 
on the rapid increase in exposure globally.  
 
The full impact of the COVID-19 outbreak continues to evolve as of the date of this report. As 
such, it is uncertain as to the full magnitude that the pandemic will have on the Coalition’s 
financial condition, liquidity, and future results of operations. Management is actively monitoring 
the global situation. 
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NOTE L – LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY OF RESOURCES 
 
The Coalition’s financial assets available within one year of the statements of financial position 
date for general expenditures are as follows: 

 2021  2020 
      Cash  $ 4,561,921  $ 3,975,542 
Grants receivable  2,084,499   5,294,670 
Due from providers  1,022,223   2,201,896 
      Total financial assets available within one year  7,668,643   11,472,108 
      
Less:      

Accounts payable  (6,628,050)   (10,056,421) 
Accrued liabilities  (477,213)   (579,441) 
Due to providers  -   (357,366) 
Deferred revenue  (90,747)         (55,812) 

      Total amounts unavailable for general expenditures  
within one year  (7,196,010)

  
(11,049,040) 

      
Total financial assets available to management 

for general expenditure within one year $ 472,633 
 

$ 423,068 
 
As part of the Coalition’s liquidity management, it has a policy to structure its financial assets to 
be available as its general expenditures, liabilities, and other obligations as they come due. The 
Coalition receives approximately 97% and 96% of funding from federal and state grants passed 
through DEL for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively, which are on a 
reimbursable basis. Throughout the year, the Coalition receives advances and reimbursements 
each month to cover incurred expenses.  
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS 

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

To the Board of Directors of 
Early Learning Coalition of Pinellas County, Inc. 
Clearwater, Florida 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, 
the financial statements of the Early Learning Coalition of Pinellas County, Inc. (the 
“Coalition”) (a nonprofit organization) which comprise the statement of financial position 
as of June 30, 2021, and the related statements of activities and changes in net assets, 
functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the 
financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated January 27, 2022. 

Internal Control over Financial Reporting 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the 
Coalition’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for 
designing the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose 
of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Coalition’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not 
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Coalition’s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not 
allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material 
weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that 
there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial 
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant 
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less 
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those 
charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control 
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, 
during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to 
be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been 
identified. 
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Compliance and Other Matters 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Coalition’s financial statements are free from 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an 
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed 
no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing 
Standards.  

Purpose of this Report 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Coalition’s internal 
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the Coalition’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, 
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Moss, Krusick & Associates, LLC 

Winter Park, Florida 
January 27, 2022 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR 
FEDERAL PROGRAM AND STATE PROJECT AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 

COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE AND CHAPTER 10.650, 
RULES OF THE AUDITOR GENERAL 

To the Board of Directors of 
Early Learning Coalition of Pinellas County, Inc. 
Clearwater, Florida 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program and State Project 
We have audited the Early Learning Coalition of Pinellas County, Inc.’s (the “Coalition”) 
compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in the OMB Compliance 
Supplement, and the requirements described in the Department of Financial Services’ 
State Projects Compliance Supplement, and special audit guidance provided by Division 
of Early Learning that could have a direct and material effect on each of the Coalition’s 
major federal programs and state projects for the year ended June 30, 2021. The 
Coalition’s major federal programs and state projects are identified in the summary of 
auditors’ results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 

Management’s Responsibility 
Management is responsible for compliance with federal and state statutes, regulations, 
and the terms and conditions of its federal awards and state financial assistance 
applicable to its federal programs and state projects. 

Auditors’ Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the Coalition’s major 
federal programs and state projects based on our audit of the types of compliance 
requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards 
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code 
of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, 
and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance), State of Florida Chapter 
10.650, Rules of the Auditor General, and special guidance provided by Division of Early 
Learning. Those standards, the Uniform Guidance, and State of Florida Chapter 10.650, 
Rules of the Auditor General, require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major 
federal program or state project occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, 
evidence about the Coalition’s compliance with those requirements and performing such 
other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.  

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for 
each major federal program and state project. However, our audit does not provide a legal 
determination of the Coalition’s compliance. 
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program and State Project 
In our opinion, the Coalition complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements 
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs and state 
projects for the year ended June 30, 2021. 

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 
Management of the Coalition is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over 
compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our 
audit of compliance, we considered the Coalition’s internal control over compliance with the types of 
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program and state project to 
determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and state project and to test and report on internal 
control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, and State of Florida Chapter 10.650, 
Rules of the Auditor General, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Coalition’s internal control over compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
federal program or state project on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is 
a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a 
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal 
program or state project will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant 
deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program or state project that is 
less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit 
attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance 
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal 
control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may 
exist that have not been identified. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing 
of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform 
Guidance, and State of Florida Chapter 10.650, Rules of the Auditor General. Accordingly, this report is not 
suitable for any other purpose. 
 
Moss, Krusick & Associates, LLC 
 
Winter Park, Florida 
January 27, 2022 
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Section I – Summary of Auditors’ Results 

 
 Financial Statements 
  
  1. Type of auditors’ report issued:    Unmodified 
 
  2. Internal control over financial reporting:      

  a. Material weakness(es) identified?    No 
  b. Significant deficiencies identified that are not 
    considered to be material weaknesses?   None reported 
 
3. Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?  No 
 
Federal Awards 
 
1. Type of auditors’ report issued on compliance for 
    major programs:    Unmodified 
 
2. Internal control over major programs: 
     a. Material weakness(es) identified?     No 
     b. Significant deficiencies identified that are not 
          considered to be material weaknesses?   None reported 
 
3. Audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported 
    in accordance with the Uniform Guidance?   No 
 
4. Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A 

and Type B programs    $1,642,925 
  

5. Auditee qualified as a low-risk auditee?    Yes 
  

Identification of major programs:      
  
Name of Federal Program                     ALN 
Temporary Assistance for Needy Families                  93.558 
Child Care and Development Block Grant           93.575 
Child Care Mandatory and Matching Funds of 
  of the Child Care and Development Fund               93.596 
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Section I – Summary of Auditors’ Results (continued) 

 
State Financial Assistance 
 
1. Type of auditors’ report issued on compliance for 
    major projects:    Unmodified 
 
2. Internal control over major projects: 
     a. Material weakness(es) identified?     No 
     b. Significant deficiencies identified that are not 
          considered to be material weaknesses?   None reported 
 
3. Audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported 
    in accordance with the Florida Single Audit Act and 
     Chapter 10.650, Rules of the Auditor General    No 
 
4. Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A 

and Type B projects    $750,000 
 

Identification of major projects: 
 
Name of State Projects                      CSFA Number 
Voluntary Pre-Kindergarten Education Program          48.108 

 
 
Section II – Enhanced Fields System (EFS Mod) monthly reconciliation 
 

1. EFS Mod reconciled monthly      Yes  

2. Processes in place to identify and correct errors during  
monthly reconciliations to EFS Mod     Yes 

3. Coalition’s financial records reconcile and agree to EFS Mod  
records as of program year ended June 30, 2021    Yes  

4. Audit work papers documenting verification of reconciliations  
available to DEL staff     Yes  

 
Section III – Financial Statement Findings 
 
 No current year findings (no corrective action plan or management letter required) 
 
Section IV – Federal Award and State Projects Findings and Questioned Costs 
 

None (there are no items related to Federal Awards and State financial assistance required to 
be reported in the management letter, therefore no management letter issued) 

 
Section V – Status of Prior Year Audit Findings 
 

There were no prior year audit findings 



Early Learning Coalition of Pinellas County, Inc.

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS AND STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE

Year Ended June 30, 2021

ALN Award
CSFA Number Expenditures

Federal Awards:
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services
Passed through Division of Early Learning

Child Care and Development Block Grant 93.575 EL411 20,896,658$       

Child Care and Development Block Grant - CARES Act 93.575 EL411 13,552,961         

Child Care Mandatory and Matching Funds
   of the Child Care and Development Fund 93.596 EL411 8,460,640           

Total Child Care Cluster 42,910,259         

Temporary Assistance for Needy Families 93.558 EL411 11,588,058         

Preschool Development Grant 93.434 EL411 237,654              

Social Services Block Grant 93.667 EL411 28,184                

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards 54,764,155$       

State Financial Assistance:
State of Florida Department of Education
Passed through Division of Early Learning

Voluntary Pre-Kindergarten Education Program 48.108 EL411 11,583,355$       

Voluntary Pre-Kindergarten Education Program
   Outreach & Awareness 48.108 OA411 18,028                

Total Expenditures of State Financial Assistance 11,601,383$       

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance 66,365,538$       

Basis of Presentation

                                               
Indirect Cost Rates

 Grantor/Program Title

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance is presented on the
accrual basis of accounting. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title
2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance), State of Florida Chapter 10.650, Rules of the Auditor General , 
and the Department of Financial Services' State Projects Compliance Supplement . Therefore, some amounts
presented in this schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the basic financial
statements.

The Coalition has elected to not use the 10% de minimis indirect cost rate for its federal programs and state projects for
the year ended June 30, 2021. The indirect cost rates used on the Coalition's federal programs and state projects are
determined by the relevant federal or state agency. 

See independent auditors' report.
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SDM-715 (Ed. 08/17)

IMPORTANT NOTICE
FLORIDA

TO OBTAIN INFORMATION OR TO MAKE A COMPLAINT

This notice is to advise you that should any complaints arise regarding this insurance, you may contact
Great American Insurance Companies at the fol lowing address:

Great American Insurance Group
Administrative Off ices
301 East 4th Street
Cincinnati, OH 45202

Or you may call the fol lowing to l l - f ree telephone number to present inquiries, obtain information about
coverage or to gain assistance in resolving complaints:

1-800-972-3008

I f you (a) need the assistance o f the governmental agency that regulates insurance; or (b) have a complaint
you have been unable to resolve with your insurer you may contact the Department o f Financial Services
by mail, telephone or email:

Florida Department o f Financial Services
200 East Gaines Street
Tallahassee, FL 32399 - 0 300
(850) 4 1 3 - 3 1 0 0

Consumer Hotline: 1 -877-MY-FL-CFO (1 - 877 - 693 - 5236 )

Complaints can be filed electronically at www.f ldfs.com

ATTACH THIS NOTICE TO YOUR POLICY

This notice is f o r information only and does not become a part or condition o f the attached document.
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SDM-1014 (Ed. 12/18)

ELECTRONICALLY DELIVERED POLICIES

ADVISORY NOTICE TO POLICYHOLDERS

This Notice does not fo rm part o f your policy. No coverage is provided by this Notice nor can it be
construed to replace any provision o f your policy. You should read your policy and review your
Declarations page f o r complete information on the coverages you are provided. I f there is any confl ict
between the Policy and this Notice, THE PROVISIONS OF THE POLICY SHALL PREVAIL.

Carefully read your policy, including the endorsements attached to your policy.

This Notice provides information concerning a method by which to obtain copies o f your electronically
delivered policy, including policies posted to our website, i f applicable. You may obtain paper or
electronic copies o f the policy by contacting your agent and requesting a copy.
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The Moment of Truth: 
Reporting a Claim

365 days a year,

7 days a week,

  24 hours a day.

Specialty Human Services

Online
MyGreatAmerican.gaig.com

Email
SpecialtyHumanServicesClaims@gaig.com

Mail
Great American Insurance Group
Specialty Human Services Division
Claims Department, P.O. Box 1997
Cincinnati, OH 45202

Online portal may not be available at all times. Policies are underwritten by Great 
American Insurance Company, Great American Assurance Company, Great American 
Alliance Insurance Company, Great American Insurance Company of New York and 
Great American Spirit Insurance Company, authorized insurers in all 50 states and 
DC. © 2018 Great American Insurance Company, 301 E. Fourth St., Cincinnati, OH 
45202. All rights reserved. 5611-SHS (12/18). 

Phone
Toll Free: 888-317-4828 
Fax: 888-307-3180
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I L 7 0 0 1 ( E d . 1 0 0 7 )

P o l i c y N o . -
R e n ew a l O f -

POLICY COMMON DECLARATIONS

NAMED INSURED

AND ADDRESS:

I N RETURN FOR PAYMENT OF THE AGENT 'S NAME AND ADDRESS:
PREMIUM, AND SUBJECT TO ALL
TERMS OF TH I S PO L I C Y , WE AGREE
WITH YOU TO PROVIDE THE INSURANCE
AS STATED I N T H I S PO L I C Y .

I n s u r a n c e i s a f f o r d e d b y t h e C omp a n y n ame d b e l o w , a C a p i t a l S t o c k C o r p o r a t i o n :

POL ICY PER IOD : F r o m T o
1 2 : 0 1 A . M . S t a n d a r d T i m e a t t h e a d d r e s s o f t h e Named I n s u r e d

T h i s p o l i c y c o n s i s t s o f t h e f o l l o w i n g C o v e r a g e P a r t s f o r w h i c h a p r e m i u m i s
i n d i c a t e d . T h i s p r e m i u m may b e s u b j e c t t o a d j u s t m e n t .

Prem ium

C o m m e r c i a l P r o p e r t y $
C o m m e r c i a l G e n e r a l L i a b i l i t y $
C o m m e r c i a l C r i m e a n d F i d e l i t y $
C o m m e r c i a l I n l a n d M a r i n e $
C o m m e r c i a l E q u i p m e n t B r e a k d o w n $
C o m m e r c i a l A u t o $
C o m m e r c i a l U m b r e l l a $

$
$
$
$
$
$
$

TOTAL $

FORMS AND ENDORSEMENTS a p p l i c a b l e POL ICY ALTERNATE MA IL ING ADDRESS:
t o a l l C o v e r a g e P a r t s a n d mad e p a r t
o f t h i s P o l i c y a t t i m e o f i s s u e a r e
l i s t e d o n t h e a t t a c h e d F o r m s a n d
E n d o r s e m e n t s S c h e d u l e
I L 8 8 0 1 ( 1 1 / 8 5 ) .

MAC 5-30-60-11 08
MAC 5-30-60-11 07

EARLY LEARNING COALITION OF
PINELLAS COUNTY, INC.
2536 COUNTRYSIDE BLVD.STE 500
CLEARWATER, FL 33763

STAHL AND ASSOCIATES INS
110 CARILLON PKWY
ST PETERSBURG FL 33716

GREAT AMERICAN ASSURANCE COMPANY

01/24/2022 01/24/2023

10,395.00

1,101.00

SHF 12/20/2021

11,496.00
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FORMS AND ENDORSEMENTS SCHEDULE

I t i s h e r e b y u n d e r s t o o d a n d a g r e e d t h e f o l l o w i n g f o r m s a n d e n d o r s e m e n t s a r e
a t t a c h e d t o a n d a r e a p a r t o f t h i s p o l i c y :

D a t e A d d e d *
o r

F o r m a n d E d i t i o n ST D a t e D e l e t e d F o r m D e s c r i p t i o n

1 .

2 .

3 .

4 .

5 .

6 .

7 .

8 .

9 .

1 0 .

1 1 .

1 2 .

1 3 .

1 4 .

1 5 .

1 6 .

1 7 .

1 8 .

1 9 .

2 0 .

2 1 .

2 2 .

* I f n o t a t i n c e p t i o n

I L 8 8 0 1 ( E d . 1 1 / 8 5 ) PRO ( P a g e o f )

IL0017 11/98 FL COMMON POLICY CONDITIONS

IL0021 09/08 FL NUCLEAR ENERGY LIAB EXCL ENDT-BROAD

IL0952 01/15 FL CAP ON LOSSES CERT ACTS OF TERROR

IL7001 10/07 FL BUSINESSPRO POLICY COMMON DEC

IL7069 03/16 FL EXCLUSION - ASBESTOS

IL7273 08/08 FL LOSS PREVENTION SERVICES

IL7324 07/21 FL ECONOMIC AND TRADE SANCTIONS CLAUSE

IL7368 01/20 FL DISCLOS PURSUANT TERR RISK INS ACT

IL7268 09/09 FL IN WITNESS CLAUSE

1 1

* S9 * 12/20/2021 * MAC-5306011-08-02 GREAT AMERICAN ASSURANCE CO
*D/B* 939701959 378604



Copyright, ISO Properties, Inc., 1998
IL 00 17 (Ed. 11/98) XS (Page 1 o f 2)

IL 00 17
(Ed. 11 98)

COMMON POLICY CONDITIONS

All Coverage Parts included in this Policy are subject to the fol lowing conditions.

A. Cancellation

1. The f i rst Named Insured shown in the
Declarations may cancel this Policy by
mailing or delivering to us advance written
notice o f cancellation.

2. We may cancel this Policy by mailing or
delivering to the f i rst Named Insured w r i t -
ten notice o f cancellation at least:

a. 10 days before the effect ive date o f
cancellation i f we cancel f o r nonpay-
ment o f premium; or

b. 30 days before the effect ive date o f
cancellation i f we cancel f o r any other
reason.

3. We will mail or deliver our notice to the
f i rst Named Insured's last mailing address
known to us.

4. Notice o f cancellation will state the e f f e c -
tive date o f cancellation. The policy period
will end on that date.

5. I f this Policy is cancelled, we will send the
f i rst Named Insured any premium refund
due. If we cancel, the refund will be pro
rata. I f the f i rst Named Insured cancels,
the refund may be less than pro rata. The
cancellation will be effect ive even i f we
have not made or of fered a refund.

6. I f notice is mailed, p roo f o f mailing will be
sufficient p roo f o f notice.

B. Changes

This Policy contains all the agreements be -
tween you and us concerning the insurance
afforded. The f i rst Named Insured shown in
the Declarations is authorized to make
changes in the terms o f this Policy with our
consent. This policy's terms can be amended
or waived only by endorsement issued by us
and made a part o f this Policy.

C. Examination of Your Books and Records

We may examine and audit your books and
records as they relate to this Policy at any
time during the policy period and up to three
years afterward.

D. Inspections and Surveys

1. We have the right to:

a. make inspections and surveys at any
time;

b. give you reports on the conditions we
find; and

c. recommend changes.

2. We are not obligated to make any inspec-
tions, surveys, reports or recommenda-
tions and any such actions we do under-
take relate only to insurability and the p r e -
miums to be charged. We do not make
safety inspections. We do not undertake
to perform the duty o f any person or
organization to provide f o r the health or
safety o f workers or the public. And we
do not warrant that conditions:

a. are safe or healthful; or

b. comply with laws, regulations, codes
or standards.

3. Paragraphs 1. and 2. o f this condition ap -
ply not only to us, but also to any rating,
advisory, rate service or similar organiza-
tion which makes insurance inspections,
surveys, reports or recommendations.

4. Paragraph 2. o f this condition does not
apply to any inspections, surveys, reports
or recommendations we may make relative
to certification, under state or municipal
statutes, ordinances or regulations, o f
boilers, pressure vessels or elevators.

* S9 * 12/20/2021 * MAC-5306011-08-02 GREAT AMERICAN ASSURANCE CO
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E. Premiums

The f i rst Named Insured shown in the Dec -
larations:

1. is responsible f o r the payment o f all p r e -
miums; and

2. will be the payee f o r any return premiums
we pay.

F. Transfer of Your Rights and Duties Under
this Policy

Your rights and duties under this Policy may
not be transferred without our written con -

sent except in the case o f death o f an in -
dividual named insured.

I f you die, your rights and duties will be
transferred to your legal representative but
only while acting within the scope o f duties as
your legal representative. Until your legal r e -
presentative is appointed, anyone having
proper temporary custody o f your property
will have your rights and duties but only with
respect to that property.

* S9 * 12/20/2021 * MAC-5306011-08-02 GREAT AMERICAN ASSURANCE CO
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THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

NUCLEAR ENERGY LIABILITY EXCLUSION ENDORSEMENT
(Broad Form)

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL AUTOMOBILE COVERAGE PART
COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
FARM COVERAGE PART
LIQUOR LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
MEDICAL PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
OWNERS AND CONTRACTORS PROTECTIVE LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
POLLUTION LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
PRODUCTS/COMPLETED OPERATIONS LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
RAILROAD PROTECTIVE LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
UNDERGROUND STORAGE TANK POLICY

1. The insurance does not apply:

A. Under any Liability Coverage, to "bodily i n -
jury" or "property damage":

(1) with respect to which an "insured" un -
der the Policy is also an insured under
a nuclear energy liability policy issued
by Nuclear Energy Liability Insurance
Association, Mutual Atomic Energy L i -
ability Underwriters, Nuclear Insurance
Association o f Canada or any o f their
successors, or would be an insured
under any such policy but f o r its t e r -
mination upon exhaustion o f its Limit
o f Liability; or

(2) resulting f rom the "hazardous p r op -
erties" o f "nuclear material" and with
respect to which (a) any person or
organization is required to maintain f i -
nancial protection pursuant to the
Atomic Energy Act o f 1954, or any
law amendatory thereof, or (b) the "In-
sured" is, or had this Policy not been
issued would be, entitled to indemnity
f rom the United States o f America, or
any agency thereof, under any agree-
ment entered into by the United States
o f America, or any agency thereof,
with any person or organization.

B. Under any Medical Payments Coverage, to
expenses incurred with respect to "bodily
injury" resulting f rom the "hazardous
properties" o f "nuclear material" and ar is-
ing out o f the operation o f a "nuclear f a -
cility" by any person or organization.

C. Under any Liability Coverage, to "bodily i n -
jury" or "property damage" resulting f rom
"hazardous properties" o f "nuclear mate-
rial," if:

(1) the "nuclear material" (a) is at any "nu-
clear facility" owned by, or operated
by or on behalf of , an "insured" or (b)
has been discharged or dispersed
therefrom;

(2) the "nuclear material" is contained in
"spent fuel" or "waste" at any time
possessed, handled, used, processed,
stored, transported or disposed of , by
or on behalf o f an "insured"; or

(3) the "bodily injury" or "property dam-
age" arises out o f the furnishing by an
"insured" o f services, materials, parts
or equipment in connection with the
planning, construction, maintenance,
operation or use o f any "nuclear f a -
cility," but i f such facility is located
within the United States o f America, its

* S9 * 12/20/2021 * MAC-5306011-08-02 GREAT AMERICAN ASSURANCE CO
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territories or possessions or Canada,
this exclusion (3) applies only to
"property damage" to such "nuclear
facility" and any property thereat.

2. As used in this endorsement:

"Hazardous properties" includes radioactive,
toxic or explosive properties.

"Nuclear material" means "source material,"
"special nuclear material" or "by-product ma-
terial."

"Source material," "special nuclear material,"
and "by-product material" have the meanings
given them in the Atomic Energy Act o f 1954
or in any law amendatory thereof.

"Spent fuel" means any fuel element or fuel
component, solid or liquid, which has been
used or exposed to radiation in a "nuclear
reactor."

"Waste" means any waste material (a) con -
taining "by-product material" other than the
tailings or wastes produced by the extraction
or concentration o f uranium or thorium f rom
any ore processed primarily f o r its "source
material" content, and (b) resulting f rom the
operation by any person or organization o f
any "nuclear facility" included under the f i rst
two paragraphs o f the definition o f "nuclear
facility."

"Nuclear facility" means:

(a) any "nuclear reactor";

(b) any equipment or device designed or used
f o r (1) separating the isotopes o f uranium
or plutonium, (2) processing or utilizing
"spent fuel," or (3) handling, processing or
packaging "waste";

(c) any equipment or device used f o r the
processing, fabricating or alloying o f
"special nuclear material" i f at any time the
total amount o f such material in the cus -
tody o f the "Insured" at the premises
where such equipment or device is l o -
cated consists o f or contains more than
25 grams o f plutonium or uranium 233 or
any combination thereof, or more than
250 grams o f uranium 235;

(d) any structure, basin, excavation, premises
or place prepared or used f o r the storage
or disposal o f "waste";

and includes the site on which any o f the
foregoing is located, all operations conducted
on such site and all premises used f o r such
operations.

"Nuclear reactor" means any apparatus de -
signed or used to sustain nuclear fission in a
self-support ing chain reaction or to contain a
critical mass o f fissionable material.

"Property damage" includes all forms o f r a -
dioactive contamination o f property.
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THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

CAP ON LOSSES FROM CERTIFIED ACTS OF TERRORISM

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

BOILER AND MACHINERY COVERAGE PART
COMMERCIAL INLAND MARINE COVERAGE PART
COMMERCIAL PROPERTY COVERAGE PART
EQUIPMENT BREAKDOWN COVERAGE PART
FARM COVERAGE PART
STANDARD PROPERTY POLICY

A. Cap On Certified Terrorism Losses

"Certified act o f terrorism" means an act that
is certif ied by the Secretary o f the Treasury,
in accordance with the provisions o f the f e d -
eral Terrorism Risk Insurance Act, to be an act
o f terrorism pursuant to such Act. The criteria
contained in the Terrorism Risk Insurance Act
f o r a "certified act o f terrorism" include the
following:

1. The act resulted in insured losses in e x -
cess o f $5 million in the aggregate, at t r ib-
utable to all types o f insurance subject to
the Terrorism Risk Insurance Act; and

2. The act is a violent act or an act that is
dangerous to human life, property or i n -
frastructure and is committed by an in -
dividual or individuals as part o f an e f fo r t
to coerce the civilian population o f the
United States or to influence the policy or
af fect the conduct o f the United States
Government by coercion.

I f aggregate insured losses attributable to t e r -
rorist acts certif ied under the Terrorism Risk
Insurance Act exceed $100 billion in a cal -
endar year and we have met our insurer de -
ductible under the Terrorism Risk Insurance
Act, we shall not be liable f o r the payment o f
any portion o f the amount o f such losses that
exceeds $100 billion, and in such case insured
losses up to that amount are subject to pro
rata allocation in accordance with procedures
established by the Secretary o f the Treasury.

B. Application Of Exclusions

The terms and limitations o f any terrorism
exclusion, or the inapplicability or omission o f
a terrorism exclusion, do not serve to create
coverage f o r any loss which would otherwise
be excluded under this Coverage Part or Pol i -
cy, such as losses excluded by the Nuclear
Hazard Exclusion or the War and Military A c -
tion Exclusion.
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THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

LOSS PREVENTION SERVICES

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMON POLICY CONDITIONS

The fol lowing is added to the Common Policy
Conditions

G. Loss Prevention Services

At our cost, we may provide or recommend a
broad range o f loss prevention services de -
signed to improve the acceptability o f an in -
sured. These services may require your c o -
operation to make them effective.

We provide these services based on need as
indicated by the size, hazard and experience
o f your operation. We may elect to provide
these services through another entity.

In addition to inspections and surveys, r e -
ferenced in D. Inspections and Surveys,
these services may include, but are not limited

to, safety and prevention training, consulta-
tions, safety devices, health screenings and
analyses o f accident causes.

We are not obligated to provide any loss p r e -
vention services and any inspections, surveys,
reports or recommendations and any such ac -
tions we do undertake relate only to insurabil-
ity and the premiums to be charged. We do
not make safety inspections. We do not un -
dertake to perform the duty o f any person or
organization to provide f o r the health or
safety o f workers or the public. And we do
not warrant that conditions:

a. are safe or healthful; or

b. comply with laws, regulations, codes or
standards.

This endorsement does not change any other provision o f the Policy.
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THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES YOUR POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY. 
 

IL 73 24 (Ed. 07/21) (Page 1 of 1) 
 

 
GLOBAL SANCTION ENDORSEMENT 

 
 
Notwithstanding any other provision of this Policy, this insurance cannot provide coverage and the Insurer shall not be liable 
to pay any claim or provide any benefit under this Policy to the extent that the provision of such coverage or benefit, or the 
payment of such claim, would violate, conflict with, or expose the Insurer to any sanction, prohibition or restriction under 
United Nations resolutions or any applicable economic or financial sanctions or other trade laws or regulations, including, 
but not limited to, of the United States of America, European Union, United Kingdom, or Canada.  
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In Witness Clause

In Witness Whereof, we have caused this Policy to be executed and attested, and, i f required by state
law, this Policy shall not be valid unless countersigned by our authorized representative.

President Secretary
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THIS ENDORSEMENT IS ATTACHED TO AND MADE PART OF YOUR POLICY IN
RESPONSE TO THE DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS OF THE TERRORISM RISK

INSURANCE ACT. THIS ENDORSEMENT DOES NOT GRANT ANY COVERAGE OR
CHANGE THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF ANY COVERAGE UNDER THE POLICY.

DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO TERRORISM RISK INSURANCE ACT

Schedule

Schedule - Part I

Terrorism Premium (Certified Acts) $

This premium is the total Certified Acts premium attributable to the fol lowing Coverage Part(s), Coverage Form(s)
and/or Policy(ies): -

Additional information, i f any, concerning the terrorism premium:

Schedule - Part II

Federal share of terrorism losses is 80%
(Refer to Paragraph B. in this endorsement.)

Information required to complete this Schedule, i f not shown above, will be shown in the Declarations.

A. Disclosure of Premium

In accordance with the federal Terrorism Risk Insurance Act, we are required to provide you with a notice
disclosing the portion o f your premium, i f any, attributable to coverage f o r terrorist acts certif ied under the
Terrorism Risk Insurance Act. The portion o f your premium attributable to such coverage is shown in the
Schedule o f this endorsement or in the policy Declarations.

0.00

MAC 530 60 11 08
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B. Disclosure of Federal Participation in Payment of Terrorism Losses

The United States Government, Department o f the Treasury, will pay a share o f terrorism losses insured
under the federal program. The federal share equals a percentage (as shown in Part II o f the Schedule o f this
endorsement) o f that portion o f the amount o f such insured losses that exceeds the applicable insurer
retention. However, i f aggregate insured losses attributable to terrorist acts certif ied under the Terrorism
Risk Insurance Act exceed $100 billion in a calendar year, the Treasury shall not make any payment f o r any
portion o f the amount o f such losses that exceeds $100 billion.

C. Cap on Insurer Participation in Payment of Terrorism Losses

I f aggregate insured losses attributable to terrorist acts certif ied under the Terrorism Risk Insurance Act
exceed $100 billion in a calendar year and we have met our insurer deductible under the Terrorism Risk
Insurance Act, we shall not be liable f o r the payment o f any portion o f the amount o f such losses that
exceeds $100 billion, and in such case insured losses up to that amount are subject to pro rata allocation in
accordance with procedures established by the Secretary o f the Treasury.
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FLORIDA NOTIFICATION OF AVAILABILITY OF
UNINSURED MOTORISTS COVERAGE

This document includes general descriptions o f coverage. However, no coverage is provided by this document.
You should read your policy and review your Declarations page(s) and/or Schedule(s) f o r complete information on
the coverages you are provided.

Florida law requires us to notify you about options with respect to Uninsured Motorists Coverage. The fol lowing
options are available with respect to Uninsured Motorists Coverage:

1. Uninsured Motorists Coverage at limits equal to your Combined Single Limit f o r Liability Coverage.

2. I f your Combined Single Limit f o r Liability Coverage is at least $30,000, you may select Uninsured Motorists
Coverage limits that are lower than your Liability Coverage limits BUT you may not select Uninsured Motorists
Coverage limits less than a single limit o f $20,000 f o r each accident.

3. Non-stacked Or Stacked Uninsured Motorists Coverage Options If You Are An Individual

I f your policy is a personal auto policy, or i f your policy is a commercial auto policy and you are designated
as an individual in the Declarations o f such policy, you have the option to purchase non-stacked Uninsured
Motorists Coverage or stacked Uninsured Motorists Coverage.

a. Non-stacked Option

Subject to the provisions o f the policy, and except as provided in the fol lowing sentence, non-stacked
Uninsured Motorists Coverage generally does not allow an insured to combine or stack one applicable
Uninsured Motorists Coverage limit with other applicable Uninsured Motorists Coverage limit(s) f o r the
same loss. However, i f there is other applicable insurance available under one or more policies or
provisions o f coverage, any recovery f o r loss suffered by you or any family member residing with you
while occupying a vehicle not owned by you or any such family member may not exceed the sum of:

(1) The limit o f liability f o r Uninsured Motorists Coverage applicable to the vehicle you or any such
family member was occupying at the time o f the accident; and

(2) The highest limit o f liability f o r Uninsured Motorists Coverage applicable to any one vehicle under
any one policy affording coverage to you or any such family member.

b. Stacked Option

Subject to the provisions o f the policy, stacked Uninsured Motorists Coverage generally allows an
insured under a personal auto policy or you or a family member under a commercial auto policy to
combine or stack one applicable Uninsured Motorists Coverage limit with other applicable Uninsured
Motorists Coverage limit(s) f o r the same loss. For example, under stacked Uninsured Motorists Coverage,
you or a family member may add together the Uninsured Motorists Coverage limits f o r each vehicle that
has such coverage under your policy.

4. Non-stacked Uninsured Motorists Coverage If You Are Other Than An Individual

I f your policy is a commercial auto policy and you are designated as other than an individual in the
Declarations, your policy will include non-stacked Uninsured Motorists Coverage unless you reject Uninsured
Motorists Coverage entirely.
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5. Rejection Of Uninsured Motorists Coverage Entirely

You should contact us or your agent at the address below i f you have any questions regarding the options listed
above with respect to Uninsured Motorists Coverage. However, i f you wish to change the coverage option(s) you
previously selected, you must request any such changes(s) in writing.

Company:

Address:

Producer:

Address:
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THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

EXCLUSION - ASBESTOS

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
PRODUCTS AND COMPLETED OPERATIONS COVERAGE PART
OWNER AND CONTRACTORS PROTECTIVE LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
RAILROAD PROTECTIVE LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
LIQUOR LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
POLLUTION LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
FARM COVERAGE PART

This insurance does not apply to "bodily injury," "property damage," or "personal and advertising injury"
arising out o f or related in any way to asbestos, asbestos-containing materials, or asbestos-containing
products.

We shall not have the duty to defend any such claim or "suit."
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Policy No. -

GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
DECLARATIONS PAGE

NAMED INSURED: POLICY PERIOD:
t o

LIMITS OF INSURANCE:

General Aggregate Limit (Other Than Products -
Completed Operations) $

Products - Completed Operations Aggregate Limit $
Personal and Advertising Injury Limit $
Each Occurrence Limit $
Damage to Premises Rented to You Limit $ Any One Premises
Medical Expense Limit $ Any One Person

FORM OF BUSINESS:

TOTAL ESTIMATED PREMIUM: $

Products/Completed Operations All Other
$ $

SCHEDULE OF LOCATIONS:

CODE NUMBER: PREMIUM BASIS:

CLASSIFICATION:

Products/Completed Operations All Other
Exposure: Exposure:
Rate: Rate:
Premium: Premium:

FORMS AND ENDORSEMENTS applicable to this Coverage Part and made a part o f this Policy at the time o f
issue are listed on the attached Forms and Endorsements Schedule CG 88 01 (11/85).

CG 74 00 (Ed. 07/01) PRO (Page 1 o f 1)

MAC 530-60-11 08

EARLY LEARNING COALITION OF
PINELLAS COUNTY, INC. 01/24/22 01/24/23

2,000,000
2,000,000
1,000,000
1,000,000

100,000
5,000

NON-PROFIT ORGANIZATION

7,980.00

INCLUDED 7,980.00

LOCATION 001 BLDG. 01 2536 COUNTRYSIDE BLVD., CLEARWATER, FL 33763
LOCATION 002 BLDG. 01 3420 8TH AVENUE S., ST. PETERSBURG, FL 33711
LOCATION 003 BLDG. 01 3815 43RD STREET NORTH, ST. PETERSBURG, FL 33714

SEE FORM CG7401
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CG 7 5 1 8 ( E d . 0 3 / 9 0 )

P o l i c y N o . -

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
DECLARATIONS PAGE

NAMED INSURED : POL ICY PER IOD :
t o

L I M I T S OF INSURANCE:

A g g r e g a t e L i m i t $
E a c h C l a i m L i m i t $
D e d u c t i b l e $

DESCRIPT ION OF BUS INESS :

F o r m o f B u s i n e s s : ( ) I n d i v i d u a l ( ) J o i n t V e n t u r e ( ) P a r t n e r s h i p
( ) O r g a n i z a t i o n ( O t h e r t h a n P a r t n e r s h i p o r J o i n t V e n t u r e )

T o t a l Ad v an c e P rem ium $

P r e m i u m s h o w n i s p a y a b l e : $ a t i n c e p t i o n ;
$

FORMS AND ENDORSEMENTS a p p l i c a b l e t o t h i s C o v e r a g e P a r t a n d a mad e p a r t o f t h i s
P o l i c y a t t h e t i m e o f i s s u e a r e l i s t e d o n t h e a t t a c h e d F o r m s a n d E n d o r s e m e n t s
S c h e d u l e CG 8 8 0 1 ( 1 1 / 8 5 ) .

CG 7 5 1 8 ( E d . 0 3 / 9 0 ) ( P a g e 1 o f 1 )

MAC 530-60-11 08

EARLY LEARNING COALITION OF
PINELLAS COUNTY, INC. 01/24/22 01/24/23

2,000,000
1,000,000
1,000

X

272.00 MP

272.00 MP
272.00 MP
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CG 82 82 (Ed. 12/09) (Page 1 o f 1)

CG 82 82
(Ed. 12/09)

Policy No. -

ABUSE OR MOLESTATION COVERAGE FORM
DECLARATIONS PAGE

NAMED INSURED: POLICY PERIOD:
to

LIMITS OF INSURANCE:

Aggregate Limit $ Each Abuse Limit $

DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS:

Form o f Business ( ) Individual ( ) Joint Venture ( ) Partnership
( ) Organization (Other Than Partnership or Joint Venture)

READ YOUR POLICY CAREFULLY, OPTIONAL COVERAGES ARE PROVIDED BY PREMIUM INSERTION.

Premium

Abuse or Molestation Coverage $

TOTAL ADVANCE PREMIUM $

Premium shown is payable: $ at inception;

FORMS AND ENDORSEMENTS Applicable to this Coverage Part and made part o f this Policy at time o f issue are
listed on the attached Forms and Endorsements Schedule CG 88 01 (11/85).

MAC 530-60-11 08

EARLY LEARNING COALITION OF
PINELLAS COUNTY, INC. 01/24/2022 01/24/2023

2,000,000 1,000,000

X

544.00

544.00

544.00
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CG 87 11 (Ed. 09/07) PRO (Page 1 o f 1)

CG 87 11 (Ed. 09 07)

Policy No. -

PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
DECLARATIONS PAGE

NAMED INSURED: POLICY PERIOD:
to

LIMITS OF INSURANCE:

Aggregate Limit $ Each Act, Error or Omission $

DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS:

Form o f Business ( ) Individual ( ) Joint Venture ( ) Partnership
( ) Organization (Other Than Partnership or Joint Venture)

TOTAL ADVANCE PREMIUM $

Premium shown is payable: $ at inception;

FORMS AND ENDORSEMENTS Applicable to this Coverage Part and made part o f this Policy at time o f
issue are listed on the attached Forms and Endorsements Schedule CG 88 01 (11/85).

MAC 530-60-11 08

EARLY LEARNING COALITION OF
PINELLAS COUNTY, INC. 01/24/2022 01/24/2023

2,000,000 1,000,000

X

1,599.00

1,599.00
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CG 8 8 0 1 ( E d . 1 1 / 8 5 )

FORMS AND ENDORSEMENTS SCHEDULE

I t i s h e r e b y u n d e r s t o o d a n d a g r e e d t h e f o l l o w i n g f o r m s a n d e n d o r s e m e n t s a r e
a t t a c h e d t o a n d a r e a p a r t o f t h i s p o l i c y :

D a t e A d d e d *
o r

F o r m a n d E d i t i o n ST D a t e D e l e t e d F o r m D e s c r i p t i o n

1 .

2 .

3 .

4 .

5 .

6 .

7 .

8 .

9 .

1 0 .

1 1 .

1 2 .

1 3 .

1 4 .

1 5 .

1 6 .

1 7 .

1 8 .

1 9 .

2 0 .

2 1 .

2 2 .

* I f n o t a t i n c e p t i o n

CG 8 8 0 1 ( E d . 1 1 / 8 5 ) ( P a g e o f )

CG0001 04/13 FL COMMERCIAL GEN LIAB COVERAGE FORM

CG2026 12/19 FL ADDITIONAL INSURED - ORGANIZATION

CG2106 05/14 FL EXC ACCESS/DISCLOSURE OF CONFDNTL

CG2147 12/07 FL EMPLOYMENT RELATED PRACTICES EXCL

CG2167 12/04 FL FUNGI OR BACTERIA EXCLUSION

CG2171 01/15 FL EXCL OF OTHER ACTS OF TERRORISM

CG2426 04/13 FL AMENDT INSURED CONTRACT DEFINITION

CG7400 07/01 FL GL COVERAGE PART DECLARATIONS PAGE

CG7401 11/85 FL SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE

CG7518 03/90 FL EMPL BENEFITS LIA COV PART DEC

CG7519 12/07 FL EMP BENEFITS LIAB COV EXCL FID LIAB

CG7794 07/98 FL EXCLUSION-LIA ARISING OUT OF LEAD

CG8282 12/09 FL ABUSE/MOLESTATION COV FORM DEC PAGE

CG8361 02/05 FL SILICA OR RELATED DUST EXCLUSION

CG8440 06/19 FL COORDINATION OF LIMITS ENDORSEMENT

CG8565 01/12 FL ABUSE/MOLESTATION COVERAGE FORM

CG8710 08/09 FL PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY INSURANCE

CG8711 09/07 FL PROFESSIONAL LIAB COV PART DEC PAGE

CG8787 07/13 FL FL CHANGES-CANCELLATION/NONRENEWAL

CG8972 01/15 FL ADDITIONAL INSURED-ABUSE/MOLESTATN

CG8973 01/15 FL ADDITIONAL INSURED-PROF LIAB SCHED

CG8991 03/15 FL FL-SIGNATURE GENL LIA BROADNG ENDT

1 2
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CG 8 8 0 1 ( E d . 1 1 / 8 5 )

FORMS AND ENDORSEMENTS SCHEDULE

I t i s h e r e b y u n d e r s t o o d a n d a g r e e d t h e f o l l o w i n g f o r m s a n d e n d o r s e m e n t s a r e
a t t a c h e d t o a n d a r e a p a r t o f t h i s p o l i c y :

D a t e A d d e d *
o r

F o r m a n d E d i t i o n ST D a t e D e l e t e d F o r m D e s c r i p t i o n

1 .

2 .

3 .

4 .

5 .

6 .

7 .

8 .

9 .

1 0 .

1 1 .

1 2 .

1 3 .

1 4 .

1 5 .

1 6 .

1 7 .

1 8 .

1 9 .

2 0 .

2 1 .

2 2 .

* I f n o t a t i n c e p t i o n

CG 8 8 0 1 ( E d . 1 1 / 8 5 ) ( P a g e o f )

CG9082 06/17 FL EXCLUSION - PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

CG9083 06/17 FL EXC - ABUSE/MOLESTATION/HARASSMENT

CG9169 02/20 FL MED PAYMENTS YOUR REQUEST ENDT

2 2
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CG 74 01 (Ed. 11/85)

SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE

* Rates Advance Premium
PremiumCode
BasisClassification No. Pr/Co All Other Pr/Co All Other

Total $

* (a) Admissions (e) Pay roll
(b) Area (f) Total Cost
(c) Each (g) Units
(d) Gross Sales (h) Other

CG 74 01 (Ed. 11/85) (Page o f )

LOCATION 001

BUILDINGS OR
PREMISES-OFFICE
NOT-FOR-PROFIT
ONLY *61227 B)20,365 INCL 285.464 INCL $5,813.

LOCATION 002

BUILDINGS OR
PREMISES-OFFICE
NOT-FOR-PROFIT
ONLY *61227 B) 1,834 INCL 247.441 INCL $ 454.

LOCATION 003

BUILDINGS OR
PREMISES-OFFICE
NOT-FOR-PROFIT
ONLY *61227 B) 4,500 INCL 247.441 INCL $1,113.

ADDITIONAL
INSURED 49950 FLAT CHARGE INCL INCL INCL $ 200.

MISCELLANEOUS
*44444 IF ANY INCL INCL INCL $ 200.

SIGNATURE GENERAL
LIABILITY
BROADENING
ENDORSEMENT

01211 FLAT CHARGE INCL INCL INCL $ 200.

*"INCLUDING
PRODUCTS AND/OR
COMPLETED
OPERATIONS"

7,980.00

1 1
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Copyright, ISO Properties, Inc., 2012
CG 00 01 (Ed. 04/13) (Page 1 o f 20)

CG 00 01 (Ed. 04 13)

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE FORM

Various provisions in this Policy restrict coverage.
Read the entire Policy carefully to determine
rights, duties and what is and is not covered.

Throughout this Policy the words "you" and "your"
refer to the Named Insured shown in the Declara-
tions, and any other person or organization quali-
fying as a named insured under this Policy. The
words "we", "us" and "our" refer to the company
providing this insurance.

The word "insured" means any person or o r -
ganization qualifying as such under SECTION II -
WHO IS AN INSURED.

Other words and phrases that appear in quotation
marks have special meaning. Refer to SECTION V
- DEFINITIONS.

SECTION I - COVERAGES

Coverage A - Bodily Injury and Property Dam-
age Liability

1. Insuring Agreement

a. We will pay those sums that the Insured
becomes legally obligated to pay as dam-
ages because o f "bodily injury" or "p rop -
erty damage" to which this insurance ap -
plies. We will have the right and duty to
defend the Insured against any "suit" seek-
ing those damages. However, we will have
no duty to defend the Insured against any
"suit" seeking damages f o r "bodily injury"
or "property damage" to which this insur-
ance does not apply. We may, at our d is -
cretion, investigate any "occurrence" and
settle any claim or "suit" that may result.
But:

(1) the amount we will pay f o r damages is
limited as described in SECTION III -
LIMITS OF INSURANCE; and

(2) our right and duty to defend ends
when we have used up the applicable
Limit o f Insurance in the payment o f
judgments or settlements under Cov -
erages A or B or medical expenses
under Coverage C.

No other obligation or liability to pay sums
or perform acts or services is covered
unless explicitly provided f o r under Sup-
plementary Payments - Coverages A and
B.

b. This insurance applies to "bodily injury"
and "property damage" only if:

(1) the "bodily injury" or "property dam-
age" is caused by an "occurrence" that
takes place in the "coverage territory";

(2) the "bodily injury" or "property dam-
age" occurs during the policy period;
and

(3) prior to the policy period, no insured
listed under paragraph 1. o f SECTION
II - WHO IS AN INSURED and no
"employee" authorized by you to give
or receive notice o f an "occurrence"
or claim, knew that the "bodily injury"
or "property damage" had occurred, in
whole or in part. I f such a listed in -
sured or authorized "employee" knew,
prior to the policy period, that the
"bodily injury" or "property damage"
occurred, then any continuation,
change or resumption o f such "bodily
injury" or "property damage" during or
after the policy period will be deemed
to have been known prior to the policy
period.

c. "Bodily injury" or "property damage" which
occurs during the policy period and was
not, prior to the policy period, known to
have occurred by any insured listed under
paragraph 1. o f SECTION II - WHO IS AN
INSURED or any "employee" authorized by
you to give or receive notice o f an "oc -
currence" or claim, includes any continu-
ation, change or resumption o f that "bodily
injury" or "property damage" after the end
o f the policy period.

d. "Bodily injury" or "property damage" will
be deemed to have been known to have
occurred at the earliest time when any
insured listed under paragraph 1. o f SEC-

* S9 * 12/20/2021 * MAC-5306011-08-02 GREAT AMERICAN ASSURANCE CO
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TION II - WHO IS AN INSURED or any
"employee" authorized by you to give or
receive notice o f an "occurrence" or claim:

(1) reports all, or any part, o f the "bodily
injury" or "property damage" to us or
any other insurer;

(2) receives a written or verbal demand or
claim fo r damages because o f the
"bodily injury" or "property damage";
or

(3) becomes aware by any other means
that "bodily injury" or "property dam-
age" has occurred or has begun to
occur.

e. Damages because o f "bodily injury" include
damages claimed by any person or o r -
ganization f o r care, loss o f services or
death resulting at any time f rom the "bodi-
ly injury."

2. Exclusions

This insurance does not apply to:

a. Expected or Intended Injury

"Bodily injury" or "property damage" e x -
pected or intended f rom the standpoint o f
the Insured. This exclusion does not apply
to "bodily injury" resulting f rom the use o f
reasonable force to protect persons or
property.

b. Contractual Liability

"Bodily injury" or "property damage" f o r
which the Insured is obligated to pay dam-
ages by reason o f the assumption o f l i -
ability in a contract or agreement. This e x -
clusion does not apply to liability f o r dam-
ages:

(1) that the Insured would have in the ab-
sence o f the contract or agreement;
or

(2) assumed in a contract or agreement
that is an "insured contract," provided
the "bodily injury" or "property dam-
age" occurs subsequent to the execu-
tion o f the contract or agreement.
Solely f o r the purposes o f liability as -
sumed in an "insured contract," rea-

sonable attorneys' fees and necessary
litigation expenses incurred by or f o r a
party other than an insured are
deemed to be damages because o f
"bodily injury" or "property damage,"
provided:

(a) liability to such party for , or f o r
the cost of , that party's defense
has also been assumed in the
same "insured contract"; and

(b) such attorneys' fees and litigation
expenses are f o r defense o f that
party against a civil o r alternative
dispute resolution proceeding in
which damages to which this i n -
surance applies are alleged.

c. Liquor Liability

"Bodily injury" or "property damage" f o r
which any insured may be held liable by
reason of:

(1) causing or contributing to the intox i -
cation o f any person;

(2) the furnishing o f alcoholic beverages
to a person under the legal drinking
age or under the influence o f alcohol;
or

(3) any statute, ordinance or regulation
relating to the sale, gift, distribution or
use o f alcoholic beverages.

This exclusion applies even i f the claims
against any insured allege negligence or
other wrongdoing in:

(a) the supervision, hiring, employment,
training or monitoring o f others by
that Insured; or

(b) providing or failing to provide trans-
portation with respect to any person
that may be under the influence o f
alcohol;

i f the "occurrence" which caused the
"bodily injury" or "property damage," i n -
volved that which is described in para-
graph (1), (2) or (3) above.

* S9 * 12/20/2021 * MAC-5306011-08-02 GREAT AMERICAN ASSURANCE CO
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However, this exclusion applies only i f you
are in the business o f manufacturing, d is -
tributing, selling, serving or furnishing a l -
coholic beverages. For the purposes o f
this exclusion, permitting a person to bring
alcoholic beverages on your premises, f o r
consumption on your premises, whether
or not a fee is charged or a license is
required f o r such activity, is not by itself
considered the business o f selling, serving
or furnishing alcoholic beverages.

d. Workers' Compensation and Similar
Laws

Any obligation o f the Insured under a
workers' compensation, disability benefits
or unemployment compensation law or
any similar law.

e. Employer's Liability

"Bodily injury" to:

(1) an "employee" o f the Insured arising
out o f and in the course of:

(a) employment by the Insured; or

(b) performing duties related to the
conduct o f the Insured's business;
or

(2) the spouse, child, parent, brother or
sister o f that "employee" as a con -
sequence o f paragraph (1) above.

This exclusion applies whether the Insured
may be liable as an employer or in any
other capacity and to any obligation to
share damages with or repay someone
else who must pay damages because o f
the injury.

This exclusion does not apply to liability
assumed by the Insured under an "insured
contract."

f. Pollution

(1) "Bodily injury" or "property damage"
arising out o f the actual, alleged or
threatened discharge, dispersal, seep-
age, migration, release or escape o f
"pollutants":

(a) at or f rom any premises, site or
location which is or was at any
time owned or occupied by, or
rented or loaned to, any insured.
However, this subparagraph does
not apply to:

(i) "bodily injury" i f sustained
within a building and caused
by smoke, fumes, vapor or
soot produced by or or ig i -
nating f rom equipment that is
used to heat, cool or de -
humidify the building, or
equipment that is used to
heat water f o r personal use,
by the building's occupants
or their guests;

(ii) "bodily injury" or "property
damage" f o r which you may
be held liable, i f you are a
contractor and the owner or
lessee o f such premises, site
or location has been added
to your policy as an addi-
tional insured with respect to
your ongoing operations
performed f o r that Add i -
tional Insured at that p rem-
ises, site or location and
such premises, site or loca-
tion is not and never was
owned or occupied by, or
rented or loaned to, any in -
sured, other than that Add i -
tional Insured; or

(iii) "bodily injury" or "property
damage" arising out o f heat,
smoke or fumes f rom a
"hostile fire";

(b) at or f rom any premises, site or
location which is or was at any
time used by or f o r any insured
or others f o r the handling, s t o r -
age, disposal, processing or
treatment o f waste;

(c) which are or were at any time
transported, handled, stored,
treated, disposed of , or p r o -
cessed as waste by or for:

(i) any insured; or

* S9 * 12/20/2021 * MAC-5306011-08-02 GREAT AMERICAN ASSURANCE CO
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(ii) any person or organization
f o r whom you may be legally
responsible; or

(d) at or f rom any premises, site or
location on which any insured or
any contractors or subcontrac-
tors working directly or indirectly
on any insured's behalf are pe r -
forming operations i f the "pol lu-
tants" are brought on or to the
premises, site or location in con -
nection with such operations by
such insured, contractor or sub-
contractor. However, this sub-
paragraph does not apply to:

(i) "bodily injury" or "property
damage" arising out o f the
escape o f fuels, lubricants
or other operating fluids
which are needed to pe r -
fo rm the normal electrical,
hydraulic or mechanical
functions necessary f o r the
operation o f "mobile equip-
ment" or its parts, i f such
fuels, lubricants or other
operating fluids escape f rom
a vehicle part designed to
hold, store or receive them.
This exception does not ap -
ply i f the "bodily injury" or
"property damage" arises out
o f the intentional discharge,
dispersal or release o f the
fuels, lubricants or other
operating fluids, or i f such
fuels, lubricants or other
operating fluids are brought
on or to the premises, site
or location with the intent
that they be discharged, d is -
persed or released as part
o f the operations being pe r -
formed by such insured,
contractor or subcontractor;

(ii) "bodily injury" or "property
damage" sustained within a
building and caused by the
release o f gases, fumes or
vapors f rom materials
brought into that building in
connection with operations

being performed by you or
on your behalf by a contrac-
tor or subcontractor; or

(iii) "bodily injury" or "property
damage" arising out o f heat,
smoke or fumes f rom a
"hostile fire."

(e) at or f rom any premises, site or
location on which any insured or
any contractors or subcontrac-
tors working directly or indirectly
on any insured's behalf are pe r -
forming operations i f the ope r -
ations are to test for , monitor,
clean up, remove, contain, treat,
detoxify or neutralize, or in any
way respond to, or assess the
ef fects of , "pollutants."

(2) Any loss, cost or expense arising out
o f any:

(a) request, demand, order or statu-
tory or regulatory requirement
that any insured or others test
for , monitor, clean up, remove,
contain, treat, detoxify or neu-
tralize, or in any way respond to,
or assess the ef fects of , "pol lu-
tants"; or

(b) claim or suit by or on behalf o f a
governmental authority f o r dam-
ages because o f testing for ,
monitoring, cleaning up, removing,
containing, treating, detoxifying or
neutralizing, or in any way r e -
sponding to, or assessing the e f -
fects of , "pollutants."

However, this paragraph does not ap -
ply to liability f o r damages because o f
"property damage" that the Insured
would have in the absence o f such
request, demand, order or statutory or
regulatory requirement, or such claim
or "suit" by or on behalf o f a gov -
ernmental authority.

g. Aircraft, Auto or Watercraft

"Bodily injury" or "property damage" ar is-
ing out o f the ownership, maintenance,
use or entrustment to others o f any a i r -

* S9 * 12/20/2021 * MAC-5306011-08-02 GREAT AMERICAN ASSURANCE CO
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craft, "auto" or watercraft owned or o p -
erated by or rented or loaned to any in -
sured. Use includes operation and "loading
or unloading."

This exclusion applies even i f the claims
against any insured allege negligence or
other wrongdoing in the supervision, h i r -
ing, employment, training or monitoring o f
others by that Insured, i f the "occurrence"
which caused the "bodily injury" or "p rop -
erty damage" involved the ownership,
maintenance, use or entrustment to others
o f any aircraft, "auto" or watercraft that is
owned or operated by or rented or loaned
to any insured.

This exclusion does not apply to:

(1) a watercraft while ashore on premises
you own or rent;

(2) a watercraft you do not own that is:

(a) less than 26 feet long; and

(b) not being used to carry persons
or property f o r a charge;

(3) parking an "auto" on, or on the ways
next to, premises you own or rent,
provided the "auto" is not owned by or
rented or loaned to you or the Insured;

(4) liability assumed under any "insured
contract" f o r the ownership, mainten-
ance or use o f aircraft or watercraft;
or

(5) "bodily injury" or "property damage"
arising out of:

(a) the operation o f machinery or
equipment that is attached to, or
part of , a land vehicle that would
qualify under the definition o f
"mobile equipment" i f it were not
subject to a compulsory or f inan-
cial responsibility law or other
motor vehicle insurance law
where it is licensed or principally
garaged; or

(b) the operation o f any o f the ma-
chinery or equipment listed in
paragraph f.(2) or f.(3) o f the
definition o f "mobile equipment."

h. Mobile Equipment

"Bodily injury" or "property damage" ar is-
ing out of:

(1) the transportation o f "mobile equip-
ment" by an "auto" owned or operated
by or rented or loaned to any insured;
or

(2) the use o f "mobile equipment" in, or
while in practice for , or while being
prepared for , any prearranged racing,
speed, demolition, or stunting activity.

i. War

"Bodily injury" or "property damage,"
however caused, arising, directly or i n -
directly, out of:

(1) war, including undeclared or civil war;

(2) warlike action by a military force, i n -
cluding action in hindering or defend-
ing against an actual or expected a t -
tack, by any government, sovereign or
other authority using military personnel
or other agents; or

(3) insurrection, rebellion, revolution,
usurped power, or action taken by
governmental authority in hindering or
defending against any o f these.

j. Damage to Property

"Property damage" to:

(1) property you own, rent, or occupy,
including any costs or expenses in -
curred by you, or any other person,
organization or entity, f o r repair, r e -
placement, enhancement, restoration
or maintenance o f such property f o r
any reason, including prevention o f i n -
jury to a person or damage to an-
other's property;

(2) premises you sell, give away or aban-
don, i f the "property damage" arises
out o f any part o f those premises;

(3) property loaned to you;

(4) personal property in the care, custody
or control o f the Insured;
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(5) that particular part o f real property on
which you or any contractors or sub-
contractors working directly or indi-
rectly on your behalf are performing
operations, i f the "property damage"
arises out o f those operations; or

(6) that particular part o f any property
that must be restored, repaired or r e -
placed because "your work" was in -
correctly performed on it.

Paragraphs (1), (3) and (4) o f this exclusion
do not apply to "property damage" (other
than damage by fire) to premises, including
the contents o f such premises, rented to
you f o r a period o f seven or fewer con -
secutive days. A separate Limit o f Insur-
ance applies to Damage to Premises Ren-
ted to You as described in SECTION III -
LIMITS OF INSURANCE.

Paragraph (2) o f this exclusion does not
apply i f the premises are "your work" and
were never occupied, rented or held f o r
rental by you.

Paragraphs (3), (4), (5) and (6) o f this e x -
clusion do not apply to liability assumed
under a sidetrack agreement.

Paragraph (6) o f this exclusion does not
apply to "property damage" included in the
"products-completed operations hazard."

k. Damage to Your Product

"Property damage" to "your product" ar is-
ing out o f it or any part o f it.

l. Damage to Your Work

"Property damage" to "your work" arising
out o f it or any part o f it and included in
the "products-completed operations haz-
ard."

This exclusion does not apply i f the
damaged work or the work out o f which
the damage arises was performed on your
behalf by a subcontractor.

m. Damage to Impaired Property or Prop-
erty Not Physically Injured

"Property damage" to "impaired property"
or property that has not been physically
injured, arising out of:

(1) a defect, deficiency, inadequacy or
dangerous condition in "your product"
or "your work"; or

(2) a delay or failure by you or anyone
acting on your behalf to perform a
contract or agreement in accordance
with its terms.

This exclusion does not apply to the loss
o f use o f other property arising out o f
sudden and accidental physical injury to
"your product" or "your work" after it has
been put to its intended use.

n. Recall of Products, Work or Impaired
Property

Damages claimed f o r any loss, cost or
expense incurred by you or others f o r the
loss o f use, withdrawal, recall, inspection,
repair, replacement, adjustment, removal
or disposal of:

(1) "your product";

(2) "your work"; or

(3) "impaired property";

i f such product, work, or property is
withdrawn or recalled f rom the market or
f rom use by any person or organization
because o f a known or suspected defect,
deficiency, inadequacy or dangerous con -
dition in it.

o. Personal and Advertising Injury

"Bodily injury" arising out o f "personal and
advertising injury."

p. Electronic Data

Damages arising out o f the loss of , loss
o f use of , damage to, corruption of , i n -
ability to access, or inability to manipulate
electronic data.
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However, this exclusion does not apply to
liability f o r damages because o f "bodily
injury."

As used in this exclusion, electronic data
means information, facts or programs
stored as or on, created or used on, or
transmitted to or f rom computer s o f t -
ware, including systems and applications
software, hard or f loppy disks, CD-ROMs,
tapes, drives, cells, data processing de -
vices or any other media which are used
with electronically controlled equipment.

q. Recording and Distribution of Material
or Information in Violation of Law

"Bodily injury" or "property damage" ar is-
ing directly or indirectly out o f any action
or omission that violates or is alleged to
violate:

(1) the Telephone Consumer Protection
Act (TCPA), including any amendment
o f or addition to such law;

(2) the CAN-SPAM Act o f 2003, including
any amendment o f or addition to such
law;

(3) the Fair Credit Reporting Act (FCRA),
and any amendment o f or addition to
such law, including the Fair and A c -
curate Credit Transactions Act
(FACTA); or

(4) any federal, state or local statute, o r -
dinance or regulation, other than the
TCPA, CAN-SPAM Act o f 2003 or
FCRA and their amendments and addi-
tions, that addresses, prohibits, or l im-
its the printing, dissemination, disposal,
collecting, recording, sending, trans-
mitting, communicating or distribution
o f material or information.

Exclusions c. through n. do not apply to dam-
age by f i re to premises while rented to you
or temporarily occupied by you with permis-
sion o f the owner. A separate Limit o f Insur-
ance applies to this coverage as described in
SECTION III - LIMITS OF INSURANCE.

Coverage B - Personal and Advertising Injury
Liability

1. Insuring Agreement

a. We will pay those sums that the Insured
becomes legally obligated to pay as dam-
ages because o f "personal and advertising
injury" to which this insurance applies. We
will have the right and duty to defend the
Insured against any "suit" seeking those
damages. However, we will have no duty
to defend the Insured against any "suit"
seeking damages f o r "personal and ad-
vertising injury" to which this insurance
does not apply. We may, at our discretion,
investigate any offense and settle any
claim or "suit" that may result. But:

(1) the amount we will pay f o r damages is
limited as described in SECTION III -
LIMITS OF INSURANCE; and

(2) our right and duty to defend end when
we have used up the applicable Limit
o f Insurance in the payment o f judg-
ments or settlements under Coverages
A or B or medical expenses under
Coverage C.

No other obligation or liability to pay sums
or perform acts or services is covered
unless explicitly provided f o r under Sup-
plementary Payments - Coverages A and
B.

b. This insurance applies to "personal and
advertising injury" caused by an offense
arising out o f your business but only i f the
offense was committed in the "coverage
territory" during the policy period.

2. Exclusions

This insurance does not apply to:

a. Knowing Violation of Rights of Another

"Personal and advertising injury" caused by
or at the direction o f the Insured with the
knowledge that the act would violate the
rights o f another and would inflict "per -
sonal and advertising injury."
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b. Material Published with Knowledge of
Falsity

"Personal and advertising injury" arising out
o f oral or written publication, in any man-
ner, o f material, i f done by or at the d i -
rection o f the Insured with knowledge o f
its falsity.

c. Material Published Prior to Policy Pe-
riod

"Personal and advertising injury" arising out
o f oral or written publication, in any man-
ner, o f material whose f i rst publication
took place before the beginning o f the
policy period.

d. Criminal Acts

"Personal and advertising injury" arising out
o f a criminal act committed by or at the
direction o f the Insured.

e. Contractual Liability

"Personal and advertising injury" f o r which
the Insured has assumed liability in a con -
tract or agreement. This exclusion does
not apply to liability f o r damages that the
Insured would have in the absence o f the
contract or agreement.

f. Breach of Contract

"Personal and advertising injury" arising out
o f a breach o f contract, except an implied
contract to use another's advertising idea
in your "advertisement."

g. Quality or Performance of Goods -
Failure to Conform to Statements

"Personal and advertising injury" arising out
o f the failure o f goods, products or se r -
vices to conform with any statement o f
quality or performance made in your "ad-
vertisement."

h. Wrong Description of Prices

"Personal and advertising injury" arising out
o f the wrong description o f the price o f
goods, products or services stated in your
"advertisement."

i. Infringement of Copyright, Patent,
Trademark or Trade Secret

"Personal and advertising injury" arising out
o f the infringement o f copyright, patent,
trademark, trade secret or other intellec-
tual property rights. Under this exclusion,
such other intellectual property rights do
not include the use o f another's advertis-
ing idea in your "advertisement."

However, this exclusion does not apply to
infringement, in your "advertisement," o f
copyright, trade dress or slogan.

j. Insureds in Media and Internet Type
Businesses

"Personal and advertising injury" commi t -
ted by an insured whose business is:

(1) advertising, broadcasting, publishing or
telecasting;

(2) designing or determining content o f
web sites f o r others; or

(3) an Internet search, access, content or
service provider.

However, this exclusion does not apply to
paragraphs 14.a., b. and c. o f "personal
and advertising injury" under the Defini-
tions section.

For the purposes o f this exclusion, the
placing o f frames, borders or links, or
advertising, f o r you or others anywhere
on the Internet, is not by itself, considered
the business o f advertising, broadcasting,
publishing or telecasting.

k. Electronic Chat Rooms or Bulletin
Boards

"Personal and advertising injury" arising out
o f an electronic chat room or bulletin
board the Insured hosts, owns, or over
which the Insured exercises control.

l. Unauthorized Use of Another's Name or
Product

"Personal and advertising injury" arising out
o f the unauthorized use o f another's name
or product in your e-mail address, domain
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name or metatag, or any other similar tac -
tics to mislead another's potential custom-
ers.

m. Pollution

"Personal and advertising injury" arising out
o f the actual, alleged or threatened d is -
charge, dispersal, seepage, migration, r e -
lease or escape o f "pollutants" at any time.

n. Pollution-related

Any loss, cost or expense arising out o f
any:

(1) request, demand, order or statutory or
regulatory requirement that any insured
or others test for , monitor, clean up,
remove, contain, treat, detoxify or
neutralize, or in any way respond to,
or assess the ef fects of , "pollutants";
or

(2) claim or suit by or on behalf o f a
governmental authority f o r damages
because o f testing for , monitoring,
cleaning up, removing, containing,
treating, detoxifying or neutralizing, or
in any way responding to, or assessing
the ef fects of , "pollutants."

o. War

"Personal and advertising injury," however
caused, arising, directly or indirectly, out
of:

(1) war, including undeclared or civil war;

(2) warlike action by a military force, i n -
cluding action in hindering or defend-
ing against an actual or expected a t -
tack, by any government, sovereign or
other authority using military personnel
or other agents; or

(3) insurrection, rebellion, revolution,
usurped power, or action taken by
governmental authority in hindering or
defending against any o f these.

p. Recording and Distribution of Material
or Information in Violation of Law

"Personal and advertising injury" arising d i -
rectly or indirectly out o f any action or
omission that violates or is alleged to v i o -
late:

(1) the Telephone Consumer Protection
Act (TCPA), including any amendment
o f or addition to such law;

(2) the CAN-SPAM Act o f 2003, including
any amendment o f or addition to such
law;

(3) the Fair Credit Reporting Act (FCRA),
and any amendment o f or addition to
such law, including the Fair and A c -
curate Credit Transactions Act
(FACTA); or

(4) any federal, state or local statute, o r -
dinance or regulation, other than the
TCPA, CAN-SPAM Act o f 2003 or
FCRA and their amendments and addi-
tions, that addresses, prohibits, or l im-
its the printing, dissemination, disposal,
collecting, recording, sending, trans-
mitting, communicating or distribution
o f material or information.

Coverage C - Medical Payments

1. Insuring Agreement

a. We will pay medical expenses as de -
scribed below fo r "bodily injury" caused
by an accident:

(1) on premises you own or rent;

(2) on ways next to premises you own or
rent; or

(3) because o f your operations;

provided that:

(a) the accident takes place in the "cov -
erage territory" and during the policy
period;

(b) the expenses are incurred and repor t -
ed to us within one year o f the date o f
the accident; and
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(c) the injured person submits to exami-
nation, at our expense, by physicians
o f our choice as often as we reason-
ably require.

b. We will make these payments regardless
o f fault. These payments will not exceed
the applicable Limit o f Insurance. We will
pay reasonable expenses for:

(1) f i rst aid administered at the time o f an
accident;

(2) necessary medical, surgical, X- ray and
dental services, including prosthetic
devices; and

(3) necessary ambulance, hospital, p r o -
fessional nursing and funeral services.

2. Exclusions

We will not pay expenses f o r "bodily injury":

a. Any Insured

To any insured, except "volunteer w o r k -
ers."

b. Hired Person

To a person hired to do work f o r or on
behalf o f any insured or a tenant o f any
insured.

c. Injury on Normally Occupied Premises

To a person injured on that part o f p rem-
ises you own or rent that the person no r -
mally occupies.

d. Workers' Compensation and Similar
Laws

To a person, whether or not an "employ-
ee" o f any insured, i f benefits f o r the
"bodily injury" are payable or must be
provided under a workers' compensation
or disability benefits law or a similar law.

e. Athletics Activities

To a person injured while practicing, i n -
structing or participating in any physical
exercises or games, sports, or athletic
contests.

f. Products-Completed Operations Hazard

Included within the "products-completed
operations hazard."

g. Coverage A Exclusions

Excluded under Coverage A .

Supplementary Payments - Coverages A and B

1. We will pay, with respect to any claim we
investigate or settle, or any "suit" against an
insured we defend:

a. All expenses we incur.

b. Up to $250 f o r cost o f bail bonds r e -
quired because o f accidents or t raf f ic law
violations arising out o f the use o f any
vehicle to which the Bodily Injury Liability
Coverage applies. We do not have to f u r -
nish these bonds.

c. The cost o f bonds to release attachments,
but only f o r bond amounts within the ap -
plicable Limit o f Insurance. We do not
have to furnish these bonds.

d. All reasonable expenses incurred by the
Insured at our request to assist us in the
investigation or defense o f the claim or
"suit," including actual loss o f earnings up
to $250 a day because o f time o f f f rom
work.

e. All court costs taxed against the Insured in
the "suit." However, these payments do
not include attorneys' fees or attorneys'
expenses taxed against the Insured.

f. Prejudgment interest awarded against the
Insured on that part o f the judgment we
pay. I f we make an o f f e r to pay the ap -
plicable Limit o f Insurance, we will not pay
any prejudgment interest based on that
period o f time after the of fer .

g. All interest on the full amount o f any
judgment that accrues after entry o f the
judgment and before we have paid, o f -
fered to pay, or deposited in court the
part o f the judgment that is within the
applicable Limit o f Insurance.

These payments will not reduce the Limits o f
Insurance.
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2. I f we defend an insured against a "suit" and an
indemnitee o f the Insured is also named as a
party to the "suit," we will defend that indem-
nitee i f all o f the fol lowing conditions are met:

a. the "suit" against the indemnitee seeks
damages f o r which the Insured has as-
sumed the liability o f the indemnitee in a
contract or agreement that is an "insured
contract";

b. this insurance applies to such liability as -
sumed by the Insured;

c. the obligation to defend, or the cost o f
the defense of , that indemnitee, has also
been assumed by the Insured in the same
"insured contract";

d. the allegations in the "suit" and the in -
formation we know about the "occur -
rence" are such that no confl ict appears to
exist between the interests o f the Insured
and the interests o f the indemnitee;

e. the indemnitee and the Insured ask us to
conduct and control the defense o f that
indemnitee against such "suit" and agree
that we can assign the same counsel to
defend the Insured and the indemnitee; and

f. the indemnitee:

(1) Agrees in writing to:

(a) cooperate with us in the inves-
tigation, settlement or defense o f
the "suit";

(b) immediately send us copies o f
any demands, notices, summonses
or legal papers received in con -
nection with the "suit";

(c) notify any other insurer whose
coverage is available to the in -
demnitee; and

(d) cooperate with us with respect to
coordinating other applicable in -
surance available to the indem-
nitee; and

(2) Provides us with written authorization
to:

(a) obtain records and other i n f o r -
mation related to the "suit"; and

(b) conduct and control the defense
o f the indemnitee in such "suit."

So long as the above conditions are met, a t -
torneys' fees incurred by us in the defense o f
that indemnitee, necessary litigation expenses
incurred by us and necessary litigation e x -
penses incurred by the indemnitee at our r e -
quest will be paid as Supplementary Payments.
Notwithstanding the provisions o f paragraph
2.b.(2) o f SECTION I - COVERAGE A - Bodi-
ly Injury and Property Damage Liability,
such payments will not be deemed to be
damages f o r "bodily injury" and "property
damage" and will not reduce the Limits o f
Insurance.

Our obligation to defend an insured's indem-
nitee and to pay f o r attorneys' fees and nec-
essary litigation expenses as Supplementary
Payments ends when we have used up the
applicable Limit o f Insurance in the payment o f
judgments or settlements or the conditions
set for th above, or the terms o f the agree-
ment described in paragraph f. above, are no
longer met.

SECTION II - WHO IS AN INSURED

1. I f you are designated in the Declarations as:

a. An individual, you and your spouse are
insureds, but only with respect to the
conduct o f a business o f which you are
the sole owner.

b. A partnership or joint venture, you are an
insured. Your members, your partners, and
their spouses are also insureds, but only
with respect to the conduct o f your busi-
ness.

c. A limited liability company, you are an in -
sured. Your members are also insureds,
but only with respect to the conduct o f
your business. Your managers are insur-
eds, but only with respect to their duties
as your managers.
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d. An organization other than a partnership,
joint venture or limited liability company,
you are an insured. Your "executive o f -
ficers" and directors are insureds, but only
with respect to their duties as your o f -
f icers or directors. Your stockholders are
also insureds, but only with respect to
their liability as stockholders.

e. A trust, you are an insured. Your trustees
are also insureds, but only with respect to
their duties as trustees.

2. Each o f the fol lowing is also an insured:

a. Your "volunteer workers" only while pe r -
forming duties related to the conduct o f
your business, or your "employees," other
than either your "executive off icers" (if
you are an organization other than a par t -
nership, joint venture or limited liability
company) or your managers (if you are a
limited liability company), but only f o r acts
within the scope o f their employment by
you or while performing duties related to
the conduct o f your business. However,
none o f these "employees" or "volunteer
workers" are insureds for:

(1) "Bodily injury" or "personal and ad-
vertising injury":

(a) to you, to your partners or mem-
bers (if you are a partnership or
joint venture), to your members
(if you are a limited liability c om -
pany), to a co-"employee" while
in the course o f his or her em -
ployment or performing duties
related to the conduct o f your
business, or to your other "volun-
teer workers" while performing
duties related to the conduct o f
your business;

(b) to the spouse, child, parent,
brother or sister o f that co - " em -
ployee" or "volunteer worker" as
a consequence o f paragraph (1)(a)
above;

(c) f o r which there is any obligation
to share damages with or repay
someone else who must pay

damages because o f the injury
described in paragraph (1)(a) or (b)
above; or

(d) arising out o f his or her providing
or failing to provide professional
health care services.

(2) "Property damage" to property:

(a) owned, occupied or used by;

(b) rented to, in the care, custody or
control of , or over which physical
control is being exercised f o r any
purpose by;

you, any o f your "employees", "volun-
teer workers", any partner or member
(if you are a partnership or joint ven-
ture), or any member (if you are a
limited liability company).

b. Any person (other than your "employee" or
"volunteer worker"), or any organization
while acting as your real estate manager.

c. Any person or organization having proper
temporary custody o f your property i f
you die, but only:

(1) with respect to liability arising out o f
the maintenance or use o f that p r op -
erty; and

(2) until your legal representative has been
appointed.

d. Your legal representative i f you die, but
only with respect to duties as such. That
representative will have all your rights and
duties under this Coverage Part.

3. Any organization you newly acquire or form,
other than a partnership, joint venture or
limited liability company, and over which you
maintain ownership or majority interest, will
qualify as a named insured i f there is no other
similar insurance available to that organization.
However:

a. coverage under this provision is afforded
only until the 90th day after you acquire
or fo rm the organization or the end o f the
policy period, whichever is earlier;
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b. Coverage A does not apply to "bodily i n -
jury" or "property damage" that occurred
before you acquired or formed the o r -
ganization; and

c. Coverage B does not apply to "personal
and advertising injury" arising out o f an
offense committed before you acquired
or formed the organization.

No person or organization is an insured with r e -
spect to the conduct o f any current or past par t -
nership, joint venture or limited liability company
that is not shown as a named insured in the Dec -
larations.

SECTION III - LIMITS OF INSURANCE

1. The Limits o f Insurance shown in the Declara-
tions and the rules below f ix the most we will
pay regardless o f the number of:

a. insureds;

b. claims made or "suits" brought; or

c. persons or organizations making claims or
bringing "suits."

2. The General Aggregate Limit is the most we
will pay f o r the sum of:

a. medical expenses under Coverage C;

b. damages under Coverage A , except dam-
ages because o f "bodily injury" or "p rop -
erty damage" included in the "products-
completed operations hazard"; and

c. damages under Coverage B.

3. The Products-Completed Operations Aggre-
gate Limit is the most we will pay under Cov -
erage A f o r damages because o f "bodily i n -
jury" and "property damage" included in the
"products-completed operations hazard".

4. Subject to paragraph 2. above, the Personal
and Advertising Injury Limit is the most we will
pay under Coverage B f o r the sum o f all
damages because o f all "personal and adver-
tising injury" sustained by any one person or
organization.

5. Subject to paragraph 2. or 3. above, which-
ever applies, the Each Occurrence Limit is the
most we will pay f o r the sum of:

a. damages under Coverage A ; and

b. medical expenses under Coverage C

because o f all "bodily injury" and "property
damage" arising out o f any one "occurrence".

6. Subject to paragraph 5. above, the Damage to
Premises Rented to You Limit is the most we
will pay under Coverage A f o r damages be -
cause o f "property damage" to any one prem-
ises, while rented to you, or in the case o f
damage by fire, while rented to you or t em-
porarily occupied by you with permission o f
the owner.

7. Subject to paragraph 5. above, the Medical
Expense Limit is the most we will pay under
Coverage C f o r all medical expenses because
o f "bodily injury" sustained by any one person.

The Limits o f Insurance o f this Coverage Part
apply separately to each consecutive annual p e -
riod and to any remaining period o f less than 12
months, starting with the beginning o f the policy
period shown in the Declarations, unless the po l i -
cy period is extended after issuance f o r an addi-
tional period o f less than 12 months. In that case,
the additional period will be deemed part o f the
last preceding period f o r purposes o f determin-
ing the Limits o f Insurance.

SECTION IV - COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABIL-
ITY CONDITIONS

1. Bankruptcy

Bankruptcy or insolvency o f the Insured or o f
the Insured's estate will not relieve us o f our
obligations under this Coverage Part.

2. Duties in the Event of Occurrence, Offense,
Claim or Suit

a. You must see to it that we are notified as
soon as practicable o f an "occurrence" or
an offense which may result in a claim. To
the extent possible, notice should include:

(1) how, when and where the "occur -
rence" or offense took place;
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(2) the names and addresses o f any in -
jured persons and witnesses; and

(3) the nature and location o f any injury or
damage arising out o f the "occurrence"
or offense.

b. I f a claim is made or "suit" is brought
against any insured, you must:

(1) immediately record the specifics o f
the claim or "suit" and the date r e -
ceived; and

(2) notify us as soon as practicable.

You must see to it that we receive written
notice o f the claim or "suit" as soon as
practicable.

c. You and any other involved insured must:

(1) immediately send us copies o f any de -
mands, notices, summonses or legal
papers received in connection with the
claim or "suit";

(2) authorize us to obtain records and
other information;

(3) cooperate with us in the investigation
or settlement o f the claim or defense
against the "suit"; and

(4) assist us, upon our request, in the en -
forcement o f any right against any
person or organization which may be
liable to the Insured because o f injury
or damage to which this insurance may
also apply.

d. No insured will, except at that Insured's
own cost, voluntarily make a payment, as -
sume any obligation, or incur any expense,
other than f o r f i rst aid, without our con -
sent.

3. Legal Action Against Us

No person or organization has a right under
this Coverage Part:

a. to join us as a party or otherwise bring us
into a "suit" asking f o r damages f rom an
insured; or

b. to sue us on this Coverage Part unless all
o f its terms have been fully complied with.

A person or organization may sue us to r e -
cover on an agreed settlement or on a final
judgment against an insured; but we will not
be liable f o r damages that are not payable
under the terms o f this Coverage Part or that
are in excess o f the applicable Limit o f Insur-
ance. An agreed settlement means a sett le-
ment and release o f liability signed by us, the
Insured and the claimant or the claimant's legal
representative.

4. Other Insurance

I f other valid and collectible insurance is avail-
able to the Insured f o r a loss we cover under
Coverages A or B o f this Coverage Part, our
obligations are limited as follows:

a. Primary Insurance

This insurance is primary except when
paragraph b. below applies. I f this insur-
ance is primary, our obligations are not
affected unless any o f the other insurance
is also primary. Then, we will share with all
that other insurance by the method de -
scribed in paragraph c. below.

b. Excess Insurance

(1) This insurance is excess over:

(a) Any o f the other insurance,
whether primary, excess, cont in-
gent or on any other basis:

(i) that is Fire, Extended Cov -
erage, Builder's Risk, Installa-
tion Risk or similar coverage
f o r "your work";

(ii) that is Fire insurance f o r
premises rented to you or
temporarily occupied by you
with permission o f the own -
er;

(iii) that is insurance purchased
by you to cover your liability
as a tenant f o r "property
damage" to premises rented
to you or temporarily occu -
pied by you with permission
o f the owner; or
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(iv) i f the loss arises out o f the
maintenance or use o f a i r -
craft, "autos" or watercraft
to the extent not subject to
exclusion g. o f SECTION I -
COVERAGE A - Bodily In -
jury and Property Damage
Liability.

(b) Any other primary insurance
available to you covering liability
f o r damages arising out o f the
premises or operations, or the
products and completed ope r -
ations, f o r which you have been
added as an additional insured.

(2) When this insurance is excess, we will
have no duty under Coverages A or B
to defend the Insured against any "suit"
i f any other insurer has a duty to de -
fend the Insured against that "suit." I f
no other insurer defends, we will un -
dertake to do so, but we will be en -
titled to the Insured's rights against all
those other insurers.

(3) When this insurance is excess over
other insurance, we will pay only our
share o f the amount o f the loss, i f any,
that exceeds the sum of:

(a) the total amount that all such o t h -
er insurance would pay f o r the
loss in the absence o f this insur-
ance; and

(b) the total o f all deductible and
self- insured amounts under all
that other insurance.

(4) We will share the remaining loss, i f
any, with any other insurance that is
not described in this Excess Insur-
ance Provision and was not bought
specifically to apply in excess o f the
Limits o f Insurance shown in the Dec -
larations o f this Coverage Part.

c. Method of Sharing

I f all o f the other insurance permits con -
tribution by equal shares, we will fo l low
this method also. Under this approach each
insurer contributes equal amounts until it

has paid its applicable Limit o f Insurance
or none o f the loss remains, whichever
comes first.

I f any o f the other insurance does not
permit contribution by equal shares, we
will contribute by limits. Under this meth-
od, each insurer's share is based on the
ratio o f its applicable Limit o f Insurance to
the total applicable Limits o f Insurance o f
all insurers.

5. Premium Audit

a. We will compute all premiums fo r this
Coverage Part in accordance with our
rules and rates.

b. Premium shown in this Coverage Part as
advance premium is a deposit premium
only. At the close o f each audit period we
will compute the earned premium fo r that
period and send notice to the f i rst Named
Insured. The due date f o r audit and r e t -
rospective premiums is the date shown as
the due date on the bill. I f the sum o f the
advance and audit premiums paid f o r the
policy period is greater than the earned
premium, we will return the excess to the
f i rst Named Insured.

c. The f i rst Named Insured must keep
records o f the information we need f o r
premium computation, and send us copies
at such times as we may request.

6. Representations

By accepting this Policy, you agree:

a. the statements in the Declarations are ac -
curate and complete;

b. those statements are based upon repre -
sentations you made to us; and

c. we have issued this Policy in reliance upon
your representations.

7. Separation of Insureds

Except with respect to the Limits o f Insur-
ance, and any rights or duties specifically as -
signed in this Coverage Part to the f i rst
Named Insured, this insurance applies:
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a. as i f each named insured were the only
named insured; and

b. separately to each insured against whom
claim is made or "suit" is brought.

8. Transfer of Rights of Recovery Against
Others to Us

I f the Insured has rights to recover all or part
o f any payment we have made under this
Coverage Part, those rights are transferred to
us. The Insured must do nothing after loss to
impair them. At our request, the Insured will
bring "suit" or transfer those rights to us and
help us enforce them.

9. When We Do Not Renew

I f we decide not to renew this Coverage Part,
we will mail or deliver to the f i rst Named
Insured shown in the Declarations written n o -
tice o f the nonrenewal not less than 30 days
before the expiration date.

I f notice is mailed, p roo f o f mailing will be
sufficient p roo f o f notice.

SECTION V - DEFINITIONS

1. "Advertisement" means a notice that is
broadcast or published to the general public
or specific market segments about your
goods, products or services f o r the purpose
o f attracting customers or supporters. For the
purposes o f this definition:

a. notices that are published include material
placed on the Internet or on similar e lec-
tronic means o f communication; and

b. regarding web sites, only that part o f a
web site that is about your goods, p r o -
ducts or services f o r the purposes o f
attracting customers or supporters is
considered an advertisement.

2. "Auto" means:

a. a land motor vehicle, trailer or semitrailer
designed f o r travel on public roads, i n -
cluding any attached machinery or equip-
ment; or

b. any other land vehicle that is subject to a
compulsory or financial responsibility law
or other motor vehicle insurance law
where it is licensed or principally garaged.

However, "auto" does not include "mobile
equipment."

3. "Bodily injury" means bodily injury, sickness
or disease sustained by a person, including
death resulting f rom any o f these at any time.

4. "Coverage territory" means:

a. the United States o f America (including its
territories and possessions), Puerto Rico
and Canada;

b. international waters or airspace, but only i f
the injury or damage occurs in the course
o f travel or transportation between any
places included in paragraph a. above; or

c. all other parts o f the world i f the injury or
damage arises out of:

(1) goods or products made or sold by
you in the territory described in para-
graph a. above;

(2) the activities o f a person whose home
is in the territory described in para-
graph a. above, but is away f o r a short
time on your business; or

(3) "personal and advertising injury" o f -
fenses that take place through the In-
ternet or similar electronic means o f
communication;

provided the Insured's responsibility to pay
damages is determined in a "suit" on the me r -
its, in the territory described in paragraph a.
above or in a settlement we agree to.

5. "Employee" includes a "leased worker". "Em-
ployee" does not include a "temporary wo r k -
er".

6. "Executive officer" means a person holding
any o f the of f icer positions created by your
charter, constitution, bylaws or any other
similar governing document.
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7. "Hostile fire" means one which becomes un-
controllable or breaks out f rom where it was
intended to be.

8. "Impaired property" means tangible p r op -
erty, other than "your product" or "your
work", that cannot be used or is less useful
because:

a. it incorporates "your product" or "your
work" that is known or thought to be de -
fective, deficient, inadequate or danger-
ous; or

b. you have failed to fulfi l l the terms o f a
contract or agreement;

i f such property can be restored to use by
the repair, replacement, adjustment or remov-
al o f "your product" or "your work" or your
fulfilling the terms o f the contract or agree-
ment.

9. "Insured contract" means:

a. a contract f o r a lease o f premises. How -
ever, that portion o f the contract f o r a
lease o f premises that indemnifies any
person or organization f o r damage by f i re
to premises while rented to you or t em-
porarily occupied by you with permission
o f the owner is not an "insured contract";

b. a sidetrack agreement;

c. any easement or license agreement, e x -
cept in connection with construction or
demolition operations on or within 50 feet
o f a railroad;

d. an obligation, as required by ordinance, to
indemnify a municipality, except in con -
nection with work f o r a municipality;

e. an elevator maintenance agreement;

f. that part o f any other contract or agree-
ment pertaining to your business (including
an indemnification o f a municipality in
connection with work performed f o r a
municipality) under which you assume the
tor t liability o f another party to pay f o r
"bodily injury" or "property damage" to a
third person or organization. Tort liability
means a liability that would be imposed by
law in the absence o f any contract or
agreement.

Paragraph f. does not include that part o f
any contract or agreement:

(1) that indemnifies a railroad f o r "bodily
injury" or "property damage" arising
out o f construction or demolition o p -
erations, within 50 feet o f any railroad
property and affecting any railroad
bridge or trestle, tracks, road-beds,
tunnel, underpass or crossing;

(2) that indemnifies an architect, engineer
or surveyor f o r injury or damage ar is-
ing out of:

(a) preparing, approving, or failing to
prepare or approve, maps, shop
drawings, opinions, reports, su r -
veys, field orders, change orders
or drawings and specifications; or

(b) giving directions or instructions,
or failing to give them, i f that is
the primary cause o f the injury or
damage; or

(3) under which the Insured, i f an archi-
tect, engineer or surveyor, assumes l i -
ability f o r an injury or damage arising
out o f the Insured's rendering or fa i l -
ure to render professional services,
including those listed in (2) above and
supervisory, inspection, architectural
or engineering activities.

10. "Leased worker" means a person leased to
you by a labor leasing f i rm under an agree-
ment between you and the labor leasing firm,
to perform duties related to the conduct o f
your business. "Leased worker" does not i n -
clude a "temporary worker."

11. "Loading or unloading" means the handling
o f property:

a. after it is moved f rom the place where it
is accepted f o r movement into or onto an
aircraft, watercraft or "auto";

b. while it is in or on an aircraft, watercraft
or "auto"; or

c. while it is being moved f rom an aircraft,
watercraft or "auto" to the place where it
is finally delivered;
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but "loading or unloading" does not include the
movement o f property by means o f a me -
chanical device, other than a hand truck, that is
not attached to the aircraft, watercraft or
"auto".

12. "Mobile equipment" means any o f the f o l -
lowing types o f land vehicles, including any
attached machinery or equipment:

a. bulldozers, farm machinery, fork l i f ts and
other vehicles designed f o r use principally
o f f public roads;

b. vehicles maintained f o r use solely on or
next to premises you own or rent;

c. vehicles that travel on crawler treads;

d. vehicles, whether self-propel led or not,
maintained primarily to provide mobility to
permanently mounted:

(1) power cranes, shovels, loaders, d ig -
gers or drills; or

(2) road construction or resurfacing
equipment such as graders, scrapers
or rollers;

e. vehicles not described in paragraph a., b.,
c. or d. above that are not self-propel led
and are maintained primarily to provide
mobility to permanently attached equip-
ment o f the fol lowing types:

(1) air compressors, pumps and gener-
ators, including spraying, welding,
building cleaning, geophysical explora-
tion, lighting and well servicing equip-
ment; or

(2) cherry pickers and similar devices
used to raise or lower workers;

f. vehicles not described in paragraph a., b.,
c. or d. above maintained primarily f o r
purposes other than the transportation o f
persons or cargo.

However, self-propel led vehicles with the
fol lowing types o f permanently attached
equipment are not "mobile equipment" but
will be considered "autos":

(1) equipment designed primarily for:

(a) snow removal;

(b) road maintenance, but not con -
struction or resurfacing; or

(c) street cleaning;

(2) cherry pickers and similar devices
mounted on automobile or truck chas-
sis and used to raise or lower wo r k -
ers; and

(3) air compressors, pumps and gener-
ators, including spraying, welding,
building cleaning, geophysical explora-
tion, lighting and well servicing equip-
ment.

However, "mobile equipment" does not include
any land vehicles that are subject to a com -
pulsory or financial responsibility law or other
motor vehicle insurance law where it is l i -
censed or principally garaged. Land vehicles
subject to a compulsory or financial respon-
sibility law or other motor vehicle insurance
law are considered "autos".

13. "Occurrence" means an accident, including
continuous or repeated exposure to substan-
tially the same general harmful conditions.

14. "Personal and advertising injury" means in -
jury, including consequential "bodily injury,"
arising out o f one or more o f the fol lowing
offenses:

a. false arrest, detention or imprisonment;

b. malicious prosecution;

c. the wrongful eviction from, wrongful en -
try into, or invasion o f the right o f private
occupancy o f a room, dwelling or p rem-
ises that a person occupies, committed by
or on behalf o f its owner, landlord or
lessor;

d. oral or written publication, in any manner,
o f material that slanders or libels a person
or organization or disparages a person's
or organization's goods, products or se r -
vices;
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e. oral or written publication, in any manner,
o f material that violates a person's right o f
privacy;

f. the use o f another's advertising idea in
your "advertisement"; or

g. infringing upon another's copyright, trade
dress or slogan in your "advertisement".

15. "Pollutants" mean any solid, liquid, gaseous
or thermal irritant or contaminant, including
smoke, vapor, soot, fumes, acids, alkalis,
chemicals and waste. Waste includes materials
to be recycled, reconditioned or reclaimed.

16. "Products-completed operations hazard":

a. Includes all "bodily injury" and "property
damage" occurring away f rom premises
you own or rent and arising out o f "your
product" or "your work" except:

(1) products that are still in your physical
possession; or

(2) work that has not yet been completed
or abandoned. However, "your work"
will be deemed completed at the earl i-
est o f the fol lowing times:

(a) When all o f the work called f o r in
your contract has been complet -
ed.

(b) When all o f the work to be done
at the job site has been com -
pleted i f your contract calls f o r
work at more than one job site.

(c) When that part o f the work done
at a job site has been put to its
intended use by any person or
organization other than another
contractor or subcontractor
working on the same project.

Work that may need service, main-
tenance, correction, repair or replace-
ment, but which is otherwise com -
plete, will be treated as completed.

b. Does not include "bodily injury" or "p rop -
erty damage" arising out of:

(1) the transportation o f property, unless
the injury or damage arises out o f a
condition in or on a vehicle not owned
or operated by you, and that condition
was created by the "loading or un -
loading" o f that vehicle by any insured;

(2) the existence o f tools, uninstalled
equipment or abandoned or unused
materials; or

(3) products or operations f o r which the
classification, listed in the Declarations
or in a policy Schedule, states that
products-completed operations are
subject to the General Aggregate Limit.

17. "Property damage" means:

a. physical injury to tangible property, i n -
cluding all resulting loss o f use o f that
property. All such loss o f use shall be
deemed to occur at the time o f the phys-
ical injury that caused it; or

b. loss o f use o f tangible property that is not
physically injured. All such loss o f use
shall be deemed to occur at the time o f
the "occurrence" that caused it.

For the purposes o f this insurance, electronic
data is not tangible property.

As used in this definition, electronic data
means information, facts or programs stored
as or on, created or used on, or transmitted
to or f rom computer software, including sys -
tems and applications software, hard or f l o p -
py disks, CD-ROMs, tapes, drives, cells, data
processing devices or any other media which
are used with electronically controlled equip-
ment.

18. "Suit" means a civil proceeding in which
damages because o f "bodily injury", "property
damage" or "personal and advertising injury" to
which this insurance applies are alleged. "Suit"
includes:

a. an arbitration proceeding in which such
damages are claimed and to which the In-
sured must submit or does submit with
our consent; or
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b. any other alternative dispute resolution
proceeding in which such damages are
claimed and to which the Insured submits
with our consent.

19. "Temporary worker" means a person who is
furnished to you to substitute f o r a permanent
"employee" on leave or to meet seasonal or
short - term workload conditions.

20. "Volunteer worker" means a person who is
not your "employee", and who donates his or
her work and acts at the direction o f and
within the scope o f duties determined by you,
and is not paid a fee, salary or other c om -
pensation by you or anyone else f o r their
work performed f o r you.

21. "Your product":

a. Means:

(1) any goods or products, other than real
property, manufactured, sold, handled,
distributed or disposed o f by:

(a) you;

(b) others trading under your name;
or

(c) a person or organization whose
business or assets you have ac -
quired; and

(2) containers (other than vehicles), ma-
terials, parts or equipment furnished in
connection with such goods or p r o -
ducts.

b. Includes:

(1) warranties or representations made at
any time with respect to the fitness,
quality, durability, performance or use
o f "your product"; and

(2) the providing o f or failure to provide
warnings or instructions.

c. Does not include vending machines or
other property rented to or located f o r
the use o f others but not sold.

22. "Your work":

a. Means:

(1) work or operations performed by you
or on your behalf; and

(2) materials, parts or equipment furnished
in connection with such work or o p -
erations.

b. Includes:

(1) warranties or representations made at
any time with respect to the fitness,
quality, durability, performance or use
o f "your work"; and

(2) the providing o f or failure to provide
warnings or instructions.
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CG 75 19
(Ed. 12 07)

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS LIABILITY COVERAGE FORM
EXCLUDING FIDUCIARY LIABILITY

Various provisions o f this Policy restrict coverage. Read the entire policy carefully to determine rights,
duties, and what is and is not covered.

Throughout this Policy the words "you" and "your" refer to the Named Insured shown in the Declarations.
The words "we," "us" and "our" refer to the company providing this insurance.

The word "insured" means any person or organization qualifying as such under SECTION II - WHO IS AN
INSURED.

Other words and phrases that appear in quotation marks have special meaning. Refer to SECTION VI -
DEFINITIONS.

SECTION I - EMPLOYEE BENEFITS COVERAGES

1. Insuring Agreement

a. We will pay those sums that the Insured
becomes legally obligated to pay as dam-
ages sustained by an employee, former
employee, prospective employee, or the
beneficiaries or legal representatives
thereof, and caused by any "negligent act,
error or omission" o f the Insured or any
other person f o r whose acts you are l e -
gally liable in the "administration" o f your
"employee benefit program."

This insurance applies to any "negligent
act, error, or omission" which occurs in
the "coverage territory" and during the
policy period.

We will have the right and duty to defend
any "suit" seeking those damages. How -
ever, we will have no duty to defend the
Insured against any "suit" seeking damages
f o r any "negligent act, error, or omission"
to which this insurance does not apply.
We may, at our discretion, investigate any
"negligent act, error, or omission" and se t -
tle any "claim" or "suit" that may result. But:

(1) the amount we pay f o r damages is
limited as described in SECTION III -
LIMITS OF INSURANCE.

(2) our right and duty to defend end when
we have used up the applicable Limit
o f Insurance in the payment o f judg-
ments or settlements under this Cov -
erage Part.

No other obligation or liability to pay sums
or perform acts or services is covered
unless explicitly provided f o r under Sup-
plemental Payments.

2. Exclusions

This insurance does not apply to:

a. Damages actually or allegedly arising out
o f any intentional, dishonest, fraudulent,
criminal or malicious act, error, or omis -
sion, committed by any insured, including,
but not limited to, the willful violation o f
any statute.

b. Damages claimed f o r any "bodily injury,"
"property damage" or "personal and ad-
vertising injury."

c. Damages actually or allegedly arising out
o f any breach o f or failure to perform any
contract by any insured or insurer.

d. Damages arising out o f an insufficiency o f
funds to meet any obligations under any
plan included in an "employee benefit p r o -
gram."
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e. Damages actually or allegedly arising out
o f any:

(1) failure o f any investment to perform
as predicted, expected, anticipated,
advertised, or desired;

(2) advice given to any person with r e -
spect to that person's decision to pa r -
ticipate or not to participate in any
plan included in the "employee benefit
program";

(3) error in providing information on past
performance o f any investment vehi-
cle; or

(4) investment or non-investment o f
funds.

f. Damages arising out o f your failure to
comply with the mandatory provisions o f
any law concerning workers' compensa-
tion, employment compensation insurance,
social security or disability benefits law, or
any similar law.

g. Damages f o r which the Insured is liable
because o f liability imposed on a fiduciary
by the Employee Retirement Income Se -
curity Act o f 1974, as now or hereafter
amended, or by any similar federal, state
or local law.

h. Any "claim" arising f rom any failure to pay
an employee benefit, to the extent such
employee benefit is payable f rom applica-
ble accrued funds or other collectible i n -
surance, with the reasonable e f fo r t and
cooperation o f the Insured.

i. Any tax, fine, or penalty, including, but not
limited to, those imposed under the Inter-
nal Revenue Code or any similar state or
local law.

j. Damages actually or allegedly arising out
o f wrongful termination o f employment,
any unlawful discrimination, or any other
employment related practice.

Supplementary Payments

We will pay, with respect to any "claim" we in -
vestigate or settle, or any "suit" against an insured
we defend:

1. All expenses we incur.

2. The cost o f bonds to release attachments, but
only f o r bond amounts within the applicable
Limit o f Insurance. We do not have to furnish
these bonds.

3. All reasonable expenses incurred by the In-
sured at our request to assist us in the inves-
tigation or defense o f the "claim" or "suit,"
including actual loss o f earnings up to $250 a
day because o f time o f f f rom work.

4. All court costs taxed against the Insured in the
"suit." However, these payments do not i n -
clude attorneys' fees or attorneys' expenses
taxed against the Insured.

5. Prejudgment interest awarded against the In-
sured on that part o f the judgment we pay. I f
we make an o f f e r to pay the applicable Limit
o f Insurance, we will not pay any prejudgment
interest based on that period o f time after we
made the of fer .

6. All interest on the full amount o f any judgment
that accrues after entry o f the judgment and
before we have paid, o f fered to pay, or de -
posited in court the part o f the judgment that
is within the applicable Limit o f Insurance.

These payments will not reduce the Limits o f
Insurance.

SECTION II - WHO IS AN INSURED

1. I f you are designated in the Declarations as:

a. An individual, you and your spouse are
insureds, but only with respect to the
conduct o f a business o f which you are
the sole owner.

b. A partnership or joint venture, you are an
insured. Your members, your partners and
their spouses are also insureds, but only
with respect to the conduct o f your busi-
ness.

c. A limited liability company, you are an in -
sured. Your members are also insureds,
but only with respect to the conduct o f
your business. Your managers are insur-
eds, but only with respect to their duties
as your managers.

d. An organization other than a partnership,
joint venture, or limited liability company,
you are an insured. Your "executive o f -
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ficers" and directors are insureds, but only
with respect to their duties as your o f -
f icers or directors. Your stockholders are
also insureds, but only with respect to
their liability as stockholders.

e. A trust, you are an insured. Your trustees
are also insureds, but only with respect to
their duties as trustees.

2. The fol lowing are also insureds:

a. Each o f your "employees" who is or was
authorized to administer your "employee
benefit program," but only with respect to
their "administration" o f your "employee
benefit program."

b. Any person, organization, or "employee"
having proper temporary authorization to
administer your "employee benefit p r o -
gram" i f you die, but only with respect to
their "administration" o f your "employee
benefit program" and only until your legal
representative is appointed.

c. Your legal representative i f you die, but
only with respect to duties as such. That
representative will have all your rights and
duties under this Coverage Form.

d. Any organization you newly acquire or
form, other than a partnership, joint ven-
ture, or limited liability company, and over
which you maintain ownership or majority
interest, will qualify as a named insured i f
there is no other similar insurance available
to that organization. However:

(1) coverage under this provision is a f -
forded only until the 90th day after
you acquire or fo rm the organization
or the end o f the policy period,
whichever is earlier;

(2) coverage does not apply to "negligent
acts, errors, or omissions" that o c -
curred before you acquired or formed
the organization:

No person or organization is an insured with
respect to the conduct o f any current or past
partnership, joint venture or limited liability
company that is not shown as a named insured
in the Declarations.

SECTION III - LIMITS OF INSURANCE

1. The Limits o f Insurance shown in the Declara-
tions and the rules below f ix the most we will
pay regardless o f the number of:

a. insureds;

b. "claims" made or "suits" brought;

c. persons or organizations making "claims"
or bringing "suits";

d. "negligent acts, errors, or omissions"; or

e. benefits included in your "employee bene-
f i t program."

2. The Limits o f Liability shown in the Declara-
tions applicable to Each Claim is, subject to
the fol lowing provision respecting Aggregate,
the most we will pay f o r all damages arising
out o f any covered "claim."

The Limit o f Liability shown in the Declarations
as Aggregate is the most we will pay f o r the
sum o f all damages on account o f all "claims."

The limits o f this Coverage Part apply sepa-
rately to each consecutive annual period and
to any remaining period o f less than 12
months, starting with the beginning o f the
policy period shown in the Declarations, un -
less the policy period is extended after issu-
ance f o r an additional period o f less than 12
months. In that case, the additional period will
be deemed part o f the last preceding period
f o r purposes o f determining the Limits o f
Insurance.

SECTION IV - DEDUCTIBLE

1. Our obligation to pay damages on your behalf
applies only to the amount o f damages in
excess o f the deductible amount stated in the
Declarations. The Limits o f Insurance shall not
be reduced by the amount o f the deductible.

2. The terms o f this insurance, including those
with respect to:

(a) our right and duty to defend any "suits"
seeking those damages; and

(b) your duties, and the duties o f any other
involved insured, in the event o f a "neg-
ligent act, error, or omission," "claim," or
"suit";
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apply irrespective o f the application o f the
deductible amount.

3. We may pay any part or all o f the deductible
amount to ef fec t settlement o f any "claim" or
"suit" and, upon notification o f the action tak-
en, you shall promptly reimburse us f o r such
part o f the deductible amount as has been
paid by us.

SECTION V - EMPLOYEE BENEFITS LIABILITY
CONDITIONS

1. Bankruptcy

Bankruptcy or insolvency o f the Insured, or o f
the Insured's estate, will not relieve us o f our
obligations under this Coverage Part.

2. Duties in the Event of a "Claim" or "Suit"

a. You and any other involved insured must
see to it that we are notified as soon as
practicable o f any "negligent act, error, or
omission" which may result in a "claim." To
the extent possible, notice should include:

(1) how, when and where the "negligent
act, error, or omission" took place;

(2) the names and addresses o f any in -
jured persons and witnesses; and

(3) the nature o f any injury or damage
arising out o f the "negligent act, error,
or omission."

b. I f a "claim" is received by an insured, or a
"suit" is brought against any insured, you
must:

(1) immediately record the specifics o f
the "claim" or "suit" and the date r e -
ceived; and

(2) notify us as soon as practicable.

You and any other involved insured must
see to it that we receive written notice o f
the "claim" or "suit" as soon as practicable.

c. You and any other involved insured must:

(1) immediately send us copies o f any de -
mands, notices, summonses, or legal
papers received in connection with the
"claim" or "suit";

(2) authorize us to obtain records and
other information;

(3) cooperate with us in the investigation,
settlement, or defense o f the "claim"
or "suit"; and

(4) assist us, upon our request, in the en -
forcement o f any right against any
person or organization which may be
liable to the Insured because o f injury
or damage to which this insurance may
also apply.

d. No insured will, except at their own cost,
voluntarily make a payment, assume any
obligation, or incur any expense without
our consent.

3. Legal Action Against Us

No person or organization has a right under
this Coverage Part:

a. to join us as a party or bring us into a
"suit" asking f o r damages f rom an insured;
or

b. to sue us on this Coverage Part unless all
o f its terms have been fully complied with.

A person or organization may sue us to r e -
cover on an agreed settlement or on a final
judgment against an insured, but we will not
be liable f o r damages that are not due under
the terms o f this Coverage Part or that are in
excess o f the Limits o f Insurance. An agreed
settlement means a settlement and release o f
liability signed by us, the Insured, and the
claimant or the claimant's legal agent.

4. Other Insurance

I f other valid and collectible insurance is avail-
able to the Insured f o r a loss we cover under
this Coverage Part, our obligations are limited
as follows:

(a) Primary Insurance

This insurance is primary except when
paragraph b. below applies. I f this insur-
ance is primary, our obligations are not
affected unless any o f the other insurance
is also primary. Then, we will share with all
that other insurance by the method de -
scribed in paragraph c. below.
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(b) Excess Insurance

As respects any additional insured added
to this Policy by attachment o f an en -
dorsement, this insurance is excess over
any other insurance available to that In-
sured that applies on a primary basis to
any "claim," "suit," "negligent act, error, or
omission," or damages to which this Policy
also applies.

When this insurance is excess, we will
have no duty to defend that Insured
against any "suit" i f any other insurer has a
duty to defend the Insured against that
"suit." I f no other insurer defends, we will
undertake to do so, but we will be entitled
to the Insured's rights against all those
other insurers.

When this insurance is excess over other
insurance, we will pay only our share o f
the amount o f the loss, i f any, that e x -
ceeds the sum of:

(1) the total amount that all such other
insurance, would pay f o r the loss in
the absence o f this insurance; and

(2) the total o f all deductible and se l f -
insured amounts under all that other
insurance.

We will share the remaining loss, i f any,
with any other insurance that is not de -
scribed in this Excess Insurance provision
and was not bought specifically to apply in
excess o f the Limits o f Insurance shown
in the Declarations o f this Coverage Part.

(c) Method of Sharing

I f all o f the other insurance permits con -
tribution by equal shares, we will fo l low
this method also. Under this approach,
each insurer contributes equal amounts
until it has paid its applicable Limit o f In-
surance or none o f the loss remains,
whichever comes first.

I f any o f the other insurance does not
permit contribution by equal shares, we
will contribute by limits. Under this meth-
od, each insurer's share is based on the
ratio o f its applicable Limit o f Insurance to
the total applicable Limits o f Insurance o f
all insurers.

5. Premium Audit

a. We will compute all premiums fo r this
endorsement in accordance with our rules
and rates.

b. Premium shown as advance premium is a
deposit premium only. At the close o f
each audit period we will compute the
earned premium fo r that period and send
notice to the f i rst Named Insured. The due
date f o r audit and retrospective premiums
is the date shown as the due date on the
bill.

I f the sum o f the advance and audit p r e -
miums paid f o r the policy term is greater
than the earned premium, we will return
the excess to the f i rst Named Insured.

c. The f i rst Named Insured must keep
records o f the information we need f o r
premium computation, and send us copies
at such times as we may request.

6. Representations

By accepting this Policy, you agree:

a. the statements in the Declarations are ac -
curate and complete;

b. those statements are based upon repre -
sentations you made to us; and

c. we have issued this Policy in reliance upon
your representations.

7. Separation of Insureds

Except with respect to the Limits o f Insur-
ance, and any rights or duties specifically as -
signed to the f i rst Named Insured, this insur-
ance applies:

a. as i f each named insured were the only
named insured; and

b. separately to each insured against whom
"claim" is made or "suit" is brought.

8. Transfer of Rights of Recovery Against
Others to Us

I f the Insured has rights to recover all or part
o f any payment we have made under this
Coverage Part, those rights are transferred to
us. The Insured must do nothing after loss to
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impair them. At our request, the Insured will
bring "suit" or transfer those rights to us and
help us enforce them.

9. When We Do Not Renew

I f we decide not to renew this Coverage Part,
we will mail or deliver to the f i rst Named
Insured shown in the Declarations written n o -
tice o f the nonrenewal not less than 30 days
before the expiration date.

I f notice is mailed, p roo f o f mailing will be
sufficient p roo f o f notice.

SECTION VI - DEFINITIONS

1. "Administration" means:

a. giving counsel or providing information to
"employees," or to their dependents or
beneficiaries, with respect to the eligibility
f o r or scope o f any "employee benefit
program."

b. interpreting any "employee benefit p r o -
gram";

c. handling records in connection with any
"employee benefit program";

d. effecting enrollment, or continuing, termi -
nating, or canceling any "employee's" pa r -
ticipation in any benefit included in an
"employee benefits program," provided all
such acts are authorized by you.

However, "administration" does not include
handling any payroll deductions.

2. "Advertisement" means a notice that is
broadcast or published to the general public
or specific market segments about your
goods, products, or services f o r the purpose
o f attracting customers or supporters. For the
purposes o f this definition:

a. notices that are published include material
placed on the internet or on similar e lec-
tronic means o f communication; and

b. regarding web sites, only that part o f a
web site that is about your goods, p r o -
ducts, or services f o r the purpose o f a t -
tracting customers or supporters is con -
sidered an advertisement.

3. "Bodily injury" means bodily injury, sickness,
or disease sustained by a person, including
death resulting f rom any o f these at any time.

4. "Cafeteria plans" means plans authorized by
applicable law to allow employees to elect to
pay f o r certain benefits with their own pretax
dollars.

5. "Claim" means any demand made or "suit"
brought, by an "employee" or an "employee's"
dependents or beneficiaries, f o r damages as a
result o f a "negligent act, error, or omission"
in the "administration" o f your "employee
benefit program."

6. "Coverage territory" means the United States
o f America (including its territories and pos -
sessions), Puerto Rico and Canada.

7. "Employee" means a person currently or
formerly employed, on leave o f absence, d is -
abled, or retired. "Employee" includes a "leased
worker." "Employee" does not include a " tem-
porary worker."

8. "Employee benefit program" means a p r o -
gram providing some or all o f the fol lowing
benefits to "employees," whether provided
through a "cafeteria plan" or otherwise:

a. group life insurance; group accident or
health insurance; dental, vision, and hearing
plans; and flexible spending accounts;
provided that (i) no one other than an
"employee" may subscribe to such bene-
f i ts and (ii) such benefits are made gen-
erally available to those "employees" who
satisfy the plan's eligibility requirements;

b. prof i t sharing plans, employee savings
plans, employee stock ownership plans,
pension plans, and stock subscription
plans; provided that (i) no one other than
an "employee" may subscribe to such
benefits and (ii) such benefits are made
generally available to all "employees" who
are eligible f o r such benefits under the
plan;

c. unemployment insurance, social security
benefits, workers' compensation and d is -
ability benefits;

d. vacation plans, including buy and sell p r o -
grams; leave o f absence programs, i n -
cluding those f o r military, maternity, f am -
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ily, and civil leaves; tuition assistance plans;
transportation and health club subsidies;
and

e. any other similar plan designated in the
Declarations or added thereto by en -
dorsement.

9. "Leased Worker" means a person leased to
you by a labor leasing f i rm under an agree-
ment between you and the labor leasing firm,
to perform duties related to the conduct o f
your business. "Leased worker" does not i n -
clude a "temporary worker."

10. "Negligent act, error, or omission" means
the failure to execute a required action, or the
execution o f a mistaken action, committed in
the administration o f the Insured's "employee
benefit program."

11. "Personal and advertising injury," means in -
jury, including consequential "bodily injury,"
arising out o f one or more o f the fol lowing
offenses:

a. false arrest, detention or imprisonment;

b. malicious prosecution;

c. the wrongful eviction from, wrongful en -
try into, or invasion o f the right o f private
occupancy o f a room, dwelling or p rem-
ises that a person occupies, committed by
or on behalf o f its owner, landlord, or
lessor;

d. oral or written publication, in any manner,
o f material that slanders or libels a person
or organization or disparages a person's
or organizations' goods, products, or se r -
vices;

e. oral or written publication, in any manner,
o f material that violates a person's right o f
privacy.

f. the use o f another's advertising idea in
your "advertisement";

g. infringing upon another's copyright, trade
dress, or slogan in your "advertisement."

12. "Property damage" means:

a. physical injury to tangible property, i n -
cluding all resulting loss o f use o f that
property; or

b. loss o f use o f tangible property that is not
physically injured.

For the purposes o f this insurance, e lec-
tronic data is not tangible property.

As used in this definition, electronic data
means information, facts or programs
stored as or on, created or used on, or
transmitted to or f rom computer s o f t -
ware, including systems and applications
software or hardware, hard or f loppy
disks, CD-ROMS, tapes, drives, cells, data
processing devices, or any other media
which are used with electronically con -
trolled equipment.

13. "Suit" means a civil proceeding in which
damages because o f a "negligent act, error, or
omission" to which this insurance applies are
claimed. "Suit" includes:

a. an arbitration proceeding in which such
damages are claimed and to which the In-
sured must submit, or does submit with
our consent; or

b. any other alternative dispute resolution
proceeding in which such damages are
claimed and to which the Insured submits
with our consent.

14. "Temporary worker" means a person who
substitutes f o r a permanent "employee" on
leave, or to meet seasonal or short - term
workload conditions.
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CG 87 10
(Ed. 08 09)

PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY INSURANCE

Various provisions o f this Professional Liability Coverage Part restrict coverage. Read the entire
Coverage Part carefully to determine rights, duties and what is and is not covered.

Throughout this Coverage Part, the words "you" and "your" refer to the Named Insured shown in the
Declarations, and any other person or organization qualifying as a named insured under this Coverage
Part. The words "we," "us," and "our" refer to the Company providing this insurance.

The word "insured" means any person or organization qualifying as such under SECTION III - WHO IS
AN INSURED o f this Coverage Part.

Other words and phrases that appear in quotation marks have special meaning. Refer to SECTION VI -
DEFINITIONS o f this Coverage Part.

SECTION I - PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY COV-
ERAGE

1. Insuring Agreement

a. We will pay those sums the Insured be -
comes legally obligated to pay as "dam-
ages" because o f any act, error, or omis -
sion committed by:

(1) an insured in the rendering o f or fa i l -
ure to render "Professional Services";
or

(2) another person or organization f o r
whom the Named Insured is vicariously
liable, in the course o f that person's or
organization's rendering o f or failure
to render "Professional Services" f o r
or on behalf o f the Named Insured;

as part o f the Named Insured's operations
as a social service, human service, re l i -
gious, educational, or cultural organization.

We will have the right and duty to defend
the Insured against any "suit" seeking those
"damages." However, we will have no duty
to defend the Insured against any "suit"
seeking "damages" f o r any act, error, or
omission to which this insurance does not
apply. We may, at our discretion, investi-
gate and settle any claim or "suit" that may
result. But:

(a) the amount we will pay f o r "damages"
is limited as described in SECTION IV
- LIMITS OF INSURANCE o f this
Coverage Part; and

(b) our right and duty to defend end when
we have used up the applicable Limit
o f Insurance in the payment o f judg-
ments or settlements.

No other obligation or liability to pay sums
or perform acts or services is covered
unless explicitly provided f o r under SEC-
TION II - SUPPLEMENTARY PAYMENTS
o f this Coverage Part.

b. This insurance applies to the "damages"
described in 1.a., above, only if:

(1) the act, error, or omission takes place
in the "coverage territory,"

(2) the act, error, or omission takes place
during the policy period, and

(3) prior to the policy period, no insured
knew that the act, error, or omission
had occurred, in whole or in part. I f
any insured knew, prior to the policy
period, that the act, error, or omission
had occurred, in whole or in part, then
any continuation, change, or resump-
tion o f such act, error, or omission
during or after the policy period will
be deemed to have been known prior
to the policy period.
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c. Any act, error, or omission that occurs
during the policy period and was not, prior
to the policy period, known by any insured
to have occurred, includes any continu-
ation, change or resumption o f that act,
error, or omission after the end o f the
policy period.

d. Any act, error, or omission will be deemed
to have been known to have occurred at
the earliest time when any insured:

(1) reports all, or any part, o f the act,
error, or omission to us or any other
insurer;

(2) receives a written or oral demand or
claim fo r "damages" because o f the
act, error, or omission; or

(3) becomes aware by any other means
that the act, error, or omission has
occurred or has begun to occur.

2. Exclusions

This insurance does not apply to any:

a. "Damages" because o f any liability f o r any
injury, loss, harm, cost, or expense, e x -
pected or intended f rom the standpoint o f
the Insured.

b. "Damages" because o f any liability arising
out o f any criminal or fraudulent act c om -
mitted by or at the direction o f the In-
sured. This exclusion applies regardless of:

(1) whether or not the criminal or f raudu-
lent act constitutes a felony, misde-
meanor, violation, or any other pa r -
ticular type, grade, or level o f offense;
and

(2) whether or not the Insured is p ros -
ecuted for , pleads guilty to, or is con -
victed of , any offense.

c. Administrative hearing, investigation, l icen-
sure proceeding, enforcement proceeding,
or any similar proceeding by any federal,
state, or local governmental, administra-
tive, or regulatory agency.

d. "Damages" because o f any:

(1) Liability assumed by any insured under
any contract or agreement.

(2) Insured's failure to perform or comply
with any duty or requirement under a
contract, express or implied warranty,
or agreement.

This exclusion does not apply to liability
that the Insured would have in the absence
o f the contract or agreement.

e. "Damages" because o f any liability by rea-
son of:

(1) causing or contributing to the intox i -
cation o f any person;

(2) furnishing alcoholic beverages to a
person under the legal drinking age or
under the influence o f alcohol; or

(3) any statute, ordinance, or regulation
relating to the sale, gift, distribution, or
use o f alcoholic beverages.

f. Obligation o f any insured under a workers'
compensation, disability benefits, or un -
employment compensation law, or any
similar law.

g. "Damages" because o f any liability to:

(1) any person, arising out o f any:

(a) refusal to employ that person;

(b) termination o f that person's em -
ployment; or

(c) employment-related practices,
policies, acts, or omissions, i n -
cluding but not limited to coe r -
cion, demotion, evaluation, reas-
signment, discipline, defamation,
harassment, humiliation, or d is -
crimination directed at that pe r -
son; or

(2) the spouse, child, parent, brother, or
sister o f that person as a consequence
o f any employment-related practice
described in (1)(a), (1)(b), o r (1)(c).

This exclusion applies:

(i) whether the injury-causing event de -
scribed in paragraphs (1)(a), (1)(b) or
(1)(c) above occurs before employ-
ment, during employment or after em -
ployment o f that person;
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(ii) whether the Insured may be liable as
an employer or in any other capacity;
and

(iii) to any obligation to share "damages"
with or repay someone else who must
pay "damages" to the "employee" or to
the "employee's" spouse, child, parent,
brother, or sister.

h. "Damages" because o f any liability to:

(1) any "employee" o f the Insured arising
out o f and in the course of:

(a) employment by the Insured; or

(b) performing duties related to the
conduct o f the Insured's business;
or

(2) the spouse, child, parent, brother, or
sister o f that "employee" as a con -
sequence o f paragraphs (1)(a) or (1)(b).

This exclusion applies:

(i) whether the Insured may be liable as
an employer or in any other capacity;
and

(ii) to any obligation to share "damages"
with or repay someone else who must
pay "damages" to the "employee" or to
the "employee's" spouse, child, parent,
brother, or sister.

i. "Damages" because o f any liability o f any
insured to any other insured. This exc lu-
sion does not apply to "damages" f o r harm
to one o f your "volunteer workers."

j. "Damages" because o f any liability arising
out o f any employee benefit plan or se l f -
insured fund, or f o r any amount due under
any fringe benefit or retirement program.

k. "Damages" because o f any liability under
the Employment Retirement Income Secu-
rity Act o f 1974 (as amended) or any
similar federal or state law.

I. "Damages" because o f any:

(1) Liability arising in whole or in part
f rom the actual, alleged, or threatened
discharge, dispersal, seepage, migra-

tion, release, escape, or presence of ,
or exposure to, any "pollutant," f rom
any source, at any location, at any time.

(2) Loss, cost, or expense which would
not have occurred in whole or in part
but f o r any:

(a) request, demand, or order that
any insured or others test for ,
monitor, clean up, remove, con -
tain, treat, detoxify, abate, or
neutralize, or in any way respond
to or assess the ef fects of , any
"pollutant"; or

(b) claim or "suit" by or on behalf o f
any federal, state, or local go v -
ernmental authority because o f
testing for , monitoring, cleaning
up, removing, containing, treating,
detoxifying, abating, or neutraliz-
ing, or in any way responding to
or assessing the ef fects of , any
"pollutant."

m. "Damages" because o f any:

(1) Liability arising in whole or in part
f rom the actual, alleged, or threatened
discharge, dispersal, seepage, migra-
tion, release, escape, inhalation, ab -
sorption, ingestion, or presence of , or
exposure to, lead in any form, f rom
any source, in any location, at any time.

(2) Loss, cost, or expense which would
not have occurred in whole or in part
but f o r any:

(a) request, demand, or order that
any insured or others test for ,
monitor, clean up, remove, con -
tain, treat, detoxify, abate, or
neutralize, or in any way respond
to or assess the ef fects of , lead
in any form, f rom any source, or

(b) claim or "suit" by or on behalf o f
any federal, state, or local go v -
ernmental authority because o f
testing for , monitoring, cleaning
up, removing, containing, treating,
detoxifying, abating, or neutraliz-
ing, or in any way responding to
or assessing the ef fects of , lead
in any form, f rom any source.
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n. "Damages" because o f any:

(1) Liability arising in whole or in part
f rom the actual, alleged, or threatened
discharge, dispersal, seepage, migra-
tion, release, escape, inhalation, ab -
sorption, ingestion, or presence of , or
exposure to, asbestos in any form,
f rom any source, in any location, at
any time.

(2) Loss, cost, or expense which would
not have occurred in whole or in part
but f o r any:

(a) request, demand, or order that
any insured or others test for ,
monitor, clean up, remove, con -
tain, treat, detoxify, abate, or
neutralize, or in any way respond
to or assess the ef fects of , as -
bestos in any form, f rom any
source; or

(b) claim or suit by or on behalf o f
any federal, state, or local go v -
ernmental authority because o f
testing for , monitoring, cleaning
up, removing, containing, treating,
detoxifying, abating, or neutraliz-
ing, or in any way responding to
or assessing the ef fects of , as -
bestos in any form, f rom any
source.

o. "Damages" because o f any:

(1) liability arising in whole or in part f rom
the actual, alleged, or threatened in -
halation of , ingestion of , contact with,
exposure to, existence of , or p res -
ence of , any "fungi" or bacteria on or
within a building or structure, including
its contents, regardless o f whether
any other cause, event, material, or
product contributed concurrently or in
any sequence to such injury or dam-
age; or

(2) loss, cost, or expense which would
not have occurred in whole or part but
f o r any:

(a) request, demand, or order that
any insured or others test for ,
monitor, clean up, remove, con -
tain, treat, detoxify, abate, or
neutralize, or in any way respond

to or assess the ef fects of ,
"fungi" or bacteria in any form,
f rom any source; or

(b) claim or suit by or on behalf o f
any federal, state, or local go v -
ernmental authority because o f
testing for , monitoring, cleaning
up, removing, containing, treating,
detoxifying, abating, or neutraliz-
ing, or in any way responding to
or assessing the ef fects of , any
"fungi" or bacteria, in any form,
f rom any source.

This exclusion does not apply to any
"fungi" or bacteria that are intended to be,
be on, or be contained in, a good or
product intended f o r human consumption
as food.

p. "Damages" because o f any liability arising
out o f the ownership, maintenance, use, or
entrustment to others o f any aircraft,
"auto," or watercraft, whether or not
owned or operated by, or rented or
loaned to, any insured. Use includes o p -
eration and loading or unloading.

This exclusion applies even i f the claim or
"suit" against any insured alleges negli-
gence or other wrongdoing in the super-
vision, hiring, employment, training, or
monitoring o f others by that Insured, i f the
liability arises f rom the ownership, main-
tenance, use, or entrustment to others o f
any aircraft, "auto," or watercraft, whether
or not owned or operated by, or rented
or loaned to, any insured.

q. "Damages" because o f any insured's liabil-
ity to:

(1) any company, corporation, or other
organization, or

(2) any shareholder, owner, or creditor o f
any company, corporation, or other
organization,

o f which that Insured is a director or o f -
ficer, i f such liability arises directly or i n -
directly out o f any act, error, or omission
by any insured, committed in that Insured's
capacity as a director or o f f i cer o f that
company, corporation, or other organiza-
tion. This exclusion applies regardless o f
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whether or not the act, error, or omission
was performed by or on behalf o f the
Named Insured.

r. "Damages" because o f any liability arising
directly or indirectly out of:

(1) service by any insured f o r or as a
member o f any board or committee o f
any organization. This includes, but is
not limited to, any board or committee
relating to peer review, credentialing,
quality assurance, utilization review,
professional discipline, risk manage-
ment, patient or client grievances,
staf f grievances, or professional edu-
cation; or

(2) the activities o f any insured as a p r o -
prietor, superintendent, of f icer, d i rec-
tor, shareholder, manager, or employ-
ee o f any organization other than the
Named Insured; or

(3) any insured's capacity as a fiduciary,
trustee, legal representative, guardian,
banker, creditor, tax preparer, or
lender.

s. "Damages" because o f any liability arising
out o f "Abuse."

t. "Damages" because o f any liability arising
out o f any failure to integrate, segregate,
or desegregate:

(1) student enrollment;

(2) student participation in educational or
extracurricular activities;

(3) busing or other transportation o f s tu -
dents; or

(4) the provision or receipt o f any se r -
vice, accommodation, or benefit;

on the basis o f race, religion, sex, age,
ethnic background, national origin, physical
or mental disability, sexual orientation, or
any other basis prohibited by applicable
law.

u. "Damages" because o f any liability arising
out o f any discrimination, or failure to
discriminate, on account o f race, religion,
sex, age, ethnic background, national o r i -
gin, physical or mental disability, or sexual
orientation, or arising out o f any actual,

threatened, or alleged violation o f any l o -
cal, state, or federal civil rights law, regu-
lation, or ordinance.

SECTION II - SUPPLEMENTARY PAYMENTS

We will pay, with respect to any claim we inves-
tigate or settle, or any "suit" we defend:

1. All expenses we incur.

2. The cost o f bonds to release attachments, but
only f o r bond amounts within the applicable
Limit o f Insurance. We do not have to furnish
these bonds.

3. All reasonable expenses incurred by the In-
sured at our request to assist us in the inves-
tigation or defense o f the claim or "suit," i n -
cluding actual loss o f earnings up to $250 a
day because o f time o f f f rom work.

4. All court costs taxed against the Insured in the
"suit." However, these payments do not i n -
clude attorneys' fees or attorneys' expenses
taxed against the Insured.

5. Prejudgment interest awarded against the In-
sured on that part o f the judgment we pay. I f
we make an o f f e r to pay the applicable Limit
o f Insurance, we will not pay any prejudgment
interest based on that period o f time after the
of fer .

6. All interest on the full amount o f any judgment
that accrues after entry o f the judgment and
before we have paid, o f fered to pay, or de -
posited in court the part o f the judgment that
is within the applicable Limit o f Insurance.

These payments will not reduce the applicable
Limits o f Insurance.

SECTION III - WHO IS AN INSURED

1. I f you are designated in the Declarations as:

a. An individual, you are an insured.

b. A partnership or joint venture, you are an
insured. Your partners or members are
also insureds, but only with respect to
their duties as your partners or members.

c. A limited liability company, you are an in -
sured. Your members are also insureds,
but only with respect to the conduct o f
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your business. Your managers are insur-
eds, but only with respect to their duties
as your managers.

d. An organization other than a partnership,
joint venture or limited liability company,
you are an insured. Your "executive o f -
ficers," members o f your board o f t rus t -
ees, and your directors, governors, and
stockholders are also insureds, but only
with respect to their duties as your "ex -
ecutive off icers," members o f your board
o f trustees, and your directors, gover -
nors, and stockholders.

e. A trust, you are an insured. Your trustees
are also insureds, but only with respect to
their duties as your trustees.

2. Each o f the fol lowing is also an insured:

a. Your "employees," other than either your
"executive off icers" (if you are an organi-
zation other than a partnership, joint ven-
ture, or limited liability company) or your
managers (if you are a limited liability
company), but only while performing du -
ties as such f o r the Named Insured.

b. Your "volunteer workers," but only while
performing duties related to the conduct
o f your business.

However, no "employee" or "volunteer w o r k -
er" is an insured f o r any liability:

(1) to you, to your partners or members (if
you are a partnership or joint venture), to
your members (if you are a limited liability
company), to any o f your "employees"
while they are in the course o f their em -
ployment or performing duties relating to
the conduct o f your business, or to any o f
your "volunteer workers" while they are
performing duties relating to the conduct
o f your business;

(2) to the spouse, child, parent, brother, or
sister o f any "employee" or "volunteer
worker" as a consequence o f (1), above;

(3) f o r which there is any obligation to share
damages or repay someone else who
must pay damages because o f a liability
described in (1) or (2), above.

No person or organization is an insured with r e -
spect to the conduct o f any current or past par t -

nership, joint venture, or limited liability company
that is not shown as a named insured in the Dec -
larations.

SECTION IV - LIMITS OF INSURANCE

1. The Limits o f Insurance shown in the Declara-
tions and the rules below f ix the most we will
pay regardless o f the number of:

a. insureds;

b. claims made or "suits" brought;

c. persons or organizations making claims or
bringing "suits"; or

d. coverage parts or insuring agreements in
this Policy.

2. Subject to subparagraph c. o f SECTION V -
CONDITIONS, 4. Other Insurance, the A g -
gregate Limit shown in the Professional L i -
ability Coverage Part Declarations is the
most we will pay f o r the sum o f all "damages"
under this Professional Liability Coverage
Part.

3. Subject to SECTION V - CONDITIONS, 4.
Other Insurance, the Each Act, Error, or
Omission Limit shown in the Professional L i -
ability Coverage Part Declarations is the
most we will pay f o r the sum o f all damages
in connection with the same act, error, or
omission, or in connection with the same
group or series o f similar or interrelated acts,
errors, or omissions, regardless o f the num-
ber o f insureds, claims, "suits," or claimants.

The limits o f this Professional Liability Cov-
erage Part apply separately to each consecu-
tive annual period and to any remaining period
o f less than 12 months, starting with the be -
ginning o f the policy period shown in the
Declarations, unless the policy period is e x -
tended after issuance f o r an additional period
o f less than 12 months. In that case, the addi-
tional period will be deemed part o f the last
preceding period f o r purposes o f determining
the Limits o f Insurance.

SECTION V - CONDITIONS

1. Bankruptcy

Bankruptcy or insolvency o f the Insured or o f
the Insured's estate will not relieve us o f our
obligations under this Coverage Part.
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2. Duties in the Event of an Act, Error, Omis-
sion, Claim or "Suit"

a. You must see to it that we are notified as
soon as practicable o f the occurrence o f
any act, error, or omission which may r e -
sult in a claim or "suit." To the extent pos -
sible, notice should include:

(1) how, when, and where the act, error,
or omission took place;

(2) the names and addresses o f injured
persons and witnesses;

(3) the nature and location o f any injury or
damage.

b. I f a claim is made or "suit" is brought
against any insured you must:

(1) immediately record the specifics o f
the claim or "suit" and the date r e -
ceived; and

(2) notify us as soon as practicable.

You must see to it that we receive written
notice o f the claim or "suit" as soon as
practicable.

c. You and any other involved insured must:

(1) immediately send us copies o f any de -
mands, notices, summonses, or legal
papers received in connection with the
claim or "suit";

(2) authorize us to obtain records and
other information;

(3) cooperate with us in the investigation,
settlement, or defense o f the claim or
"suit"; and

(4) assist us, upon our request, in the en -
forcement o f any right against any
person or organization which may be
liable to the Insured because o f injury
or damage to which this insurance may
also apply.

d. No insured will, except at their own cost,
voluntarily make any payment, assume any
obligation, or incur any expense without
our consent.

3. Legal Action Against Us

No person or organization has a right under
this Coverage Part:

a. to join us as a party or otherwise bring us
into a "suit" asking f o r "damages" f rom an
insured; or

b. to sue us on this Coverage Part unless all
o f its terms have been fully complied with.

A person or organization may sue us to r e -
cover on an agreed settlement or on a final
judgment against an insured obtained after an
actual trial, but we will not be liable f o r dam-
ages that are not payable under the terms o f
this Coverage Part or that are in excess o f the
applicable Limit o f Insurance. An agreed se t -
tlement means a settlement and release o f
liability signed by us, the Insured, and the
claimant or the claimant's legal representative.

4. Other Insurance

I f other valid and collectible insurance is avail-
able to the Insured f o r a loss we cover under
this Professional Liability Coverage Part,
our obligations are limited as follows:

a. Primary Insurance

This insurance is primary. Our obligations
are not affected unless any o f the other
insurance is also primary. Then, we will
share with all that other insurance by the
method described in b., below.

b. Method of Sharing

I f all o f the other insurance permits con -
tribution by equal shares, we will fo l low
this method also. Under this approach each
insurer contributes equal amounts until it
has paid its applicable Limit o f Insurance
or none o f the loss remains, whichever
comes first.

I f any o f the other insurance does not
permit contribution by equal shares, we
will contribute by limits. Under this meth-
od, each insurer's share is based on the
ratio o f its applicable Limit o f Insurance to
the total applicable Limits o f Insurance o f
all insurers.

c. Two or More Coverage Parts, Coverage
Forms, or Policies Issued by Us
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If this Professional Liability Coverage
Part and any other coverage form, c o v -
erage part, or policy issued by us or by
any company affiliated with us both apply,
in whole or in part, to the same claim,
"suit," loss, act, error, omission, or "dam-
ages," then no two or more o f their ap -
plicable Limits o f Insurance may be com -
bined to apply to that claim, "suit," loss,
act, error, omission, or those "damages."
Instead, the applicable Limit o f Insurance
o f all such coverage parts, coverage
forms, or policies, taken together, shall
not exceed the highest applicable Limit o f
Insurance under any one such coverage
part, coverage form, or policy. This con -
dition does not apply to any coverage
part, coverage form, or policy issued by
us or an affiliated company specifically to
apply only as excess insurance over this
Coverage Part.

5. Representations

By accepting this Policy, you agree:

a. the statements in the Declarations are
correct and complete;

b. those statements are based upon repre -
sentations you made to us; and

c. we have issued this Policy in reliance upon
your representations.

6. Separation of Insureds

Except with respect to the Limits o f Insur-
ance, and any rights or duties specifically as -
signed in this Professional Liability Cover-
age Part to the f i rst Named Insured, this i n -
surance applies:

a. as i f each named insured were the only
named insured; and

b. separately to each insured against whom
claim is made or "suit" is brought.

7. Transfer of Rights of Recovery Against
Others to Us

I f the Insured has rights to recover all or part
o f any payment we have made under this Pro-
fessional Liability Coverage Part, those
rights are transferred to us. The Insured must
do nothing after loss to impair them. At our

request, the Insured will bring "suit" or trans-
fe r those rights to us and help us enforce
them.

8. When We Do Not Renew

I f we decide not to renew this Coverage Part,
we will mail or deliver to the f i rst Named
Insured shown in the Declarations written n o -
tice o f the nonrenewal not less than 30 days
before the expiration date. I f notice is mailed,
p roo f o f mailing will be sufficient p roo f o f
notice.

SECTION VI - DEFINITIONS

The fol lowing terms used in this Professional
Liability Insurance Coverage have the fol lowing
meanings.

1. "Abuse" includes:

a. any actual, threatened, or alleged act, e r -
ror, omission, conduct, or misconduct,
that a claim or "suit" alleges to be, or to
constitute, any fo rm o f abuse (including,
but not limited to, elder abuse, child abuse,
patient abuse, or abuse o f a dependent
person) under any applicable state or f e d -
eral statute or regulation; and

b. any actual, threatened, or alleged act, e r -
ror, omission, conduct, or misconduct, o f
one or more o f the fol lowing kinds:

(1) sexual behavior, sexual conduct or
misconduct, sexual assault, sexual ba t -
tery, sexual abuse, or sexual molesta-
tion, o f or directed at a person;

(2) non-sexual assault, non-sexual ba t -
tery, or non-sexual abuse, o f or d i -
rected at a person; and

(3) any:

(i) employment;

(ii) investigation;

(iii) supervision;

(iv) reporting to proper authorities, or
failure to so report; or

(v) retention in employment;
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o f any person actually or allegedly
committing, or who has actually or a l -
legedly committed, any conduct or
misconduct o f a kind described in b.(1)
or b.(2).

(vi) referral o f a patient, student, pa -
rishioner, client, or person, to any
other person whose conduct or
misconduct is described in a.,
b.(1), o r b.(2).

Any conduct or misconduct o f a kind
described in b.(1) through b.(3) con -
stitutes "abuse" within the meaning o f
this definition regardless o f whether
or not it is alleged to be negligent,
reckless, knowing, intentional, f raudu-
lent, oppressive, malicious, or o ther -
wise.

(2) "Auto" means a land motor vehicle, mobile
equipment, trailer, or semi trailer, including any
attached or towed machinery or equipment.

3. "Coverage territory" means:

a. the United States o f America (including its
territories and possessions), Puerto Rico,
and Canada;

b. all other parts o f the world i f the "dam-
ages" arise out o f the activities o f a pe r -
son whose home is in the territory de -
scribed in a., above, but who is away f o r a
short time on your business;

provided the Insured's responsibility to pay
"damages" is determined in a "suit" on the
merits in the territory described in a., above,
or in a settlement we agree to.

4. "Damages" means money damages awarded
to compensate f o r harm, except those as to
which applicable law prohibits liability insur-
ance. "Damages" does not include the cost o f
complying with injunctive relief, declaratory
relief, or other equitable actions; fines, penal-
ties, punitive damages, exemplary damages, or
any multiplied or enhanced damages; fees, de -
posits, or commissions; charges f o r goods or
services, or the return, disgorgement, or r e -
imbursement o f such charges; or awards o f
attorneys' fees, attorneys' expenses, or other
costs o f making a claim or bringing a "suit."

5. "Employee" includes a "leased worker." "Em-
ployee" does not include a "temporary wo r k -
er."

6. "Executive officer" means a person holding
any o f the of f icer positions created by your
charter, constitution, by-laws, or any other
similar governing document.

7. "Fungi" means any type or fo rm o f fungus,
including mold or mildew and any mycotoxin,
spore, scent, or by-product produced or r e -
leased by any fungus or by the death or decay
o f any fungus.

8. "Leased worker" means a person leased to
you by a labor leasing firm, under an agree-
ment between you and the labor leasing firm,
to perform duties related to the conduct o f
your business. "Leased worker" does not i n -
clude a "temporary worker."

9. "Pollutant" means any solid, liquid, gaseous,
or thermal irritant or contaminant, including
smoke, vapor, soot, fumes, acids, alkalis,
chemicals, and waste. Waste includes materi-
als to be recycled, reconditioned, or r e -
claimed.

10. a. "Professional Services" includes any
service:

1. that involves specialized education,
knowledge, labor, judgment, and skill,
and is predominantly mental or intel-
lectual (as opposed to physical or
manual) in nature; and

2. is provided as part o f the Named In-
sured's operations as a social service,
human service, religious, educational,
or cultural organization, and

3. is not provided by any one or more o f
the persons listed in d., below.

b. "Professional Services" includes the f o l -
lowing:

1. advice, guidance, or assistance;

2. counseling;

3. social work:

4. therapy;

5. daycare;
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6. nursing or health care;

7. educational instruction or teaching;

8. job training, job placement, job r e f e r -
ral, and vocational services; and

9. other services o f the kind described in
a., above, provided as part o f the
Named Insured's operations as a social
service, human service, religious, edu-
cational, or cultural organization.

c. "Professional Services" includes the f u r -
nishing, dispensing, or administration o f
any prescription or non-prescription drug
at the direction o f a physician as part o f
the Named Insured's operation as a social
service, human service, religious, educa-
tional, or cultural organization.

d. Subject to c., above, no service pe r -
formed by a member o f any profession
listed in d.1. through d.11., below, con -
stitutes a "Professional Service" within the
meaning o f this Coverage Part; however,
this does not apply to any purely admin-
istrative or supervisory service that does
not involve or require the skill o r learning
o f such a profession, but is performed by
a person who is a member o f such a
profession:

1. physician, physician assistant, or psy -
chiatrist;

2. accountant;

3. lawyer;

4. architect or engineer;

5. real estate or investment manager;

6. dentist or dental hygienist;

7. acupuncturist;

8. nurse anesthetist, nurse practitioner,
or nurse midwife;

9. x - ray therapist or radiologist;

10. podiatrist, chiropractor, or op tom-
etrist; or

11. veterinarian.

11. "Suit" means a civil proceeding in which
"damages" to which this insurance applies are
alleged. "Suit" includes:

a. an arbitration proceeding in which such
"damages" are claimed and to which the
Insured must submit or does submit with
our consent; or

b. any other alternative dispute resolution
proceeding in which such "damages" are
claimed, and to which the Insured submits
with our consent.

"Suit" does not include any administrative
hearing, investigation, licensure proceeding,
enforcement proceeding, or any similar p r o -
ceeding by any federal, state, or local go v -
ernmental, administrative, or regulatory agen-
cy.

12. "Temporary worker" means a person who is
furnished to you to substitute f o r a permanent
"employee" on leave or to meet seasonal or
short - term workload conditions.

13. "Volunteer worker" means a person who is
not your "employee," and who donates his or
her work and acts at the direction o f and
within the scope o f duties determined by you,
and is not paid a fee, salary, or other c om -
pensation by you or anyone else f o r their
work performed f o r you.
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CG 20 26 (Ed. 12/19)

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

ADDITIONAL INSURED - DESIGNATED
PERSON OR ORGANIZATION

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

SCHEDULE

Name Of Additional Insured Person(s) Or Organization(s):

Information required to complete this Schedule, i f not shown above, will be shown in the Declarations.

A. Section II - Who Is An Insured is amended to include as an additional insured the person(s) or organization(s)
shown in the Schedule, but only with respect to liability f o r "bodily injury", "property damage" or "personal
and advertising injury" caused, in whole or in part, by your acts or omissions or the acts or omissions o f
those acting on your behalf:

1. In the performance o f your ongoing operations; or

2. In connection with your premises owned by or rented to you.

However:

1. The insurance afforded to such additional insured only applies to the extent permitted by law; and

2. I f coverage provided to the additional insured is required by a contract or agreement, the insurance
afforded to such additional insured will not be broader than that which you are required by the contract
or agreement to provide f o r such additional insured.

B. With respect to the insurance afforded to these additional insureds, the fol lowing is added to Section III -
Limits Of Insurance:

I f coverage provided to the additional insured is required by a contract or agreement, the most we will pay
on behalf o f the Additional Insured is the amount o f insurance:

1. Required by the contract or agreement; or

PINELLAS COUNTY SCHOOL BOARD
RISK MANAGEMENT DEPARTMENT
P.O. BOX 2942
LARGO, FL 33779
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2. Available under the applicable limits o f insurance;

whichever is less.

This endorsement shall not increase the applicable limits o f insurance.
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THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

ADDITIONAL INSURED - ABUSE OR MOLESTATION
SCHEDULED PERSON OR ORGANIZATION

This Endorsement modifies and is subject to the insurance provided under the fol lowing form:

ABUSE OR MOLESTATION COVERAGE FORM
ABUSE OR MOLESTATION COVERAGE FORM CLAIMS-MADE

Schedule

Name of Additional Insured Person(s) or Organization(s):

Information required to complete this Schedule, i f not shown above, will be shown in the Declarations.

A. SECTION III - WHO IS AN INSURED is amended to include as an Additional Insured the person(s) or
organization(s) shown in the Schedule, but only with respect to liability f o r "damages" caused, in whole or in
part, by any act o f "abuse" to which this insurance applies.

However, the insurance afforded to such Additional Insured described above:

a. only applies to the extent permitted by law; and

b. will not be broader than that which you are required by the contract or agreement to provide f o r such
Additional Insured.

B. With respect to the insurance afforded to these Additional Insureds, the fol lowing is added to Limits of
Insurance:

The most we will pay on behalf o f the Additional Insured is the amount o f insurance:

A. required by the contract or agreement described in paragraph A.;

B. available under the applicable Limits o f Insurance shown in the Declarations;

whichever is less.

This endorsement shall not increase the applicable Limits o f Insurance shown in the Declarations.

JUVENILE WELFARE BOARD
14155 58TH STREET N
CLEARWATER, FL 33760
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C. The fol lowing is added to Condition 2. Duties in the Event of Abuse, Claim or "Suit":

An Additional Insured under this endorsement will as soon as practicable:

a. give written notice o f an act o f "abuse" that may result in a claim or "suit" under this insurance to us;

b. tender the defense and indemnity o f any claim or "suit" to all insurers who also have insurance available
to the Additional Insured; and

c. agree to make available any other insurance which the Additional Insured has f o r a loss we cover under
this Coverage Part.

d. we have no duty to defend or indemnify an additional insured under this endorsement until we receive
written notice o f a claim or "suit" by the Additional Insured.

D. Primary and Non-Contributory

This provision applies to any person or organization who qualifies as an Additional Insured under this
endorsement under this policy.

Under CONDITIONS, the fol lowing is added to paragraph 4. Other Insurance:

I f you have agreed in a written contract or written agreement to provide the Additional Insured coverage on a
primary and non-contributory basis, this policy shall be primary and we will not seek contribution f rom the
Additional Insured's policy f o r damages we cover.

When a written contract or written agreement between you and an Additional Insured does not require this
insurance to be primary or primary and non-contributory, this insurance is excess over any other insurance
f o r which the Additional Insured is designated as a named insured.

Regardless o f the written agreement between you and an Additional Insured, this insurance is excess over any
other insurance whether primary, excess, contingent or on any other basis f o r which the Additional Insured
has been added as an Additional Insured on other policies.

E. Wavier of Transfer of Rights of Recovery Against Others to Us (Subrogation)

Under CONDITIONS, the fol lowing is added to paragraph 7. Transfer of Rights of Recovery Against Others
to Us:

I f required by a written contract or written agreement, we waive any right o f recovery we may have against a
person or organization because o f payment we make f o r "damages" arising out o f your operations under a
contract f o r that person or organization regarding any act o f "abuse" provided that the damage occurs
subsequent to the execution o f the written contract or written agreement.

F. SECTION I - ABUSE OR MOLESTATION COVERAGE, 2. Exclusions, paragraph i. is replaced by the
following:

"Damages" because o f any liability o f any insured to any other insured. This exclusion does not apply to
"damages" f o r harm to one o f your "volunteer workers." In addition, this exclusion does not apply to any
person or organization that qualifies as an Additional Insured under this endorsement.
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THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

ADDITIONAL INSURED - PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY
SCHEDULED PERSON OR ORGANIZATION

This Endorsement modifies and is subject to the insurance provided under the fol lowing form:

PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY INSURANCE
PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY INSURANCE CLAIMS-MADE

Schedule

Name of Additional Insured Person(s) or Organization(s):

Information required to complete this Schedule, i f not shown above, will be shown in the Declarations.

A. SECTION III - WHO IS AN INSURED is amended to include as an Additional Insured the person(s) or
organization(s) shown in the Schedule, but only with respect to liability f o r "damages" caused, in whole or in
part, by any act, error, or omission in the rendering o f or failure to render "Professional Services" to which
this insurance applies.

However, the insurance afforded to such Additional Insured described above:

a. only applies to the extent permitted by law; and

b. will not be broader than that which you are required by the contract or agreement to provide f o r such
Additional Insured.

B. With respect to the insurance afforded to these Additional Insureds, the fol lowing is added to Limits of
Insurance:

The most we will pay on behalf o f the Additional Insured is the amount o f insurance:

A. required by the contract or agreement described in paragraph A.;

B. available under the applicable Limits o f Insurance shown in the Declarations;

whichever is less.

This endorsement shall not increase the applicable Limits o f Insurance shown in the Declarations.

JUVENILE WELFARE BOARD
14155 58TH STREET N
CLEARWATER, FL 33760
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C. The fol lowing is added to Condition 2. Duties in the Event of an Act, Error, Omission, Claim or "Suit":

An Additional Insured under this endorsement will as soon as practicable:

a. give written notice o f an act, error, or omission in the rendering or failure to render a "Professional
Service" that may result in a claim or "suit" under this insurance to us;

b. tender the defense and indemnity o f any claim or "suit" to all insurers who also have insurance available
to the Additional Insured; and

c. agree to make available any other insurance which the Additional Insured has f o r a loss we cover under
this Coverage Part.

d. we have no duty to defend or indemnify an Additional Insured under this endorsement until we receive
written notice o f a claim or "suit" by the Additional Insured.

D. Primary and Non-Contributory

This provision applies to any person or organization who qualifies as an Additional Insured under this
endorsement under this policy.

Under CONDITIONS, the fol lowing is added to paragraph 4. Other Insurance:

I f you have agreed in a written contract or written agreement to provide the Additional Insured coverage on a
primary and non-contributory basis, this policy shall be primary and we will not seek contribution f rom the
Additional Insured's policy f o r damages we cover.

When a written contract or written agreement between you and an Additional Insured does not require this
insurance to be primary or primary and non-contributory, this insurance is excess over any other insurance
f o r which the Additional Insured is designated as a named insured.

Regardless o f the written agreement between you and an Additional Insured, this insurance is excess over any
other insurance whether primary, excess, contingent or on any other basis f o r which the Additional Insured
has been added as an Additional Insured on other policies.

E. Wavier of Transfer of Rights of Recovery Against Others to Us (Subrogation)

Under CONDITIONS, the fol lowing is added to paragraph 7. Transfer of Rights of Recovery Against Others
to Us:

I f required by a written contract or written agreement, we waive any right o f recovery we may have against a
person or organization because o f payment we make f o r "damages" arising out o f your operations under a
contract f o r that person or organization regarding any act, error, or omission in the rendering o f or failure to
render "Professional Services" provided that the damage occurs subsequent to the execution o f the written
contract or written agreement.

F. SECTION I - PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY COVERAGE, 2. Exclusions, paragraph i. is replaced by the
following:

"Damages" because o f any liability o f any insured to any other insured. This exclusion does not apply to
"damages" f o r harm to one o f your "volunteer workers." In addition, this exclusion does not apply to any
person or organization that qualifies as an Additional Insured under this endorsement.
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THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

EXCLUSION - ACCESS OR DISCLOSURE OF
CONFIDENTIAL OR PERSONAL INFORMATION AND

DATA-RELATED LIABILITY - WITH
LIMITED BODILY INJURY EXCEPTION

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

A. Exclusion 2.p. o f SECTION I - COVERAGE A
- Bodily Injury and Property Damage Li -
ability is replaced by the following:

2. Exclusions

This insurance does not apply to:

p. Access or Disclosure of Confiden-
tial or Personal Information and
Data-related Liability

Damages arising out of:

(1) any access to or disclosure o f
any person's or organization's
confidential or personal in forma-
tion, including patents, trade se -
crets, processing methods, cus -
tomer lists, financial information,
credit card information, health in -
formation or any other type o f
nonpublic information; or

(2) the loss of , loss o f use of , dam-
age to, corruption of , inability to
access, or inability to manipulate
electronic data.

This exclusion applies even i f damages
are claimed f o r notification costs,
credit monitoring expenses, forensic
expenses, public relations expenses or
any other loss, cost or expense in -
curred by you or others arising out o f
that which is described in paragraph (1)
or (2) above.

However, unless paragraph (1) above
applies, this exclusion does not apply
to damages because o f "bodily injury."

As used in this exclusion, electronic
data means information, facts or p r o -
grams stored as or on, created or
used on, or transmitted to or f rom
computer software, including systems
and applications software, hard or
f loppy disks, CD-ROMs, tapes, drives,
cells, data processing devices or any
other media which are used with e lec-
tronically controlled equipment.

B. The fol lowing is added to paragraph 2. Exclu-
sions o f SECTION I - COVERAGE B - Per-
sonal and Advertising Injury Liability:

2. Exclusions

This insurance does not apply to:

Access or Disclosure of Confidential or
Personal Information

"Personal and advertising injury" arising out
o f any access to or disclosure o f any
person's or organization's confidential or
personal information, including patents,
trade secrets, processing methods, cus -
tomer lists, financial information, credit
card information, health information or any
other type o f nonpublic information.

This exclusion applies even i f damages are
claimed f o r notification costs, credit mon -
itoring expenses, forensic expenses, pub -
lic relations expenses or any other loss,
cost or expense incurred by you or others
arising out o f any access to or disclosure
o f any person's or organization's con f i -
dential or personal information.
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THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

EMPLOYMENT-RELATED PRACTICES EXCLUSION

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

A. The fol lowing exclusion is added to paragraph
2., Exclusions o f Section I - Coverage A -
Bodily Injury and Property Damage Liability:

This insurance does not apply to:

"Bodily injury" to:

(1) a person arising out o f any:

(a) refusal to employ that person;

(b) termination o f that person's employ-
ment; or

(c) employment-related practices, po l i -
cies, acts or omissions, such as coe r -
cion, demotion, evaluation, reassign-
ment, discipline, defamation, harass-
ment, humiliation, discrimination or
malicious prosecution directed at that
person; or

(2) the spouse, child, parent, brother or sister
o f that person as a consequence o f
"bodily injury" to that person at whom any
o f the employment-related practices de -
scribed in paragraphs (a), (b) or (c) above
is directed.

This exclusion applies:

(1) whether the injury-causing event de -
scribed in paragraphs (a), (b) or (c)
above occurs before employment,
during employment or after employ-
ment o f that person;

(2) whether the Insured may be liable as
an employer or in any other capacity;
and

(3) to any obligation to share damages
with or repay someone else who must
pay damages because o f the injury.

B. The fol lowing exclusion is added to paragraph
2., Exclusions o f Section I - Coverage B -
Personal and Advertising Injury Liability:

This insurance does not apply to:

"Personal and advertising injury" to:

(1) a person arising out o f any:

(a) refusal to employ that person;

(b) termination o f that person's employ-
ment; or

(c) employment-related practices, po l i -
cies, acts or omissions, such as coe r -
cion, demotion, evaluation, reassign-
ment, discipline, defamation, harass-
ment, humiliation, discrimination or
malicious prosecution directed at that
person; or

(2) the spouse, child, parent, brother or sister
o f that person as a consequence o f "per -
sonal and advertising injury" to that person
at whom any o f the employment-related
practices described in paragraphs (a), (b)
or (c) above is directed.

This exclusion applies:

(1) whether the injury-causing event de -
scribed in paragraphs (a), (b) or (c) above
occurs before employment, during em -
ployment or after employment o f that
person;

(2) whether the Insured may be liable as an
employer or in any other capacity; and

(3) to any obligation to share damages with or
repay someone else who must pay dam-
ages because o f the injury.
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THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

FUNGI OR BACTERIA EXCLUSION

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

A. The fol lowing exclusion is added to paragraph
2. Exclusions o f SECTION I - Coverage A -
Bodily Injury and Property Damage Liability:

2. Exclusions

This insurance does not apply to:

Fungi or Bacteria

a. "Bodily injury" or "property damage"
which would not have occurred, in
whole or in part, but f o r the actual,
alleged or threatened inhalation of , i n -
gestion of , contact with, exposure to,
existence of , or presence of , any
"fungi" or bacteria on or within a
building or structure, including its con -
tents, regardless o f whether any other
cause, event, material or product con -
tributed concurrently or in any se -
quence to such injury or damage.

b. Any loss, cost or expenses arising out
o f the abating, testing for , monitoring,
cleaning up, removing, containing,
treating, detoxifying, neutralizing, r e -
mediating or disposing of , or in any
way responding to, or assessing the
ef fects of , "fungi" or bacteria, by any
insured or by any other person or en -
tity.

This exclusion does not apply to any
"fungi" or bacteria that are, are on, or are
contained in, a good or product intended
f o r bodily consumption.

B. The fol lowing exclusion is added to paragraph
2. Exclusions o f SECTION I - Coverage B -
Personal and Advertising Injury Liability:

2. Exclusions

This insurance does not apply to:

Fungi or Bacteria

a. "Personal and advertising injury" which
would not have taken place, in whole
or in part, but f o r the actual, alleged or
threatened inhalation of , ingestion of ,
contact with, exposure to, existence
of , or presence o f any "fungi" or bac-
teria on or within a building or s t ruc-
ture, including its contents, regardless
o f whether any other cause, event,
material or product contributed con -
currently or in any sequence to such
injury.

b. Any loss, cost or expense arising out
o f the abating, testing for , monitoring,
cleaning up, removing, containing,
treating, detoxifying, neutralizing, r e -
mediating or disposing of , or in any
way responding to, or assessing the
ef fects of , "fungi" or bacteria, by any
insured or by any other person or en -
tity.

C. The fol lowing definition is added to the Def i -
nitions Section:

"Fungi" means any type or fo rm o f fungus,
including mold or mildew and any mycotoxins,
spores, scents or byproducts produced or
released by fungi.
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THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

AMENDMENT OF INSURED CONTRACT DEFINITION

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
PRODUCTS/COMPLETED OPERATIONS LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

The definition o f "insured contract" in the Defini-
tions section is replaced by the following:

"Insured contract" means:

a. a contract f o r a lease o f premises. However,
that portion o f the contract f o r a lease o f
premises that indemnifies any person or o r -
ganization f o r damage by f i re to premises
while rented to you or temporarily occupied
by you with permission o f the owner is not an
"insured contract";

b. a sidetrack agreement;

c. any easement or license agreement, except in
connection with construction or demolition
operations on or within 50 feet o f a railroad;

d. an obligation, as required by ordinance, to in -
demnify a municipality, except in connection
with work f o r a municipality;

e. an elevator maintenance agreement;

f. that part o f any other contract or agreement
pertaining to your business (including an in -
demnification o f a municipality in connection
with work performed f o r a municipality) under
which you assume the tor t liability o f another
party to pay f o r "bodily injury" or "property
damage" to a third person or organization,
provided the "bodily injury" or "property dam-
age" is caused, in whole or in part, by you or
by those acting on your behalf. However, such
part o f a contract or agreement shall only be
considered an "insured contract" to the extent

your assumption o f the tor t liability is permi t -
ted by law. Tort liability means a liability that
would be imposed by law in the absence o f
any contract or agreement.

Paragraph f. does not include that part o f any
contract or agreement:

(1) that indemnifies a railroad f o r "bodily i n -
jury" or "property damage" arising out o f
construction or demolition operations,
within 50 feet o f any railroad property
and affecting any railroad bridge or t res -
tle, tracks, road-beds, tunnel, underpass
or crossing;

(2) that indemnifies an architect, engineer or
surveyor f o r injury or damage arising out
of:

(a) preparing, approving, or failing to p r e -
pare or approve, maps, shop drawings,
opinions, reports, surveys, field o r -
ders, change orders or drawings and
specifications; or

(b) giving directions or instructions, or
failing to give them, i f that is the p r i -
mary cause o f the injury or damage; or

(3) under which the Insured, i f an architect,
engineer or surveyor, assumes liability f o r
an injury or damage arising out o f the
Insured's rendering or failure to render
professional services, including those l is t -
ed in (2) above and supervisory, inspec-
tion, architectural or engineering activities.
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THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

EXCLUSION - LIABILITY ARISING OUT OF LEAD

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
OWNERS AND CONTRACTORS PROTECTIVE LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
PRODUCTS/COMPLETED OPERATIONS COVERAGE PART

This insurance does not apply to:

1. "bodily injury," "property damage," or "per -
sonal and advertising injury" arising out of ,
resulting from, or in any way caused by or
related to the actual, alleged or threatened
ingestion, inhalation, absorption, or exposure
to lead in any fo rm f rom any source; or

2. any loss, cost, expense, liability or other type
o f obligation arising out o f or resulting from,
or in any way related to, any:

a. claim, suit, request, demand, directive, or
order by or on behalf o f any person, en -
tity, or governmental authority that any In-
sured or others test for , monitor, clean
up, remove, contain, treat, detoxify, neu-

tralize, or in any way respond to, or as-
sess the ef fects o f lead in any fo rm f rom
any source, or to any

b. claim or suit by or on behalf o f any pe r -
son, entity, or governmental authority f o r
damages or any other relief or remedy
because o f testing for , monitoring, clean-
ing up, removing, containing, treating or
detoxifying or neutralizing, or in any way
responding to, or assessing the ef fects o f
lead in any form.

We shall not be obligated to investigate on behalf
o f an Insured or to defend or indemnify an In-
sured or any person or entity claiming any right
under the policy f o r the matters excluded in this
endorsement.
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THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

SILICA OR RELATED DUST EXCLUSION

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE FORM
OWNERS AND CONTRACTORS PROTECTIVE LIABILITY COVERAGE FORM - COVERAGE

FOR OPERATIONS OF DESIGNATED CONTRACTOR

A. The fol lowing exclusion is added to paragraph
2., Exclusions, o f SECTION I. Coverage A.
Bodily Injury and Property Damage Liabil-
ity, o f the Commercial General Liability
Coverage Form, and to paragraph 2., Exclu-
sions, o f SECTION I. COVERAGES, o f the
Owners and Contractors Protective Liability
Coverage Form - Coverage for Operations
of Designated Contractor:

2. Exclusions

This insurance does not apply to:

Silica or Related Dust

a. Any "bodily injury" which would not
have occurred, in whole or in part, but
f o r the actual, alleged, threatened, or
suspected inhalation or ingestion of ,
exposure to, or contact with, "silica"
or dust that includes or contains "sil i-
ca."

b. Any "property damage" which would
not have occurred, in whole or in part,
but f o r the actual, alleged, threatened,
or suspected contact with, exposure
to, existence of , or presence of , "si l i-
ca" or dust that includes or contains
"silica."

c. Any loss, cost or expense arising out
o f the abating, testing for , monitoring,
cleaning up, removing, containing,
treating, detoxifying, neutralizing, r e -
mediating or disposing of , or in any
way responding to or assessing the

ef fects of , "silica" or dust that includes
or contains "silica," by any insured or
by any other person or entity.

This exclusion applies regardless of:

(i) the circumstances o f or leading
to such actual, alleged, threat-
ened, or suspected inhalation, i n -
gestion, exposure, contact, ex is -
tence, or presence; and

(ii) whether the "silica" or dust that
includes or contains "silica," is
mixed or combined with, or also
includes or contains, any other
substance.

B. The fol lowing exclusion is added to paragraph
2., Exclusions o f SECTION I. Coverage B.
Personal and Advertising Injury Liability o f
the Commercial General Liability Coverage
Form:

2. Exclusions

This insurance does not apply to:

Silica or Related Dust

a. Any "personal and advertising injury"
which would not have taken place, in
whole or in part, but f o r the actual,
alleged, threatened, or suspected in -
halation or ingestion of , contact with,
exposure to, existence of , or p res -
ence of , "silica" or dust that includes
or contains "silica."
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b. Any loss, cost, or expense arising out
o f the abating, testing for , monitoring,
cleaning up, removing, containing,
treating, detoxifying, neutralizing, r e -
mediating or disposing of , or in any
way responding to or assessing the
ef fects of , "silica" or dust that includes
or contains "silica," by any insured or
by any other person or entity.

This exclusion applies regardless of:

(i) the circumstances o f or leading
to such actual, alleged, threat-
ened, or suspected inhalation, i n -
gestion, exposure, contact, ex is -
tence, or presence; and

(ii) whether the "silica" or dust that
includes or contains "silica," is
mixed or combined with, or also
includes or contains, any other
substance.

C. The fol lowing definition is added to the Def i -
nitions Section:

"Silica" means silicon dioxide (SiO2) in any
form, f rom any source.
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COORDINATION OF LIMITS ENDORSEMENT

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY INSURANCE
COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY
ABUSE OR MOLESTATION COVERAGE

1. This endorsement applies i f we have issued to
you an Abuse or Molestation Coverage
Form, whether on a claims-made basis or
otherwise, and either:

a. a Professional Liability Insurance Cov-
erage Form, whether on a claims-made
basis or otherwise;

b. a Commercial General Liability Cover-
age Form, whether on a claims-made ba-
sis or otherwise; or

c. both a. and b.

2. I f we have both:

a. either a duty to defend or a duty to in -
demnify any one or more insureds under
the Abuse or Molestation Coverage
Form with respect to all or any part o f a
claim, "claim" (if the Coverage Form de -
fines "claim"), or "suit"; and

b. either a duty to defend or a duty to in -
demnify any one or more insureds under
either:

(1) the Professional Liability Insurance
Coverage Form;

(2) the Commercial General Liability
Coverage Form; o r

(3) both a. and b.;

with respect to all or any part o f the same
claim, "claim" (if the Coverage Form de -
fines "claim"), or "suit"

then:

c. the applicable Limits o f Insurance o f the
Abuse or Molestation Coverage Form
are the only Limits o f Insurance that apply

to that entire claim, "claim" (if the Cov -
erage Form defines "claim") or "suit ";

d. no part o f the Limits o f Insurance o f any
Coverage Form described in 2.b. (1)
through 2.b. (3) applies to any part o f that
claim, "claim" (if the Coverage Form de -
fines "claim"), or "suit"; and

e. our total potential liability f o r that entire
claim, "claim" (if the Coverage Form de -
fines "claim"), or "suit" will not exceed the
applicable Limits o f Insurance o f the
Abuse or Molestation Coverage Form.

3. The foregoing applies regardless:

a. whether we learn that insurance under the
Abuse or Molestation Coverage Form
and insurance under another Coverage
Form apply to the same claim, "claim" (if
the Coverage Form defines "claim"), or
"suit":

(1) when we receive initial notice o f the
claim, "claim" (if the Coverage Form
defines "claim"), or "suit," or thereafter;

(2) f rom the initial pleadings in a "suit" or
an amended pleading during discovery,
at trial, during an appeal, or at any
other time.

b. the number or kinds of:

(1) theories o f recovery asserted in the
claim or "claim" (if the Coverage Form
defines "claim"), or pleaded or asserted
in the "suit";

(2) the number or kinds o f counts, causes
o f action, or prayers f o r relief pleaded
or asserted in the "suit."
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ABUSE OR MOLESTATION COVERAGE FORM

Various provisions in this Coverage Form restrict coverage. Read the entire policy carefully to determine
rights, duties and what is and is not covered.

Throughout this Coverage Form the words "you" and "your" refer to the Named Insured shown in the
Declarations, and any other person or organization qualifying as a named insured under this Coverage
Form. The words "we," "us" and "our" refer to the Company providing this insurance.

The word "Insured" means any person or organization qualifying as such under SECTION III - WHO IS
AN INSURED o f this Coverage Form.

Other words and phrases that appear in quotation marks have special meaning. Refer to SECTION VI -
DEFINITIONS o f this Coverage Form.

SECTION I - ABUSE OR MOLESTATION COV-
ERAGE

1. Insuring Agreement

a. We will pay those sums the Insured be -
comes legally obligated to pay as "dam-
ages" because o f "abuse" to which this
insurance applies.

We will have the right and duty to defend
the Insured against any "suit" seeking those
"damages." However, we will have no duty
to defend the Insured against any claim or
"suit" seeking "damages" because o f
"abuse" to which this insurance does not
apply. We may, at our discretion, investi-
gate any actual, threatened, or alleged
"abuse" and settle any claim or "suit" that
may result. But:

(1) the amount we will pay f o r "damages"
is limited as described in SECTION IV
- LIMITS OF INSURANCE o f this
Coverage Form; and

(2) our right and duty to defend end when
we have used up the applicable Limit
o f Insurance in the payment o f judg-
ments, or settlements.

No other obligation or liability to pay sums
or perform acts or services is covered
unless explicitly provided f o r under this
Coverage Form.

b. This insurance applies to "abuse" only if:

(1) the "abuse" takes place in the "cov -
erage territory";

(2) the "abuse" takes place during the
policy period; and

(3) prior to the policy period, no insured
knew the "abuse" had occurred, in
whole or in part. I f any insured knew,
prior to the policy period, that the
"abuse" had occurred, in whole or in
part, then any continuation, change, or
resumption o f such "abuse" during or
after the policy period will be deemed
to have been known prior to the policy
period.

c. Any "abuse" that occurs during the policy
period and was not, prior to the policy
period, known by any insured to have o c -
curred, includes any continuation, change,
or resumption o f that "abuse" after the
end o f the policy period.

d. Any "abuse" will be deemed to have been
known to have occurred at the earliest
time when any insured:

(1) reports all, or any part, o f the "abuse"
to us or any other insurer;
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(2) receives a written or oral demand or
claim fo r "damages" because o f the
"abuse"; or

(3) becomes aware by any other means
that the "abuse" has occurred or begun
to occur.

Regardless o f the number o f acts or omis-
sions constituting "abuse," the period o f time
over which such acts or omissions occur, or
the number o f persons performing, part ic i-
pating in, or subject to such acts or omis-
sions, all injury arising out o f all "abuse" by
one person, or by any two or more persons
acting together or in concert, is deemed one
and the same "abuse," subject to one and the
same Limit o f Liability.

2. Exclusions

This insurance does not apply to any:

a. "Damages" because o f any injury, loss,
harm, cost, or expense, expected or i n -
tended f rom the standpoint o f the Insured.

b. "Damages" because o f any liability arising
out o f any criminal or fraudulent act c om -
mitted by or at the direction o f the In-
sured.

c. Administrative hearing, investigation, l icen-
sure proceeding, enforcement proceeding,
or any similar proceeding by any federal,
state, or local governmental, administra-
tive, or regulatory agency.

d. "Damages" because o f any:

(1) Liability assumed by any insured under
any contract or agreement.

(2) Insured's failure to perform or comply
with any duty or requirement under a
contract, express or implied warranty,
or agreement.

This exclusion does not apply to liability
that the Insured would have in the absence
o f the contract or agreement.

e. "Damages" because o f any liability by rea-
son of:

(1) causing or contributing to the intox i -
cation o f any person;

(2) furnishing alcoholic beverages to a
person under the legal drinking age or
under the influence o f alcohol; or

(3) any statute, ordinance, or regulation
relating to the sale, gift, distribution, or
use o f alcoholic beverages.

f. Obligation o f any insured under a workers'
compensation, disability benefits, or un -
employment compensation law, or any
similar law.

g. "Damages" because o f any liability to:

(1) Any person, arising out o f any:

(a) refusal to employ that person;

(b) termination o f that person's em -
ployment; or

(c) employment-related practices,
policies, acts, or omissions, i n -
cluding but not limited to coe r -
cion, demotion, evaluation, reas-
signment, discipline, defamation,
harassment, humiliation, or d is -
crimination directed at that pe r -
son; or

(2) The spouse, child, parent, brother, or
sister o f that person as a consequence
o f any employment-related practice
described in (1)(a), (1)(b), o r (1)(c).

This exclusion applies:

(i) whether the Insured may be liable as
an employer or in any other capacity;
and

(ii) to any obligation to share "damages"
with or repay someone else who must
pay "damages" to the "employee" or to
the "employee's" spouse, child, parent,
brother, or sister.

h. "Damages" because o f any liability to:

(1) Any "employee" o f the Insured arising
out o f and in the course o f that "em-
ployee's":

(a) employment by the Insured; or
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(b) performing duties related to the
conduct o f the Insured's business;
or

(2) The spouse, child, parent, brother, or
sister o f that "employee" as a con -
sequence o f paragraphs (1)(a) or (1)(b).

This exclusion applies:

(i) whether the Insured may be liable as
an employer or in any other capacity;
and

(ii) to any obligation to share "damages"
with or repay someone else who must
pay "damages" to the "employee" or to
the "employee's" spouse, child, parent,
brother, or sister.

i. "Damages" because o f any liability o f any
insured to any other insured. This exc lu-
sion does not apply to "damages" f o r harm
to one o f your "volunteer workers."

j. "Damages" because o f any liability arising
out o f any employee benefit plan or se l f -
insured fund, or f o r any amount due under
any fringe benefit or retirement program.

k. "Damages" because o f any liability under
the Employment Retirement Income Secu-
rity Act o f 1974 (as amended) or any
similar federal or state law.

l. "Damages" because o f any insured's hiring,
employment, or retention in employment,
o f any person with a prior history o f
committing "abuse," i f any insured knew o f
that history either before, or at any time
during, the policy period.

m. "Damages" arising out o f any insured's
knowing:

(1) concealment of ,

(2) failure to report, or

(3) failure to comply with any applicable
federal, state, or local law, ordinance,
or regulation, requiring the reporting
of ,

any "abuse."

n. "Damages" because o f any:

(1) Liability arising in whole or in part
f rom the actual, alleged, or threatened
discharge, dispersal, seepage, migra-
tion, release, escape, or presence of ,
or exposure to, any "pollutant," f rom
any source, at any location, at any time.

(2) Loss, cost, or expense which would
not have occurred in whole or in part
but f o r any:

(a) request, demand, or order that
any insured or others test for ,
monitor, clean up, remove, con -
tain, treat, detoxify, abate, or
neutralize, or in any way respond
to or assess the ef fects of , any
"pollutant"; or

(b) claim or "suit" by or on behalf o f
any federal, state, or local go v -
ernmental authority because o f
testing for , monitoring, cleaning
up, removing, containing, treating,
detoxifying, abating, or neutraliz-
ing, or in any way responding to
or assessing the ef fects of , any
"pollutant."

o. "Damages" because o f any:

(1) Liability arising in whole or in part
f rom the actual, alleged, or threatened
discharge, dispersal, seepage, migra-
tion, release, escape, inhalation, ab -
sorption, ingestion, or presence of , or
exposure to, lead in any form, f rom
any source, in any location, at any time.

(2) Loss, cost, or expense which would
not have occurred in whole or in part
but f o r any:

(a) request, demand, or order that
any insured or others test for ,
monitor, clean up, remove, con -
tain, treat, detoxify, abate, or
neutralize, or in any way respond
to or assess the ef fects of , lead
in any form, f rom any source, or

(b) claim or "suit" by or on behalf o f
any federal, state, or local go v -
ernmental authority because o f
testing for , monitoring, cleaning
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up, removing, containing, treating,
detoxifying, abating, or neutraliz-
ing, or in any way responding to
or assessing the ef fects of , lead
in any form, f rom any source.

p. "Damages" because o f any:

(1) Liability arising in whole or in part
f rom the actual, alleged, or threatened
discharge, dispersal, seepage, migra-
tion, release, escape, inhalation, ab -
sorption, ingestion, or presence of , or
exposure to, asbestos in any form,
f rom any source, in any location, at
any time.

(2) Loss, cost, or expense which would
not have occurred in whole or in part
but f o r any:

(a) request, demand, or order that
any insured or others test for ,
monitor, clean up, remove, con -
tain, treat, detoxify, abate, or
neutralize, or in any way respond
to or assess the ef fects of , as -
bestos in any form, f rom any
source, or

(b) claim or suit by or on behalf o f
any federal, state, or local go v -
ernmental authority because o f
testing for , monitoring, cleaning
up, removing, containing, treating,
detoxifying, abating, or neutraliz-
ing, or in any way responding to
or assessing the ef fects of , as -
bestos in any form, f rom any
source.

q. "Damages" because o f any:

(1) liability arising in whole or in part f rom
the actual, alleged, or threatened in -
halation of , ingestion of , contact with,
exposure to, existence of , or p res -
ence of , any "fungi" or bacteria on or
within a building or structure, including
its contents, regardless o f whether
any other cause, event, material, or
product contributed concurrently or in
any sequence to such injury or dam-
age; or

(2) loss, cost, or expense which would
not have occurred in whole or part but
f o r any:

(a) request, demand, or order that
any insured or others test for ,
monitor, clean up, remove, con -
tain, treat, detoxify, abate, or
neutralize, or in any way respond
to or assess the ef fects of ,
"fungi" or bacteria in any form,
f rom any source, or

(b) claim or suit by or on behalf o f
any federal, state, or local go v -
ernmental authority because o f
testing for , monitoring, cleaning
up, removing, containing, treating,
detoxifying, abating, or neutraliz-
ing, or in any way responding to
or assessing the ef fects of , any
"fungi" or bacteria, in any form,
f rom any source.

This exclusion does not apply to any
"fungi" or bacteria that are intended to be,
be on, or be contained in, a good or
product intended f o r human consumption
as food.

r. "Damages" because o f any liability arising
out o f the ownership, maintenance, use, or
entrustment to others o f any aircraft,
"auto," or watercraft, whether or not
owned or operated by, or rented or
loaned to, any insured. Use includes o p -
eration and loading or unloading.

This exclusion applies even i f the claim or
"suit" against any insured alleges negli-
gence or other wrongdoing in the super-
vision, hiring, employment, training, or
monitoring o f others by that Insured, i f the
liability arises f rom the ownership, main-
tenance, use, or entrustment to others o f
any aircraft, "auto," or watercraft, whether
or not owned or operated by, or rented
or loaned to, any insured.

s. "Damages" because o f any insured's liabil-
ity to any:

(1) company, corporation, or other orga-
nization, or
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(2) shareholder, owner, or creditor o f any
company, corporation, or other orga-
nization,

o f which that Insured is a director or
of f icer, i f such liability arises directly
or indirectly out o f any act, error, or
omission by that Insured, committed in
that Insured's capacity as a director or
o f f i cer o f that company, corporation,
or other organization. This exclusion
applies regardless o f whether or not
the act, error, or omission was pe r -
formed by or on behalf o f the Named
Insured.

t. "Damages" because o f any liability arising
directly or indirectly out of:

(1) service by any insured f o r or as a
member o f any board or committee o f
any organization other than the Named
Insured. This includes, but is not limited
to, any board or committee relating to
peer review, credentialing, quality as -
surance, utilization review, profession-
al discipline, risk management, patient
or client grievances, staf f grievances,
or professional education; or

(2) the activities o f any insured as a p r o -
prietor, superintendent, of f icer, d i rec-
tor, shareholder, manager, or employ-
ee o f any organization other than the
Named Insured; or

(3) any insured's capacity as a fiduciary,
trustee, legal representative, guardian,
banker, creditor, tax preparer, or
lender.

u. "Damages" because o f any liability arising
out o f any failure to integrate, segregate,
or desegregate:

(1) enrollment;

(2) participation in educational or non-
educational activities;

(3) busing or other transportation; or

(4) the provision or receipt o f any se r -
vice, accommodation, or benefit;

on the basis o f race, religion, sex, age,
ethnic background, national origin, physical
or mental disability, sexual orientation, or
any other basis prohibited by applicable
law.

v. "Damages" because o f any liability arising
out o f any discrimination, or failure to
discriminate, on account o f race, religion,
sex, age, ethnic background, national o r i -
gin, physical or mental disability, or sexual
orientation, or arising out o f any actual,
threatened, or alleged violation o f any l o -
cal, state, or federal civil rights law, regu-
lation, or ordinance.

w. Civil or criminal fine or penalty, and any
loss, cost, or expense paid or incurred in
defending against any such fine or penalty.

x. "Damages" arising out o f the fol lowing
professional services: legal, accounting,
financial, appraisal, architectural, or engi-
neering services.

SECTION II - SUPPLEMENTARY PAYMENTS
We will pay, with respect to any claim we inves-
tigate or settle, or any "suit" we defend or settle:

1. All expenses we incur.

2. The cost o f bonds to release attachments, but
only f o r bond amounts within the applicable
Limit o f Insurance. We do not have to furnish
these bonds.

3. All reasonable expenses incurred by the In-
sured at our request to assist us in the inves-
tigation or defense o f the claim or "suit," i n -
cluding actual loss o f earnings up to $250 a
day because o f time o f f f rom work.

4. All court costs taxed against the Insured in the
"suit." However, these payments do not i n -
clude attorneys' fees or attorneys' expenses
taxed against the Insured.

5. Prejudgment interest awarded against the In-
sured on that part o f a judgment we pay. I f
we make an o f f e r to pay the applicable Limit
o f Insurance, we will not pay any prejudgment
interest based on that period o f time after the
of fer .
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6. All interest on the full amount o f any judgment
that accrues after entry o f the judgment and
before we have paid, o f fered to pay, or de -
posited in court the part o f the judgment that
is within the applicable Limit o f Insurance.

These payments will not reduce the Limits o f
Insurance.

SECTION III - WHO IS AN INSURED

1. Subject to 4., below, i f you are designated in
the Declarations as:

a. An individual, you and your spouse are
insureds, but only with respect to the
conduct o f a business o f which you are
the sole owner.

b. A partnership or joint venture, you are an
insured. Your members, your partners, and
their spouses are also insureds, but only
with respect to the conduct o f your busi-
ness.

c. A limited liability company, you are an in -
sured. Your members are also insureds,
but only with respect to the conduct o f
your business. Your managers are insur-
eds, but only with respect to their duties
as your managers.

d. An organization other than a partnership,
joint venture, or limited liability company,
you are an insured. Your "executive o f -
ficers," board members and directors are
also insureds, but only with respect to
their duties as your of f icers or directors.
Your stockholders are also insureds, but
only with respect to their liability as your
stockholders.

e. A trust, you are an insured. Your trustees
are also insureds, but only with respect to
their duties as trustees.

2. Subject to 4., below, each o f the fol lowing is
also an insured:

a. I f you are a religious or educational i n -
stitution:

(1) your elders, deacons, vestrymen,
councilmen, clergy, and teachers;

(2) members o f your Board o f Trustees,
Board o f Governors, or other govern-
ing body created by your charter,
constitution, by-laws, or other similar
governing document, but only while
acting within the scope o f their duties
as such; and

(3) any subsidiary organization that is con -
trolled by the Named Insured. A sub-
sidiary organization is controlled by the
Named Insured i f the Named Insured
owns a majority o f the voting shares
o f that organization.

3. Subject to 4., below, your "employees," other
than those already described in 1. or 2., above,
are also insureds, but only f o r acts within the
scope o f their employment by you or while
performing duties related to the conduct o f
your business. Your "volunteer workers" are
insureds, but only while performing duties r e -
lated to the conduct o f your business with
your knowledge and consent.

4. However:

a. No "employee," "volunteer worker," d i rec-
tor, "executive off icer," of f icer, or other
person is an insured f o r any liability:

(1) to you, to your partners or members
(if you are a partnership or joint ven-
ture), to your members (if you are a
limited liability company), to any o f
your directors, "executive off icers,"
off icers, "employees," or "volunteer
workers";

(2) to the spouse, child, parent, brother,
sister, or next o f kin o f any person in
connection with or as a consequence
o f 4.a.(1); o r

(3) f o r which there is any obligation to
share damages with or repay someone
else who must pay damages, as a con -
sequence o f 4.a.(1) or (2).

b. No person or organization is an insured
with respect to the conduct o f any cu r -
rent or past partnership, joint venture, r e -
ligious or educational institution, or other
organization that is not shown as a named
insured in the Declarations.
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c. I f we designate a person, an organization,
or a class o f persons or organizations, as
an additional insured under this Coverage
Form, then that designation does not i n -
clude any "employee," "volunteer worker,"
"executive off icer," of f icer, director,
agent, representative, subsidiary, or a f f i l i -
ate o f that additional insured. No such
"employee," "volunteer worker," "executive
off icer," of f icer, director, agent, repre -
sentative, subsidiary, or affiliate o f an ad-
ditional insured is an insured under this
Coverage Form unless expressly desig-
nated as an insured in an endorsement we
issue.

d. No person or organization is an insured as
respects any "abuse" that person or o r -
ganization is proved to have knowingly:

(1) committed, participated in, aided, as-
sisted;

(2) concealed; or

(3) attempted to do (1) or (2).

For purposes o f this provision, a person
or organization is proved to have know -
ingly committed conduct described in d.(1),
(2), o r (3) i f that person or organization:

(a) admits to having done so; or

(b) is found to have done so by a final
judgment in a criminal or civil p r o -
ceeding, including but not limited to a
"suit" to which this insurance applies.

Upon the happening o f either (a) or (b),
that person or organization is not an in -
sured, even i f that person or organization
was an insured before the happening o f
(a) or (b). An unproven allegation made in a
claim or "suit" is not, by itself, sufficient
to prove that a person or organization
knowingly committed conduct described in
d.(1), (2), o r (3).

SECTION IV - LIMITS OF INSURANCE

1. The Limits o f Insurance shown in the Declara-
tions and the rules below f ix the most we will
pay regardless o f the number of:

a. insureds;

b. claims made or "suits" brought;

c. persons or organizations making claims or
bringing "suits"; or

d. coverage parts or insuring agreements in
this Policy

2. The Aggregate Limit shown in the Abuse or
Molestation Coverage Part Declarations is the
most we will pay f o r the sum o f all "damages"
under this Abuse or Molestation Coverage
Part.

3. Subject to 2., the Each Abuse Limit is the
most we will pay f o r the sum o f all "damages"
because o f all injury arising out o f all "abuse"
by any one person or organization, or by any
two or more persons or organizations acting
together or in concert, regardless o f the
number o f insureds, claims, "suits," or claim-
ants.

The Limits o f Insurance o f this Coverage Part
apply separately to each consecutive annual p e -
riod and to any remaining period o f less than 12
months, starting with the beginning o f the policy
period in the Declarations, unless the policy p e -
riod is extended after issuance f o r an additional
period o f less than 12 months. In that case, the
additional period will be deemed part o f the last
preceding period f o r purposes o f determining the
Limits o f Insurance.

SECTION V - CONDITIONS

1. Bankruptcy

Bankruptcy or insolvency o f the Insured or o f
the Insured's estate will not relieve us o f our
obligations under this Coverage Part.

2. Duties in the Event of Abuse, Claim or Suit

a. You must see to it that we are notified as
soon as practicable o f any actual, threat-
ened, or alleged "abuse" which may result
in a claim or "suit." To the extent possible,
notice should include:

(1) how, when, and where the "abuse"
took place;

(2) the names and addresses o f injured
persons and witnesses; and
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(3) the nature and location o f any injury or
damage.

b. I f a claim is made or "suit" is brought
against any insured, you must:

(1) immediately record the specifics o f
the claim or "suit" and the date r e -
ceived; and

(2) notify us as soon as practicable.

You must see to it that we receive written
notice o f the claim or "suit" as soon as
practicable.

c. You and any other involved insured must:

(1) immediately send us copies o f any de -
mands, notices, summonses, or legal
papers in connection with the claim or
"suit";

(2) authorize us to obtain records and
other information;

(3) cooperate with us in the investigation,
settlement, or defense o f the claim or
"suit"; and

(4) assist us, upon our request, in the en -
forcement o f any right against any
person or organization which may be
liable to the Insured because o f injury
or damage to which this insurance may
also apply.

d. No insured will, except at that Insured's
own cost, voluntarily make a payment, as -
sume any obligation, or incur any expense,
other than f o r f i rst aid, without our con -
sent.

3. Legal Action Against Us

No person or organization has a right under
this Coverage Part:

a. to join us as a party or otherwise bring us
into a "suit" asking f o r "damages" f rom an
insured; or

b. to sue us on this Coverage Part unless all
o f its terms have been fully complied with.

A person or organization may sue us to r e -
cover on an agreed settlement or on a final
judgment against an insured; but we will not

be liable f o r "damages" that are not payable
under the terms o f this Coverage Part or that
are in excess o f the applicable Limits o f In-
surance. An agreed settlement means a sett le-
ment and release o f liability signed by us, the
Insured and the claimant or the claimant's legal
representative.

4. Other Insurance

a. I f other insurance is available to the In-
sured f o r a loss we cover under this
Abuse or Molestation Coverage Part, our
obligations are limited as follows:

(1) This insurance applies only in excess
of , and does not contribute with, the
sum o f the applicable limits o f any and
all such other insurance, whether that
other insurance:

(a) is valid or not;

(b) is collectible or not; or

(c) describes itself as primary, e x -
cess, contingent, contributing, or
otherwise.

However, this provision a.(1) does not
apply to other insurance that is issued
expressly to apply only in excess o f
the applicable Limit o f Insurance o f
this insurance.

b. I f any insurer affording such other insur-
ance refuses to defend the Insured under
that other insurance, we will defend the
Insured as though that other insurance
were not available. I f we defend, we are
subrogated to all o f the Insured's rights
under such other insurance. The Insured
must do all things necessary to help us
enforce such rights.

c. I f the Coordination o f Limits Endorsement
is attached to this Abuse or Molestation
Coverage Form, and both:

(1) this Abuse or Molestation Coverage
Form; and

(2) any other coverage form, coverage
part, or policy issued by us, or by a
company affiliated with us,
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apply, in whole or in part, to the same
claim, "suit," "abuse," or "damages," then
this Abuse or Molestation Coverage
Form and all such other coverage forms,
coverage parts, or policies described in (2)
are all subject to the Coordination o f L im-
its Endorsement.

5. Representations

By accepting this Policy, you agree:

a. the statements in the Abuse and Molesta-
tion Application are accurate and com -
plete;

b. those statements are representations you
made to us; and

c. we have issued this Policy in reliance upon
your representations.

6. Separation of Insureds

Except with respect to the Limit o f Insurance,
and any rights or duties specifically assigned
in this Coverage Part to the f i rst Named In-
sured, this insurance applies:

a. as i f each named insured were the only
Named Insured; and

b. separately to each insured against whom
claim is made or "suit" is brought.

7. Transfer of Rights of Recovery Against
Others to Us

I f the Insured has rights to recover all or part
o f any payment we have made under this
Coverage Part, those rights are transferred to
us. The Insured must do nothing after loss to
impair them. At our request, the Insured will
bring "suit" or transfer those rights to us and
help us enforce them.

8. When We Do not Renew

I f we decide not to renew this Coverage Part,
we will mail or deliver to the f i rst Named
Insured shown in the Declarations written n o -
tice o f the nonrenewal not less than 30 days
before the expiration date.

I f such notice is mailed, p roo f o f mailing will
be sufficient p roo f o f notice.

SECTION VI - DEFINITIONS

1. "Abuse" means:

a. any actual, threatened, or alleged act, e r -
ror, omission, conduct, or misconduct,
that a claim or "suit" alleges to be, or to
constitute, any fo rm o f abuse (including,
but not limited to, elder abuse, child abuse,
patient abuse, or abuse o f a dependent
person) under any applicable state or f e d -
eral statute or regulation; and

b. any actual, threatened, or alleged act, e r -
ror, omission, conduct, or misconduct, o f
one or more o f the fol lowing kinds:

(1) sexual behavior, sexual conduct or
misconduct, sexual assault, sexual ba t -
tery, sexual abuse, or sexual molesta-
tion, o f or directed at a person;

(2) non-sexual assault, non-sexual ba t -
tery, or non-sexual abuse, o f or d i -
rected at a person; and

(3) any:

(i) employment;

(ii) investigation;

(iii) supervision;

(iv) reporting to proper authorities, or
failure to so report; or

(v) retention in employment;

o f any person committing conduct or
misconduct described in b.(1) or b.(2);
o r

(vi) referral o f a patient, student, pa -
rishioner, client, or person, to any
other person whose conduct or
misconduct is described in a.,
b.(1), o r b.(2).

Conduct or misconduct described in b.(1)
through b.(3) constitutes "abuse" within the
meaning o f this definition regardless o f
whether or not it is alleged to be neg-
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ligent, reckless, knowing, intentional,
fraudulent, oppressive, malicious, or o t h -
erwise.

2. "Auto" means a land motor vehicle, mobile
equipment, trailer, or semi trailer, including any
attached or towed machinery or equipment.

3. "Coverage territory" means:

a. the United States o f America (including its
territories and possessions), Puerto Rico
and Canada;

b. international waters or airspace, provided
the injury or damage does not occur in the
course o f travel or transportation to or
f rom any place not included in paragraph
a. above.

c. all parts o f the world if:

(1) the injury or damages arise out o f the
activities o f a person whose home is
in the territory described in paragraph
a. above, but is away f o r a short time
on your business; and

(2) the Insured's responsibility to pay
damages is determined in a "suit" on
the merits, in the territory described in
paragraph a. above or in a settlement
we agree to.

4. "Damages" means money damages awarded
to compensate f o r harm, except those as to
which applicable law prohibits liability insur-
ance. "Damages" does not include the cost o f
complying with injunctive relief, declaratory
relief, or other equitable actions; fines, penal-
ties, punitive damages, exemplary damages, or
any multiplied or enhanced damages; fees, de -
posits, or commissions; charges f o r goods or
services, or the return, disgorgement, or r e -
imbursement o f such charges; or awards o f
attorneys' fees, attorneys' expenses, or other
costs o f making a claim or bringing a "suit."

5. "Employee" includes a "leased worker." "Em-
ployee" does not include a "temporary wo r k -
er."

6. "Executive officer" means a person holding
any o f the of f icer positions created by your
charter, constitution, by- laws or any other
similar governing document.

7. "Fungi" means any type or fo rm o f fungus,
including mold or mildew and any mycotoxin,
spore, scent, or byproduct produced or r e -
leased by any fungus or by the death or decay
o f any fungus.

8. "Leased worker" means a person leased to
you by a labor leasing f i rm under an agree-
ment between you and the labor leasing firm,
to perform duties related to the conduct o f
your business. "Leased worker" does not i n -
clude a "temporary worker."

9. "Pollutant" means any solid, liquid, gaseous,
or thermal irritant or contaminant, including
smoke, vapor, soot, fumes, acids, alkalis,
chemicals, and waste. Waste includes materi-
als to be recycled, reconditioned, or r e -
claimed.

10. "Suit" means a civil proceeding in which
"damages" to which this coverage applies are
alleged. "Suit" includes:

a. an arbitration proceeding in which such
"damages" are claimed and to which you
must submit or do submit with our con -
sent; or

b. any other alternative dispute resolution
proceeding in which such "damages" are
claimed and to which you must submit or
do submit with our consent.

"Suit" does not include any administrative
hearing, investigation, licensure proceeding,
enforcement proceeding, or any similar p r o -
ceeding by any federal, state, or local go v -
ernmental, administrative, or regulatory agen-
cy.

11. "Temporary worker" means a person who is
furnished to you to substitute f o r a permanent
"employee" on leave or to meet seasonal or
short - term workload conditions.

12. "Volunteer worker" means a person who is
not your "employee" and who donates his or
her work and acts at the direction o f and
within the scope o f duties determined by you,
and is not paid a fee, salary, or other c om -
pensation by you or anyone else f o r their
work performed f o r you.
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THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

FLORIDA CHANGES - CANCELLATION AND NONRENEWAL

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
ELECTRONIC DATA LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
LIQUOR LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
POLLUTION LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
PRODUCT WITHDRAWAL COVERAGE PART
PRODUCTS/COMPLETED OPERATIONS LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
ABUSE OR MOLESTATION COVERAGE PART

A. Paragraph 2. o f the Cancellation Common
Policy Condition is replaced by the following:

2. Cancellation of Policies in Effect

a. For 90 Days or Less

I f this Policy has been in ef fec t f o r 90
days or less, we may cancel this Policy
by mailing or delivering to the f i rst
Named Insured written notice o f can-
cellation, accompanied by the reasons
f o r cancellation, at least:

(1) 10 days before the effect ive date
o f cancellation i f we cancel f o r
nonpayment o f premium; or

(2) 20 days before the effect ive date
o f cancellation i f we cancel f o r
any other reason, except we may
cancel immediately i f there has
been:

(a) a material misstatement or
misrepresentation; or

(b) a failure to comply with the
underwriting requirements
established by the insurer.

b. For More than 90 Days

I f this Policy has been in ef fec t f o r
more than 90 days, we may cancel this
Policy only f o r one or more o f the
fol lowing reasons:

(1) nonpayment o f premium;

(2) the Policy was obtained by a ma-
terial misstatement;

(3) failure to comply with underwr i t -
ing requirements established by
the insurer within 90 days o f the
effect ive date o f coverage;

(4) a substantial change in the risk
covered by the Policy; or

(5) the cancellation is f o r all insureds
under such policies f o r a given
class o f insureds.

I f we cancel this Policy f o r any o f
these reasons, we will mail or deliver
to the f i rst Named Insured written n o -
tice o f cancellation, accompanied by
the reasons f o r cancellation, at least:
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(a) 10 days before the effect ive
date o f cancellation i f we
cancel f o r nonpayment o f
premium; or

(b) 45 days before the effect ive
date o f cancellation i f we
cancel f o r any o f the other
reasons stated in paragraph
2.b.

B. Paragraph 3. o f the Cancellation Common
Policy Condition is replaced by the following:

3. We will mail or deliver our notice to the
f i rst Named Insured at the last mailing ad-
dress known to us.

C. Paragraph 5. o f the Cancellation Common
Policy Condition is replaced by the following:

5. I f this Policy is cancelled, we will send the
f i rst Named Insured any premium refund
due. If we cancel, the refund will be pro
rata. I f the f i rst Named Insured cancels,
the refund may be less than pro rata. I f the
return premium is not refunded with the
notice o f cancellation or when this Policy
is returned to us, we will mail the refund
within 15 working days after the date
cancellation takes effect , unless this is an
audit policy.

I f this is an audit policy, then, subject to
your full cooperation with us or our agent
in securing the necessary data f o r audit,
we will return any premium refund due
within 90 days o f the date cancellation
takes effect. I f our audit is not completed
within this time limitation, then we shall
accept your own audit, and any premium
refund due shall be mailed within 10
working days o f receipt o f your audit.

The cancellation will be effect ive even i f
we have not made or of fered a refund.

D. The fol lowing is added and supersedes any
other provision to the contrary:

Nonrenewal

1. I f we decide not to renew this Policy, we
will mail or deliver to the f i rst Named In-
sured written notice o f nonrenewal, ac -
companied by the reason f o r nonrenewal,
at least 45 days prior to the expiration o f
this Policy.

2. Any notice o f nonrenewal will be mailed
or delivered to the f i rst Named Insured at
the last mailing address known to us. I f
notice is mailed, p roo f o f mailing will be
sufficient p roo f o f notice.
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THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

FLORIDA - SIGNATURE GENERAL LIABILITY BROADENING ENDORSEMENT

This Endorsement modifies and is subject to the insurance provided under the fol lowing form:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

This is a summary o f the various additional coverages and coverage modifications provided by this
Endorsement. For complete details on specific coverages, consult the actual policy wording.

Coverage Description Limit of Insurance Page

Non-Owned Aircraft Included 2

Non-Owned Watercraft Included 2

Bodily Injury - Mental Injury, Mental Anguish, Humiliation or Shock Included 3

Medical Payments $ 20,000 3

Damage to Premises Rented to You $ 1,000,000 3

Supplementary Payments - Bail Bonds $ 3,000 4

Supplementary Payments - Loss o f Earnings $ 1,000 per day 4

Newly Formed or Acquired Organizations Included 4

Unintentional Failure to Disclose Hazards Included 5

Knowledge o f Occurrence, Claim or Suit Included 5

Property Damage Liability - Elevators Included 5

Property Damage Liability - Borrowed Equipment Included 5

Liberalization Clause Included 5

Amendment o f Pollution Exclusion (Premises) Included 6

Limited Property Damage to Property o f Others $ 5,000 6

Additional Insured - Manager or Lessor o f Premises Included 7
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Coverage Description Limit of Insurance Page

Additional Insured - Funding Sources Included 7

Additional Insured - By Contract Included 8

Primary and Non-Contributory Additional Insured Extension Included 10

Additional Insureds - Protection o f Your Limits Included 10

Blanket Waiver o f Transfer o f Rights o f Recovery Against Others Included
to Us (Subrogation) 11

Property Damage Extension With Voluntary Payments $ 1,000/$ 5,000 11

Broadened Personal and Advertising Injury Included 12

A. Non-Owned Aircraft

Under paragraph 2. Exclusions o f SECTION I - COVERAGE A - Bodily Injury and Property
Damage Liability, exclusion g. Aircraft, Auto or Watercraft does not apply to an aircraft provided:

1. it is not owned by any insured;

2. it is hired, chartered or loaned with a trained paid crew;

3. the pilot in command holds a currently effect ive certificate, issued by the duly constituted
authority o f the United States o f America or Canada, designating him or her a commercial or
airline pilot; and

4. it is not being used to carry persons or property f o r a charge.

However, the insurance afforded by this provision does not apply i f there is available to the Insured
other valid and collectible insurance, whether primary, excess (other than insurance written to apply
specifically in excess o f this Policy), contingent or on any other basis, that would also apply to the
loss covered under this provision.

B. Non-Owned Watercraft

Under paragraph 2. Exclusions o f SECTION I - COVERAGE A - Bodily Injury and Property
Damage Liability, subparagraph (2) o f exclusion g. Aircraft, Auto or Watercraft is replaced by the
following:

This exclusion does not apply to:

(2) A watercraft you do not own that is:

(a) less than 60 feet long; and

(b) not being used to carry persons or property f o r a charge.
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C. Bodily Injury - Mental Injury, Mental Anguish, Humiliation or Shock

Under SECTION V - DEFINITIONS, Definition 3. is replaced by the following:

3. "Bodily Injury" means physical injury, sickness, or disease, including death o f a person. "Bodily
Injury" also means mental injury, mental anguish, humiliation, or shock i f directly resulting f rom
physical injury, sickness, or disease to that person.

D. Medical Payments

I f Coverage C Medical Payments is not otherwise excluded, the Medical Payments provided by
this Policy are amended as follows:

The Medical Expense Limit in paragraph 7. o f SECTION III - LIMITS OF INSURANCE is replaced by
the fol lowing Medical expense Limit:

The Medical Expense Limit provided by this Policy shall be the greater of:

a. $ 20,000; or

b. the amount shown in the Declarations f o r Medical Expense Limit

This provision 7. is subject to all the terms o f SECTION III - LIMITS OF INSURANCE.

E. Damage to Premises Rented to You

I f Damage to Premises Rented to You is not otherwise excluded f rom this Coverage Part:

1. Under paragraph 2. Exclusions o f SECTION I - COVERAGE A - Bodily Injury and Property
Damage Liability:

3. The last paragraph o f paragraph 2. Exclusions is deleted in its entirety and replaced by the
following:

Exclusions c. through n. do not apply to damage by fire, lightning, explosion, smoke,
leakage f rom an automatic f i re protection system or water to premises while rented to you
or temporarily occupied by you with permission o f the owner. A separate Limit o f
Insurance applies to this coverage as described in SECTION III - LIMITS OF INSURANCE.

However, this insurance does not apply to damage to premises while rented to you, or
temporarily occupied by you with the permission o f the owner, caused by:

i. rupture, bursting, or operation o f pressure relief devices;

ii. rupture or bursting due to expansion or swelling o f the contents o f any building or
structure, caused by or resulting f rom water;

iii. explosion o f steam boilers, steam pipes, steam engines, or steam turbines; or

iv. f lood

2. Paragraph 6. Under SECTION III - LIMITS OF INSURANCE is deleted in its entirety and
replaced with the following:

6. Subject to paragraph 5. above, the most we will pay under Coverage A f o r damages
because o f "property damage" to any one premises, while rented to you, or in the case o f
damage caused by fire, lightning, explosion, smoke, leakage f rom automatic f i re protection
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system or water while rented to you or temporarily occupied by you with the permission
o f the owner, f o r all such damage caused by fire, lightning, explosion, smoke, leakage f rom
automatic f i re protection systems or water proximately caused by the same event, whether
such damage results f rom fire, lightning, explosion, smoke, leakage f rom automatic f i re
protection systems or water or any combination o f the six, is the higher o f $ 1,000,000 or
the amount shown in the Declarations f o r the Damage to Premises Rented to You Limit.

3. Under SECTION IV - COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY CONDITIONS, subsection 4. Other
Insurance, paragraph b. Excess Insurance where the words "Fire insurance" appear they are
changed to "insurance f o r fire, lightning, explosion, smoke, leakage f rom an automatic f i re
protection system or water."

4. As regards coverage provided by this provision I. Damage to Premises Rented to You -
paragraph 9.a. o f Definitions is replaced with the following:

9. a. a contract f o r a lease o f premises. However, that portion o f the contract f o r a lease o f
premises that indemnifies any person or organization f o r damage by fire, lightning,
explosion, smoke, leakage f rom automatic f i re protection systems or water to
premises while rented to you or temporarily occupied by you with the permission o f
the owner is not an "insured contract";

F. Supplementary Payments

1. In the Supplementary Payments - Coverages A and B provision, paragraph 1.b. is replaced
with:

b. Up to $ 3,000 f o r the cost o f bail bonds required because o f accidents or t raf f ic law
violations arising out o f the use o f any vehicle to which the Bodily Injury Liability Coverage
applies. We do not have to furnish these bonds.

2. Paragraph 1.d. is replaced by the following:

d. All reasonable expenses incurred by the Insured at our request to assist us in the
investigation or defense o f the claim or "suit," including actual loss o f earnings up to $
1,000 a day because o f time o f f work.

G. Newly Formed or Acquired Organizations

Paragraph 3. o f SECTION II - WHO IS AN INSURED is replaced by the following:

3. Any organization you newly acquire or fo rm and over which you maintain ownership or majority
interest, will qualify as a named insured i f there is no other similar insurance available to that
organization. However:

a. coverage under this provision is afforded only until the expiration o f the policy period in
which the entity was acquired or formed by you;

b. coverage A does not apply to "bodily injury" or property damage that occurred before you
acquired or formed the organization; and

c. coverage B does not apply to "personal and advertising injury" arising out o f an offense
committed before you acquired or formed the organization.

d. records and descriptions o f operations must be maintained by the f i rst named insured.

No person or organization is an insured with respect to the conduct o f any current or past
partnership, joint venture or limited liability company that is not shown as a named insured in the
Declarations or qualifies as an insured under this provision.
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H. Unintentional Failure to Disclose Hazards

Under SECTION IV - COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY CONDITIONS, the fol lowing is added to
Condition 6. Representations:

Failure o f the Insured to disclose all hazards existing as o f the inception date o f this Policy shall not
prejudice the insurance with respect to the coverage afforded by this Policy, provided such failure
or omission is not intentional on the part o f the Insured.

I. Knowledge of Occurrence, Claim or Suit

Under SECTION IV - COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY CONDITIONS, the fol lowing is added to
Condition 2. Duties in the Event of Occurrence, Offense, Claim or Suit:

Knowledge o f any occurrence, claim, or suit by any agent, servant or employee o f the Named
Insured does not in itself constitute knowledge by the Insured unless notice o f such injury, claim or
suit shall have been received by:

a. you, i f you are an individual;

b. a partner, i f you are a partnership

c. an executive of f icer or insurance manager, i f you are a corporation.

J. Property Damage Liability - Elevators

1. Under paragraph 2. Exclusions o f SECTION I - COVERAGE A - Bodily Injury and Property
Damage Liability, subparagraphs (3), (4) and (6) o f exclusion j. Damage to Property do not
apply i f such property damage results f rom the use o f elevators.

2. The fol lowing is added to SECTION IV - COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY CONDITIONS,
Condition 4. Other Insurance, paragraph b. Excess Insurance:

The insurance afforded by this provision o f this Endorsement is excess over any property
insurance, whether primary, excess, contingent or on any other basis.

K. Property Damage Liability - Borrowed Equipment

1. Under paragraph 2. Exclusions o f SECTION I - COVERAGE A - Bodily Injury and Property
Damage Liability, subparagraph (4) o f exclusion j. Damage to Property does not apply to
"property damage" to borrowed equipment while not being used to perform operations at a job
site.

2. The fol lowing is added to SECTION IV - COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY Conditions,
Condition 4. Other Insurance, paragraph b. Excess Insurance:

The insurance afforded by this provision o f this Endorsement is excess over any property
insurance, whether primary, excess, contingent or on any other basis.

L. Liberalization Clause

I f we revise this Signature General Liability Broadening Endorsement to provide more coverage
without additional premium charge, your policy will automatically provide the coverage as o f the
date the revision is effect ive in your state.
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M. Amendment of Pollution Exclusion (Premises)

1. The fol lowing is added to paragraph (1)(a) o f Exclusion f. o f SECTION I - COVERAGE A -
Bodily Injury and Property Damage Liability:

(iv) "Bodily injury" or "property damage" arising out o f the actual discharge, dispersal, seepage,
migration, release or escape o f "pollutants."

As used in this Endorsement, the actual discharge, dispersal, seepage, migration, release or
escape o f pollutants must:

(aa) commence on a clearly identifiable day during the policy period; and

(bb) end, in its entirety, within seventy- two (72) hours o f the commencement o f the
discharge, dispersal, seepage, migration, release or escape o f "pollutants"; and

(cc) be discovered and reported to us within f i f teen (15) days o f the clearly identifiable day
that the discharge, dispersal, seepage, migration, release or escape o f "pollutants"
commences; and

(dd) be neither expected nor intended f rom the standpoint o f any insured; and

(ee) be unrelated to any previous discharge, dispersal, seepage, migration, release or
escape; and

(ff) not originate at or f rom a storage tank or other container, duct or piping which:

a. is below the surface o f the ground or water; or

b. at any time has been buried under the surface o f the ground or water and then is
subsequently exposed.

2. For the purposes o f this coverage, the fol lowing is added to the definition o f "property
damage" o f SECTION V - DEFINITIONS and applies only as respects this coverage:

Land or water, whether below ground level or not, is not tangible property.

3. Coverage provided hereunder does not apply to any discharge, dispersal, seepage, migration,
release or escape that is merely threatened or alleged rather than shown to have actually
occurred.

N. Limited Property Damage to Property of Others

The fol lowing is added under SECTION I - SUPPLEMENTARY PAYMENTS - COVERAGES A and B:

3. We will pay up to $ 5,000 f o r loss to personal property o f others while in the temporary care,
custody or control o f an insured caused by any person participating in your organized activities.
For the purpose o f this supplementary payment, loss shall mean damage or destruction but
does not include mysterious disappearance or loss o f use. In the event o f a theft, a police
report must be filed. This supplementary payment does not apply if:

a. coverage is otherwise provided by the Property Coverage part (if any) o f this Policy; or

b. the loss is covered by any other insurance you have or by any insurance o f such person
who causes such loss.

These payments will not reduce the Limits o f Insurance.
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O. Additional Insured - Manager or Lessor of Premises

1. SECTION II - WHO IS AN INSURED is amended to include as an additional insured any person
or organization f rom whom you lease or rent property and which requires you to add such
person or organization as an additional insured on this Policy under:

(a) a written contract; or

(b) an oral agreement or contract where a Certificate o f Insurance showing that person or
organization as an additional insured has been issued;

but the written or oral contract or agreement must be an "insured contract," and,

(i) currently in e f fec t or become effect ive during the term o f this Policy; and

(ii) executed prior to the "bodily injury," "property damage," "personal and advertising injury."

2. With respect to the insurance afforded to the Additional Insured identified in paragraph 1.
above, the fol lowing additional provisions apply:

(a) This insurance applies only with respect to the liability arising out o f the ownership,
maintenance or use o f that part o f the premises leased to you.

(b) The Limits o f Insurance applicable to the Additional Insured are the lesser o f those
specified in the written contract or agreement or in the Declarations f o r this Policy and
subject to all the terms, conditions and exclusions f o r this Policy. The Limits o f Insurance
applicable to the Additional Insured are inclusive o f and not in addition to the Limits o f
Insurance shown in the Declarations.

(c) In no event shall the coverages or Limits o f Insurance in this Coverage Form be increased
by such contract.

(d) Coverage provided herein is excess over any other valid and collectible insurance available
to the Additional Insured whether the other insurance is primary, excess, contingent or on
any other basis unless a written contractual arrangement specifically requires this insurance
to be primary.

(e) This insurance applies only to the extent permitted by law.

3. This insurance does not apply to:

(a) Any "occurrence" or offense which takes place after you cease to be a tenant in that
premises.

(b) Structural alterations, new construction or demolition operations performed by or on behalf
o f the Additional Insured.

P. Additional Insured - Funding Sources

1. SECTION II - WHO IS AN INSURED is amended to include as an additional insured any Funding
Source which requires you in a written contract to name the Funding Source as an additional
insured but only with respect to liability arising out of:

a. your premises; or

b. "your work" f o r such additional insured; or
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c. acts or omissions o f such additional insured in connection with the general supervision o f
"your work"

and only to the extent set for th as follows:

a. The Limits o f Insurance applicable to the Additional Insured are the lesser o f those
specified in the written contract or agreement or in the Declarations f o r this Policy and
subject to all the terms, conditions and exclusions f o r this Policy. The Limits o f Insurance
applicable to the Additional Insured are inclusive o f and not in addition to the Limits o f
Insurance shown in the Declarations.

b. The insurance afforded to the Additional Insured only applies to the extent permitted by law

c. I f coverage provided to the Additional Insured is required by a contract or agreement, the
insurance afforded to such additional insured will not be broader than that which you are
required by the contract or agreement to provide f o r such additional insured.

d. In no event shall the coverages or Limits o f Insurance in this Coverage Form be increased
by such contract.

Q. Additional Insureds - By Contract

1. SECTION II - WHO IS AN INSURED is amended to include as an insured any person or
organization whom you have agreed to add as an additional insured in a written contract, written
agreement or permit. Such person or organization is an additional insured but only with respect
to liability f o r "bodily injury," "property damage" or "personal and advertising injury" arising out
of:

a. your acts or omissions, or the acts or omissions o f those acting on your behalf, in the
performance o f your ongoing operations f o r the Additional Insured that are subject o f the
written contract or written agreement provided that the "bodily injury" or "property damage
occurs, or the "personal and advertising injury" is committed, subsequent to the signing o f
such written contract or written agreement; or

b. the maintenance, operation or use by you o f equipment rented or leased to you by such
person or organization; or

c. the Additional Insureds financial control o f you; or

d. operations performed by you or on your behalf f o r which the state or political subdivision
has issued a permit

However:

1. the insurance afforded to such additional insured only applies to the extent permitted by
law; and

2. i f coverage provided to the Additional Insured is required by contract or agreement, the
insurance afforded to such additional insured will not be broader than that which you are
required by the contract or agreement to provide such additional insured.

With respect to paragraph 1.a. above, a person's or organization's status as an additional insured
under this Endorsement ends when:

(1) all work, including materials, parts or equipment furnished in connection with such work, on
the project (other than service, maintenance or repairs) to be performed f o r or on behalf
o f the Additional Insured(s) at the location o f the covered operations has been completed;
or
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(2) that portion o f "your work" out o f which the injury or damage arises has been put to its
intended use by any person or organization other than another contractor or subcontractor
engaged in performing operations f o r a principal as a part o f the same project.

With respect to paragraph 1.b. above, this insurance does not apply to any "occurrence" which
takes place after the equipment rental or lease agreement has expired or you have returned
such equipment to the lessor.

The insurance provided by this Endorsement applies only i f the written contract or written
agreement is signed prior to the "bodily injury" or "property damage."

We have no duty to defend an additional insured under this Endorsement until we receive
written notice o f a "suit" by the Additional Insured as required in paragraph b. o f Condition 2.
Duties in the Event of Occurrence, Offense, Claim or Suit under SECTION IV -
COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY CONDITION.

2. With respect to the insurance provided by this Endorsement, the fol lowing are added to
paragraph 2. Exclusions under SECTION I - COVERAGE A - Bodily Injury and Property
Damage Liability:

This insurance does not apply to:

a. "Bodily injury" or "property damage" that occurs prior to your commencing operations at
the location where such "bodily injury" or "property damage" occurs.

b. "Bodily injury," "property damage" or "personal and advertising injury" arising out o f the
rendering of , or failure to render, any professional architectural, engineering or surveying
services, including:

(1) the preparing, approving, or failing to prepare or approve, maps, shop drawings,
opinions, reports, surveys, field orders, change orders or drawings and specifications;
or

(2) supervisory, inspection, architectural or engineering activities.

This exclusion applies even i f the claims against any insured allege negligence or other
wrongdoing in the supervision, hiring, employment, training or monitoring o f others by that
Insured, i f the "occurrence" which caused the "bodily injury" or "property damage," or the
offense which caused the "personal and advertising injury," involved the rendering of , or failure
to render, any professional architectural, engineering or surveying services.

c. "Bodily injury" or "property damage" occurring after:

(1) all work, including materials, parts or equipment furnished in connection with such
work, on the project (other than service, maintenance or repairs) to be performed f o r
or on behalf o f the Additional Insured(s) at the location o f the covered operations has
been completed; or

(2) that portion o f "your work" out o f which the injury or damage arises has been put to its
intended use by any person or organization other than another contractor or
subcontractor engaged in performing operations f o r a principal as a part o f the same
project.

d. Any person or organization specifically designated as an additional insured f o r ongoing
operations by a separate additional insured endorsement issued by us and made part o f this
Policy.
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3. With respect to the insurance afforded to these Additional Insureds, the fol lowing is added to
SECTION III - LIMITS OF INSURANCE:

I f coverage provided to the Additional Insured is required by a contract or agreement, the most
we will pay on behalf o f the Additional Insured is the amount o f insurance:

a. required by the contract or agreement; or

b. available under the applicable Limits o f Insurance shown in the Declarations;

whichever is less.

This Endorsement shall not increase the applicable Limits o f Insurance shown in the Declarations.

R. Primary and Non-Contributory Additional Insured Extension

This provision applies to any person or organization who qualifies as an additional insured under any
fo rm or endorsement under this Policy.

Condition 4. Other Insurance o f SECTION IV - COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY CONDITIONS
is amended as follows:

a. The fol lowing is added to paragraph a. Primary Insurance:

This insurance is primary to and will not seek contribution f rom any other insurance available to
an additional insured under your policy provided that:

(1) the Additional Insured is a named insured under such other insurance; and

(2) you have agreed in writing in a contract or agreement that this insurance would be primary
and would not seek contribution f rom any other insurance available to the Additional
Insured.

b. The fol lowing is added to paragraph b. Excess Insurance:

When a written contract or written agreement, other than a premises lease, facilities rental
contract or agreement, an equipment rental or lease contract or agreement or permit issued by
a state or political subdivision between you and an additional insured does not require this
insurance to be primary or primary and non-contributory, this insurance is excess over any
other insurance f o r which the Additional Insured is designated as a named insured.

Regardless o f the written agreement between you and an additional insured, this insurance is
excess over any other insurance whether primary, excess, contingent or on any other basis f o r
which the Additional Insured has been added as an additional insured on other policies.

S. Additional Insureds - Protection of Your Limits

This provision applies to any person or organization who qualifies as an additional insured under any
fo rm or endorsement under this Policy.

1. The fol lowing is added to Condition 2. Duties in the Event of Occurrence, Offense, Claim or
Suit:

An additional insured under this Endorsement will as soon as practicable:

a. give written notice o f an "occurrence" or an offense that may result in a claim or "suit"
under this insurance to us;
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b. tender the defense and indemnity o f any claim or "suit" to all insurers whom also have
insurance available to the Additional Insured; and

c. agree to make available any other insurance which the Additional Insured has f o r a loss we
cover under this Coverage Part.

d. we have no duty to defend or indemnify an additional insured under this Endorsement until
we receive written notice o f a "suit" by the Additional Insured.

2. The Limits o f Insurance applicable to the Additional Insured are those specified in a written
contract or written agreement or the Limits o f Insurance stated in the Declarations o f this Policy
and defined in SECTION III - LIMITS OF INSURANCE o f this Policy, whichever are less. These
limits are inclusive o f and not in addition to the Limits o f Insurance available under this Policy.

T. Blanket Waiver of Transfer of Rights of Recovery Against Others to Us (Subrogation)

Under SECTION IV - COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY CONDITIONS, the fol lowing is added to
Condition 8. Transfer of Rights of Recovery Against Others to Us:

I f required by a written contract or written agreement, we waive any right o f recovery we may
have against a person or organization because o f payment we make f o r injury or damage arising out
o f your ongoing operations or "your work" done under a contract f o r that person or organization
and included in the "products-completed operations hazard" provided that the injury or damage
occurs subsequent to the execution o f the written contract or written agreement.

U. Property Damage Extension with Voluntary Payments

1. The fol lowing is added to paragraph 1. Insuring Agreement o f SECTION I - COVERAGE A -
Bodily Injury and Property Damage Liability:

At your request we will pay f o r "loss" to property o f others caused by your business
operations f o r which this Policy provides liability insurance. Such payment will be made without
regard to your legal obligation to do so. The "loss" must occur during the policy period and
must take place in the "coverage territory."

2. With respect to the coverage afforded under paragraph 1. above, paragraph 2. Exclusions o f
SECTION I - COVERAGES A - Bodily Injury and Property Damage Liability is amended as
follows:

Exclusions j.(3), j.(4), j.(5) and j.(6) are deleted.

3. As respects coverage afforded by this coverage, SECTION III - LIMITS OF INSURANCE is
replaced by the following:

Regardless o f the number o f insureds, claims made or "suits" brought or persons or
organizations making claims or bring "suits":

1. Subject to 2. Below, the most we will pay f o r one or more "loss" arising out o f any one
"occurrence" is $ 1,000.

2. The aggregate amount we will pay f o r the sum o f all "loss" in an annual period is $ 5,000.
This aggregate amount is part o f and not in addition to the General Aggregate Limit
described in paragraph 2. o f SECTION III - LIMITS OF INSURANCE.
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V. Broadened Personal and Advertising Injury

1. Unless "Personal and Advertising Injury" is excluded f rom this Policy, the fol lowing is added to
SECTION V - DEFINITIONS Item 14.:

h. mental injury, mental anguish, humiliation, or shock, i f directly resulting f rom Items 14.a.
through 14.e.
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THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

EXCLUSION - PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

This endorsement modifies and is subject to the insurance provided under the fol lowing form:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

1. The fol lowing exclusion is added to paragraph 2. Exclusions o f SECTION I - COVERAGE A -
Bodily Injury and Property Damage Liability and paragraph 2. Exclusions o f SECTION I -
COVERAGE B - Personal and Advertising Injury Liability:

This insurance does not apply to "bodily injury", "property damage" or "personal and advertising
injury" due to the rendering o f or failure to render any "professional service".

This exclusion applies even i f the claims against any insured allege negligence or other wrongdoing
in the supervision, hiring, employment, training or monitoring o f others by that Insured, i f the
"occurrence" which caused the "bodily injury" or "property damage", or the offense which caused
the "personal and advertising injury", involved the rendering o f or failure to render any "professional
service".

2. The fol lowing is added to SECTION V. DEFINITIONS:

a. "Professional Services" includes any service:

1. that involves specialized education, knowledge, labor, judgment, and skill, and is
predominantly mental or intellectual (as opposed to physical or manual) in nature.

b. "Professional Services" includes the following:

1. advice, guidance, or assistance;

2. counseling;

3. social work:

4. therapy;

5. daycare;

6. nursing or health care;

7. educational instruction or teaching;

8. job training, job placement, job referral, and vocational services; and

9. other services o f the kind described in a., above.

c. "Professional Services" includes the furnishing, dispensing, or administration o f any prescription
drug.
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THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

© Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2019
CG 91 69 (Ed. 02/20)

MEDICAL PAYMENTS AT YOUR REQUEST ENDORSEMENT

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following: 

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE FORM

The following is added to SECTION I – COVERAGES - COVERAGE C - MEDICAL PAYMENTS:

If medical payments are covered and not otherwise excluded under the policy, medical payments will be paid only if you 
request that we pay such expenses.  

All other terms and conditions of the policy remain unchanged.
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THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

EXCLUSION OF OTHER ACTS OF TERRORISM
COMMITTED OUTSIDE THE UNITED STATES; CAP ON LOSSES

FROM CERTIFIED ACTS OF TERRORISM

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
LIQUOR LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
OWNERS AND CONTRACTORS PROTECTIVE LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
POLLUTION LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
PRODUCTS/COMPLETED OPERATIONS LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
RAILROAD PROTECTIVE LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
UNDERGROUND STORAGE TANK POLICY

A. The fol lowing exclusion is added:

This insurance does not apply to:

TERRORISM

"Any injury or damage" arising, directly or i n -
directly, out o f an "other act o f terrorism"
that is committed outside o f the United States
(including its territories and possessions and
Puerto Rico), but within the "coverage te r r i -
tory". However, this exclusion applies only
when one or more o f the fol lowing are a t -
tributed to such act:

1. The total o f insured damage to all types o f
property exceeds $25,000,000 (valued in
U.S. dollars). In determining whether the
$25,000,000 threshold is exceeded, we
will include all insured damage sustained
by property o f all persons and entities
affected by the terrorism and business in -
terruption losses sustained by owners or
occupants o f the damaged property. For
the purpose o f this provision, insured
damage means damage that is covered by
any insurance plus damage that would be
covered by any insurance but f o r the ap -
plication o f any terrorism exclusions; or

2. Fifty or more persons sustain death or
serious physical injury. For the purposes
o f this provision, serious physical injury
means:

a. Physical injury that involves a substan-
tial risk o f death; or

b. Protracted and obvious physical d is -
figurement; or

c. Protracted loss o f or impairment o f
the function o f a bodily member or
organ; or

3. The terrorism involves the use, release or
escape o f nuclear materials, or directly or
indirectly results in nuclear reaction or r a -
diation or radioactive contamination; or

4. The terrorism is carried out by means o f
the dispersal o f application o f pathogenic
or poisonous biological or chemical ma-
terials; or

5. Pathogenic or poisonous biological or
chemical materials are released, and it ap -
pears that one purpose o f the terrorism
was to release such materials.

With respect to this exclusion, Paragraphs 1.
and 2. describe the thresholds used to mea-
sure the magnitude o f an incident o f an "other
act o f terrorism" and the circumstances in
which the threshold will apply f o r the purpose
o f determining whether this exclusion will ap -
ply to that incident.
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B. The fol lowing definitions are added:

1. For the purposes o f this endorsement,
"any injury or damage" means any injury or
damage covered under any Coverage Part
to which this endorsement is applicable,
and includes but is not limited to "bodily
injury", "property damage", "personal and
advertising injury", "injury" or "environ-
mental damage" as may be defined in any
applicable Coverage Part.

2. "Certified act o f terrorism" means an act
that is certif ied by the Secretary o f the
Treasury, in accordance with the prov i -
sions o f the federal Terrorism Risk Insur-
ance Act, to be an act o f terrorism pursu-
ant to such Act. The criteria contained in
the Terrorism Risk Insurance Act f o r a
"certified act o f terrorism" include the
following:

a. The act resulted in insured losses in
excess o f $5 million in the aggregate,
attributable to all types o f insurance
subject to the Terrorism Risk Insur-
ance Act;

b. The act resulted in damage:

(1) Within the United States (including
its territories and possessions
and Puerto Rico); or

(2) Outside o f the United States in
the case of:

(a) An air carrier (as defined in
Section 40102 o f title 49,
United States Code) or Unit-
ed States flag vessel (or a
vessel based principally in
the United States, on which
United States income tax is
paid and whose insurance
coverage is subject to regu-
lation in the United States),
regardless o f where the loss
occurs; or

(b) The premises o f any United
States mission; and

c. The act is a violent act or an act that is
dangerous to human life, property or
infrastructure and is committed by an
individual or individuals as part o f an
e f fo r t to coerce the civilian population
o f the United States or to influence
the policy or af fect the conduct o f the
United States Government by coercion.

3. "Other act o f terrorism" means a violent
act or an act that is dangerous to human
life, property or infrastructure that is
committed by an individual or individuals
and that appears to be part o f an e f fo r t to
coerce a civilian population or to influence
the policy or af fect the conduct o f any
government by coercion, and the act is
not a "certified act o f terrorism".

Multiple incidents o f an "other act o f t e r -
rorism" which occur within a seventy- two
hour period and appear to be carried out
in concert or to have a related purpose or
common leadership shall be considered to
be one incident.

C. The terms and limitations o f any terrorism
exclusion, or the inapplicability or omission o f
a terrorism exclusion, do not serve to create
coverage f o r injury or damage that is o ther -
wise excluded under this Coverage Part.

D. I f aggregate insured losses attributable to t e r -
rorist acts certif ied under the federal Ter ro r -
ism Risk Insurance Act exceed $100 billion in
a calendar year and we have met our insurer
deductible under the Terrorism Risk Insurance
Act, we shall not be liable f o r the payment o f
any portion o f the amount o f such losses that
exceeds $100 billion, and in such case insured
losses up to that amount are subject to pro
rata allocation in accordance with procedures
established by the Secretary o f the Treasury.
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THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

EXCLUSION - ABUSE, MOLESTATION, HARASSMENT OR SEXUAL CONDUCT

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

The fol lowing is added to the Exclusions section o f the policy:

This insurance does not apply to "bodily injury," "property damage," or "personal and advertising injury"
arising out of:

(a) the actual, threatened or alleged "abuse", molestation, harassment or sexual conduct by anyone o f
any person; or

(b) the negligent:

(i) employment;

(ii) investigation;

(iii) supervision;

(iv) reporting to the proper authorities,

(v) or failure to so report;

(vi) retention; or

(vii) referral

o f a person f o r whom any insured is or ever was legally responsible and whose conduct would be
excluded by a. above.

For the purpose o f this endorsement:

"Abuse" means:

a. any actual, threatened, or alleged act, error, omission, conduct, or misconduct, that a claim or "suit"
alleges to be, or to constitute, any fo rm o f abuse (including, but not limited to, elder abuse, child
abuse, patient abuse, or abuse o f a dependent person) under any applicable state or federal statute
or regulation; and

b. any actual, threatened, or alleged act, error, omission, conduct, or misconduct, o f one or more o f
the fol lowing kinds:

(1) sexual behavior, sexual conduct or misconduct, sexual assault, sexual battery, sexual abuse, or
sexual molestation, o f or directed at a person;
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(2) non-sexual assault, non-sexual battery, or non-sexual abuse, o f or directed at a person; and

(3) any:

(i) employment;

(ii) investigation;

(iii) supervision;

(iv) reporting to proper authorities, or failure to so report; or

(v) retention in employment;

o f any person committing conduct or misconduct described in b.(1) or b.(2); or

(vi) referral o f a patient, student, parishioner, client, or person, to any other person whose
conduct or misconduct is described in a., b.(1), or b.(2).

Conduct or misconduct described in b.(1) through b.(3) constitutes "abuse" within the meaning o f this
definition regardless o f whether or not it is alleged to be negligent, reckless, knowing, intentional,
fraudulent, oppressive, malicious, or otherwise.

This endorsement does not change any other provision o f the policy.
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BUSINESS AUTO COVERAGE FORM DECLARATIONS PAGE

ITEM ONE Policy No. -

Named Insured: Policy Period
to

Form of Business:
( ) Corporation ( ) Individual ( ) Limited Liability Company
( ) Partnership ( ) Other

ITEM TWO SCHEDULE OF COVERAGES AND COVERED AUTOS

This Policy provides only those coverages where a charge is shown in the premium column below. Each o f these
coverages will apply only to those "autos" shown as covered "autos." "Autos" are shown as covered "autos" for
a particular coverage by the entry of one or more of the symbols from the Covered Autos Section of the
Business Auto Coverage Form next to the name of the coverage.

Covered
Coverages Autos Limit Premium

COVERED AUTOS LIABILITY $ $

SUPPLEMENTAL SPOUSAL
LIABILITY (New York Only) $ $

PERSONAL INJURY PROTECTION Separately Stated In Each
(or Equivalent No-faul t Coverage) P.I.P. Endorsement MINUS

$ Deductible. $

ADDED PERSONAL INJURY
PROTECTION (or Equivalent Separately Stated In Each
Added No-faul t Added P.I.P. Endorsement. $
Coverage)

OPTIONAL BASIC ECONOMIC
LOSS (New York Only) $ $

AGGREGATE NO-FAULT
BENEFITS AVAILABLE
(New York Only) $ $

MAXIMUM MONTHLY WORK
LOSS (New York Only) $ $

OTHER NECESSARY
EXPENSES (per day)
(New York Only) $ $

DEATH BENEFIT (New York
Only) $ $

Includes copyrighted material o f ISO Properties, Inc., with its permission.
CA 80 03 (Ed. 10/13) (Page o f )

MAC 530-60-11 08

EARLY LEARNING COALITION OF
PINELLAS COUNTY, INC. 01/24/2022 01/24/2023

X

8,9 1,000,000 1,101.00
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Covered
Coverages Autos Limit Premium

PROPERTY PROTECTION Separately Stated In The
INSURANCE P.P.I. Endorsement MINUS
(Michigan Only) $ Deductible For $

Each Accident.

AUTO MEDICAL PAYMENTS $ Each Insured $

MEDICAL EXPENSE AND Separately Stated In The
INCOME LOSS BENEFITS Medical Expense And Income $
(Virginia Only) Loss Benefits Endorsement.

UNINSURED MOTORISTS $ $

UNDERINSURED MOTORISTS
(When Not Included in
Uninsured Motorists $ $
Coverage)

SUPPLEMENTARY
UNINSURED/UNDERINSURED $ $
MOTORIST (SUM)

(New York Only)

The maximum amount payable
under SUM coverage shall be
the policy's SUM limits reduced
and thus of fse t by a motor
vehicle bodily injury liability
insurance policy or bond
payments received f rom or on
behalf o f any negligent party
involved in the accident as
specified in the SUM
endorsement.

Actual Cash Value Or Cost Of
Repair, Whichever Is Less,
MINUS $ Ded. For

PHYSICAL DAMAGE Each Covered Auto, But No $
COMPREHENSIVE COVERAGE Deductible Applies To Loss

Caused By Fire Or Lightning. (In
New York, a Deductible Will Apply To
Loss Caused By Fire Or
Lightning).
See ITEM FOUR For Hired Or
Borrowed Autos.

Includes copyrighted material o f ISO Properties, Inc., with its permission.
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Actual Cash Value Or Cost Of
Repair, Whichever Is Less,

PHYSICAL DAMAGE MINUS $ Ded. For
SPECIFIED CAUSES OF Each Covered Auto For Loss $
LOSS COVERAGE Caused By Mischief Or Vandalism.

See ITEM FOUR For Hired
Or Borrowed "Autos."

Actual Cash Value Or Cost Of
Repair, Whichever Is Less,

PHYSICAL DAMAGE MINUS $ Ded. For $
COLLISION COVERAGE Each Covered Auto. See ITEM

FOUR For Hired Or Borrowed
Autos.

$ For Each
PHYSICAL DAMAGE Disablement Of A Private $
TOWING AND LABOR Passenger Auto.

Premium For Endorsements $

* Estimated Total Premium $

FORMS AND ENDORSEMENTS applicable to this Coverage Part and made part o f the Policy at time o f issue are
listed on the attached Forms and Endorsements Schedule, CA 88 01 (Ed. 01/87).

* This Policy May Be Subject To Final Audit.

Includes copyrighted material o f ISO Properties, Inc., with its permission.
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ITEM FOUR SCHEDULE OF HIRED OR BORROWED COVERED AUTO COVERAGE AND PREMIUMS

COVERED AUTOS LIABILITY COVERAGE - COST OF HIRE RATING BASIS FOR AUTOS USED
IN YOUR MOTOR CARRIER OPERATIONS
(Other Than Mobile Or Farm Equipment)

Estimated Annual
Covered Autos Liability Coverage Cost Of Hire For All States Premium

Primary Coverage $ $

Excess Coverage $ $

Total Hired Auto Premium $

For "autos" used in your motor carrier operations, cost o f hire means:

1. The total dollar amount o f costs you incurred f o r the hire o f automobiles (includes "trailers" and semitrailers)
and, i f not included therein,

2. The total remunerations o f all operators and drivers' helpers, o f hired automobiles, whether hired with a
driver by lessor or an "employee" o f the lessee, or any other third party, and

3. The total dollar amount o f any other costs (e.g., repair, maintenance, fuel, etc.) directly associated with
operating the hired automobiles, whether such costs are absorbed by the "Insured," paid to the lessor or
owner, or paid to others.

COVERED AUTOS LIABILITY COVERAGE - COST OF HIRE RATING BASIS FOR AUTOS NOT USED IN
YOUR MOTOR CARRIER OPERATIONS

(Other Than Mobile Or Farm Equipment)

Covered Autos Liability Estimated Annual
Coverage State Cost Of Hire For Each State Premium

Primary Coverage $ $
$ $
$ $
$ $
$ $
$ $
$ $
$ $
$ $
$ $

Includes copyrighted material o f ISO Properties, Inc., with its permission.
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Covered Autos Liability Estimated Annual
Coverage State Cost Of Hire For Each State Premium (Cont'd)

Excess Coverage $ $
$ $
$ $
$ $
$ $
$ $
$ $
$ $
$ $
$ $

Total Hired Auto Premium $

For "autos" NOT used in your motor carrier operations, cost o f hire means the total amount you incur f o r the hire
o f "autos" you don't own (not including "autos" you bor row or rent f rom your partners or "employees" or their
family members). Cost o f hire does not include charges f o r services performed by motor carriers o f property or
passengers.

ITEM FOUR SCHEDULE OF HIRED OR BORROWED COVERED AUTO COVERAGE AND PREMIUMS (CONT'D)

PHYSICAL DAMAGE COVERAGES - COST OF HIRE RATING BASIS FOR ALL AUTOS
(Other Than Mobile Or Farm Equipment)

Estimated Annual Cost
Of Hire For Each

State (Excluding Autos
Coverage State Limit Of Insurance Hired With A Driver) Premium

Comprehensive Actual Cash Value Or Cost Of $ $
Repair, Whichever Is Less, Minus
$ Deductible For
Each Covered Auto, But No
Deductible Applies To Loss Caused
By Fire Or Lightning (In New York,
a Deductible Will Apply To Loss
Caused By Fire Or Lightning).

Specified Actual Cash Value Or Cost Of $ $
Causes o f Loss Repair, Whichever Is Less, Minus

$ Deductible
For Each Covered Auto For Loss
Caused By Mischief Or Vandalism

Collision Actual Cash Value Or Cost Of $ $
Repair, Whichever Is Less, Minus
$ Deductible
For Each Covered Auto

Total Hired Auto Premiums $

Includes copyrighted material o f ISO Properties, Inc., with its permission.
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For Physical Damage Coverages, cost o f hire means the total amount you incur f o r the hire o f "autos" you don't
own (not including "autos" you bor row or rent f rom your partners or "employees" or their family members). Cost
o f hire does not include charges f o r any "auto" that is leased, hired, rented or borrowed with a driver.

ITEM FOUR SCHEDULE OF HIRED OR BORROWED COVERED AUTO COVERAGE AND PREMIUMS (CONT'D)

COST OF HIRE RATING BASIS FOR MOBILE OR FARM EQUIPMENT - OTHER
THAN PHYSICAL DAMAGE COVERAGES

Estimated Annual
Cost Of Hire For Each State Premium

Coverage State Mobile Equipment Farm Equipment Mobile Equipment Farm Equipment

Covered Autos Liability - $ $ $ $
Primary Coverage

Covered Autos Liability - $ $ $ $
Excess Coverage

Personal Injury $ $ $ $
Protection

Medical Expense Benefits $ $ $ $
(Virginia Only)

Income Loss Benefits $ $ $ $
(Virginia Only)

Auto Medical $ $ $ $
Payments

Total Hired Auto Premiums $ $

Cost o f hire means the total amount you incur f o r the hire o f "autos" you don't own (not including "autos" you
bor row or rent f rom your partners or "employees" or their family members). Cost o f hire does not include
charges f o r services performed by motor carriers o f property or passengers.

Includes copyrighted material o f ISO Properties, Inc., with its permission.
CA 80 03 (Ed. 10/13) (Page o f )2 3
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ITEM FOUR SCHEDULE OF HIRED OR BORROWED COVERED AUTO COVERAGE AND PREMIUMS (CONT'D)

COST OF HIRE RATING BASIS FOR MOBILE OR FARM
EQUIPMENT - PHYSICAL DAMAGE COVERAGES

Estimated Annual Cost
Of Hire For Each State
(Excluding Autos Hired

With A Driver) Premium

Mobile Farm Mobile Farm
Coverage State Limit Of Insurance Equipment Equipment Equipment Equipment

Comprehensive Actual Cash Value Or $ $ $ $
Cost Of Repair,
Whichever Is Less, Minus
$ Ded. For
Each Covered Auto, But
No Deductible Applies To
Loss Caused By Fire
Or Lightning (In New York,
a Deductible Will Apply
To Loss Caused By
Fire Or Lightning).

Specified Causes Actual Cash Value Or $ $ $ $
o f Loss Cost Of Repair,

Whichever Is Less, Minus
$ Ded. For
Each Covered Auto For
Loss Caused By Mischief
Or Vandalism

Collision Actual Cash Value Or $ $ $ $
Cost Of Repair,
Whichever Is Less, Minus
$ Ded. For
Each Covered Auto

Total Hired Auto Premiums $ $

For Physical Damage Coverages, cost o f hire means the total amount you incur f o r the hire o f "autos" you don't
own (not including "autos" you bor row or rent f rom your partners or "employees" or their family members). Cost
o f hire does not include charges f o r any auto that is leased, hired, rented or borrowed with a driver.

Includes copyrighted material o f ISO Properties, Inc., with its permission.
CA 80 03 (Ed. 10/13) (Page o f )
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ITEM FOUR SCHEDULE OF HIRED OR BORROWED COVERED AUTO COVERAGE AND PREMIUMS (CONT'D)

RENTAL PERIOD RATING BASIS FOR MOBILE OR FARM EQUIPMENT

Estimated Number Of Days
Equipment Will Be Rented Premium

Coverage Town And State Where
The Mobile Farm Mobile Farm

Job Site Is Located Equipment Equipment Equipment Equipment

Covered Autos
Liability - Primary $ $
Coverage

Covered Autos
Liability - Excess $ $
Coverage

Personal Injury Protection $ $

Medical Expense Benefits $ $
(Virginia Only)

Income Loss Benefits $ $
(Virginia Only)

Auto Medical Payments $ $

Total Hired
Auto Premiums $ $

Includes copyrighted material o f ISO Properties, Inc., with its permission.
CA 80 03 (Ed. 10/13) (Page o f )
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ITEM FIVE SCHEDULE FOR NON-OWNERSHIP COVERED AUTOS LIABILITY

Named Insured's Business Rating Basis Number Premium

Other Than Garage Service Number o f Employees $
Operations and Other Than
Social Service Agencies Number o f Partners $

(Active And Inactive)

Number o f Employees Whose
Principal Duty Involves $

Garage Service Operations the Operation o f Autos

Number o f Partners $
(Active And Inactive)

Number o f Employees $
Social Service Agencies

Number o f Volunteers Who Regularly
Use Autos To Transport Clients $

Number o f Partners $
(Active and Inactive)

Total Non-ownership Covered Autos Liability Premiums $

Includes copyrighted material o f ISO Properties, Inc., with its permission.
CA 80 03 (Ed. 10/13) (Page o f )

10 899.00

899.00

3 3
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FORMS AND ENDORSEMENTS SCHEDULE
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BUSINESS AUTO COVERAGE FORM

Various provisions in this Policy restrict coverage. 
Read the entire policy carefully to determine rights, 
duties and what is and is not covered. 
Throughout this Policy, the words "you" and "your" 
refer to the Named Insured shown in the Declarations. 
The words "we", "us" and "our" refer to the company 
providing this insurance. 
Other words and phrases that appear in quotation 
marks have special meaning. Refer to Section V –
Definitions.

SECTION I – COVERED AUTOS
Item Two of the Declarations shows the "autos" that are 
covered "autos" for each of your coverages. The 
following numerical symbols describe the "autos" that 
may be covered "autos". The symbols entered next to 
a coverage on the Declarations designate the only 
"autos" that are covered "autos".
A. Description Of Covered Auto Designation 

Symbols

Symbol Description Of Covered Auto Designation Symbols
1 Any "Auto"
2 Owned "Autos" 

Only
Only those "autos" you own (and for Covered Autos Liability Coverage any "trailers" 
you don't own while attached to power units you own). This includes those "autos" 
you acquire ownership of after the Policy begins.

3 Owned Private 
Passenger 
"Autos" Only

Only the private passenger "autos" you own. This includes those private 
passenger "autos" you acquire ownership of after the Policy begins.

4 Owned 
"Autos" Other 
Than Private 
Passenger 
"Autos" Only

Only those "autos" you own that are not of the private passenger type (and for 
Covered Autos Liability Coverage any "trailers" you don't own while attached to 
power units you own). This includes those "autos" not of the private passenger type 
you acquire ownership of after the Policy begins.

5 Owned "Autos" 
Subject To 
No-fault

Only those "autos" you own that are required to have no-fault benefits in the state 
where they are licensed or principally garaged. This includes those "autos" you 
acquire ownership of after the Policy begins provided they are required to have no-
fault benefits in the state where they are licensed or principally garaged.

6 Owned "Autos" 
Subject To A 
Compulsory 
Uninsured 
Motorists Law

Only those "autos" you own that because of the law in the state where they are 
licensed or principally garaged are required to have and cannot reject Uninsured 
Motorists Coverage. This includes those "autos" you acquire ownership of after the 
Policy begins provided they are subject to the same state uninsured motorists 
requirement.

7 Specifically 
Described 
"Autos"

Only those "autos" described in Item Three of the Declarations for which a 
premium charge is shown (and for Covered Autos Liability Coverage any "trailers" 
you don't own while attached to any power unit described in Item Three).

8 Hired "Autos" 
Only

Only those "autos" you lease, hire, rent or borrow. This does not include any "auto" 
you lease, hire, rent or borrow from any of your "employees", partners (if you are a 
partnership), members (if you are a limited liability company) or members of their 
households.

9 Non-owned 
"Autos" Only

Only those "autos" you do not own, lease, hire, rent or borrow that are used in 
connection with your business. This includes "autos" owned by your "employees", 
partners (if you are a partnership), members (if you are a limited liability company) 
or members of their households but only while used in your business or your 
personal affairs.
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19 Mobile 
Equipment 
Subject To 
Compulsory Or 
Financial 
Responsibility 
Or Other Motor 
Vehicle 
Insurance Law 
Only

Only those "autos" that are land vehicles and that would qualify under the definition 
of "mobile equipment" under this Policy if they were not subject to a compulsory or 
financial responsibility law or other motor vehicle insurance law where they are 
licensed or principally garaged.

B. Owned Autos 
1. If Symbols 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6 or 19 are entered next 

to a coverage in Item Two of the Declarations, 
then you have coverage for "autos" that you 
acquire after the policy period begins of the type 
described for the remainder of the policy period.

2. But, if Symbol 7 is entered next to a coverage in
Item Two of the Declarations, an "auto" you 
acquire after the policy period begins will be a 
covered "auto" for that coverage only if:
a. We already cover all "autos" that you own for 

that coverage or it replaces an "auto" you 
previously owned that had that coverage; 
and

b. You tell us within 30 days after you acquire 
it that you want us to cover it for that 
coverage.

3. An “auto” that is leased or rented to you without 
a driver, under a written agreement for a 
continuous period of at least six months that 
you to provide primary insurance covering 
such “auto”, will be considered a covered 
“auto” you own.

C. Certain Trailers, Mobile Equipment And 
Temporary Substitute Autos 
If Covered Autos Liability Coverage is provided by 
this Coverage Form, the following types of vehicles 
are also covered "autos" for Covered Autos Liability 
Coverage:
1. "Trailers" with a registered Gross Vehicle 

Weight Rating of 3,000 pounds or less designed 
primarily for travel on public roads. 

2. "Mobile equipment" while being carried or towed 
by a covered "auto".

3. Any "auto" you do not own while used with the 
permission of its owner as a temporary 
substitute for a covered "auto" you own that is 
out of service because of its:
a. Breakdown;

b. Repair;
c. Servicing;
d. "Loss"; or
e. Destruction.

SECTION II – COVERED AUTOS LIABILITY 
COVERAGE
A. Coverage

We will pay all sums an "insured" legally must pay 
as damages because of "bodily injury" or "property 
damage" to which this insurance applies, caused by 
an "accident" and resulting from the ownership, 
maintenance or use of a covered "auto".
We will also pay all sums an "insured" legally must 
pay as a "covered pollution cost or expense" to 
which this insurance applies, caused by an 
"accident" and resulting from the ownership, 
maintenance or use of covered "autos". However, 
we will only pay for the "covered pollution cost or 
expense" if there is either "bodily injury" or "property 
damage" to which this insurance applies that is 
caused by the same "accident".
We have the right and duty to defend any "insured" 
against a "suit" asking for such damages or a 
"covered pollution cost or expense". However, we 
have no duty to defend any "insured" against a 
"suit" seeking damages for "bodily injury" or 
"property damage" or a "covered pollution cost or 
expense" to which this insurance does not apply. 
We may investigate and settle any claim or "suit" as 
we consider appropriate. Our duty to defend or 
settle ends when the Covered Autos Liability 
Coverage Limit of Insurance has been exhausted 
by payment of judgments or settlements.
1. Who Is An Insured

The following are "insureds":
a. You for any covered "auto".
b. Anyone else while using with your 

permission a covered "auto" you own, hire or 
borrow except:

(1) The owner or anyone else from whom 
you hire or borrow a covered "auto".

* S9 * 12/20/2021 * MAC-5306011-08-02 GREAT AMERICAN ASSURANCE CO
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This exception does not apply if the 
covered "auto" is a "trailer" connected to 
a covered "auto" you own.

(2) Your "employee" if the covered "auto" is 
owned by that "employee" or a member 
of his or her household. 

(3) Someone using a covered "auto" while 
he or she is working in a business of 
selling, servicing, repairing, parking or 
storing "autos" unless that business is 
yours. 

(4) Anyone other than your "employees", 
partners (if you are a partnership), 
members (if you are a limited liability 
company) or a lessee or borrower or any 
of their "employees", while moving 
property to or from a covered "auto".

(5) A partner (if you are a partnership) or a 
member (if you are a limited liability 
company) for a covered "auto" owned by 
him or her or a member of his or her 
household.

c. Anyone liable for the conduct of an "insured" 
described above but only to the extent of that 
liability.

2. Coverage Extensions
a. Supplementary Payments

We will pay for the "insured":
(1) All expenses we incur.
(2) Up to $2,000 for cost of bail bonds 

(including bonds for related traffic law 
violations) required because of an 
"accident" we cover. We do not have to 
furnish these bonds. 

(3) The cost of bonds to release attachments 
in any "suit" against the "insured" we 
defend, but only for bond amounts within 
our Limit of Insurance. 

(4) All reasonable expenses incurred by the 
"insured" at our request, including actual 
loss of earnings up to $250 a day 
because of time off from work. 

(5) All court costs taxed against the "insured" 
in any "suit" against the "insured" we 
defend. However, these payments do not 
include attorneys' fees or attorneys' 
expenses taxed against the "insured".

(6) All interest on the full amount of any 
judgment that accrues after entry of the 
judgment in any "suit" against the 
"insured" we defend, but our duty to pay 
interest ends when we have paid, offered 
to pay or deposited in court the part of the 
judgment that is within our Limit of 
Insurance. 

These payments will not reduce the Limit of 
Insurance.

b. Out-of-state Coverage Extensions
While a covered "auto" is away from the 
state where it is licensed, we will:

(1) Increase the Limit of Insurance for 
Covered Autos Liability Coverage to 
meet the limits specified by a compulsory 
or financial responsibility law of the 
jurisdiction where the covered "auto" is 
being used. This extension does not 
apply to the limit or limits specified by any 
law governing motor carriers of 
passengers or property.

(2) Provide the minimum amounts and types 
of other coverages, such as no-fault, 
required of out-of-state vehicles by the 
jurisdiction where the covered "auto" is 
being used.

We will not pay anyone more than once for 
the same elements of loss because of these 
extensions.

B. Exclusions
This insurance does not apply to any of the 
following: 
1. Expected Or Intended Injury

"Bodily injury" or "property damage" expected or 
intended from the standpoint of the "insured".

2. Contractual
Liability assumed under any contract or 
agreement.
But this exclusion does not apply to liability for 
damages:
a. Assumed in a contract or agreement that is 

an "insured contract", provided the "bodily 
injury" or "property damage" occurs 
subsequent to the execution of the contract 
or agreement; or 
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b. That the "insured" would have in the 
absence of the contract or agreement. 

3. Workers' Compensation
Any obligation for which the "insured" or the 
"insured's" insurer may be held liable under any 
workers' compensation, disability benefits or 
unemployment compensation law or any similar 
law.

4. Employee Indemnification And Employer's 
Liability 
"Bodily injury" to: 
a. An "employee" of the "insured" arising out of 

and in the course of: 
(1) Employment by the "insured"; or
(2) Performing the duties related to the 

conduct of the "insured's" business; or
b. The spouse, child, parent, brother or sister of 

that "employee" as a consequence of 
Paragraph a. above.

This exclusion applies:
(1) Whether the "insured" may be liable as 

an employer or in any other capacity; and 
(2) To any obligation to share damages with 

or repay someone else who must pay 
damages because of the injury. 

But this exclusion does not apply to "bodily 
injury" to domestic "employees" not entitled to 
workers' compensation benefits or to liability 
assumed by the "insured" under an "insured 
contract". For the purposes of the Coverage 
Form, a domestic "employee" is a person 
engaged in household or domestic work 
performed principally in connection with a 
residence premises.

5. Fellow Employee
"Bodily injury" to:
a. Any fellow "employee" of the "insured" 

arising out of and in the course of the fellow 
"employee's" employment or while 
performing duties related to the conduct of 
your business; or

b. The spouse, child, parent, brother or sister of 
that fellow "employee" as a consequence of 
Paragraph a. above.

6. Care, Custody Or Control
"Property damage" to or "covered pollution cost 
or expense" involving property owned or 
transported by the "insured" or in the "insured's" 
care, custody or control. But this exclusion does 
not apply to liability assumed under a sidetrack 
agreement. 

7. Handling Of Property
"Bodily injury" or "property damage" resulting 
from the handling of property: 
a. Before it is moved from the place where it is 

accepted by the "insured" for movement into 
or onto the covered "auto"; or 

b. After it is moved from the covered "auto" to 
the place where it is finally delivered by the 
"insured". 

8. Movement Of Property By Mechanical 
Device
"Bodily injury" or "property damage" resulting 
from the movement of property by a mechanical 
device (other than a hand truck) unless the 
device is attached to the covered "auto". 

9. Operations
"Bodily injury" or "property damage" arising out 
of the operation of:
a. Any equipment listed in Paragraphs 6.b. and 

6.c. of the definition of "mobile equipment"; 
or 

b. Machinery or equipment that is on, attached 
to or part of a land vehicle that would qualify 
under the definition of "mobile equipment" if 
it were not subject to a compulsory or 
financial responsibility law or other motor 
vehicle insurance law where it is licensed or 
principally garaged.

10. Completed Operations
"Bodily injury" or "property damage" arising out 
of your work after that work has been completed 
or abandoned. 
In this exclusion, your work means: 
a. Work or operations performed by you or on 

your behalf; and 
b. Materials, parts or equipment furnished in 

connection with such work or operations. 
Your work includes warranties or 
representations made at any time with respect 
to the fitness, quality, durability or performance 
of any of the items included in Paragraph a. or 
b. above. 
Your work will be deemed completed at the 
earliest of the following times: 

(1) When all of the work called for in your 
contract has been completed; 

(2) When all of the work to be done at the 
site has been completed if your contract 
calls for work at more than one site; or 
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(3) When that part of the work done at a job 
site has been put to its intended use by 
any person or organization other than 
another contractor or subcontractor 
working on the same project.

Work that may need service, maintenance, 
correction, repair or replacement, but which is 
otherwise complete, will be treated as 
completed. 

11. Pollution
"Bodily injury" or "property damage" arising out 
of the actual, alleged or threatened discharge, 
dispersal, seepage, migration, release or 
escape of "pollutants": 
a. That are, or that are contained in any 

property that is: 
(1) Being transported or towed by, handled 

or handled for movement into, onto or 
from the covered "auto"; 

(2) Otherwise in the course of transit by or 
on behalf of the "insured"; or

(3) Being stored, disposed of, treated or 
processed in or upon the covered "auto"; 

b. Before the "pollutants" or any property in 
which the "pollutants" are contained are 
moved from the place where they are 
accepted by the "insured" for movement into 
or onto the covered "auto"; or 

c. After the "pollutants" or any property in which 
the "pollutants" are contained are moved 
from the covered "auto" to the place where 
they are finally delivered, disposed of or 
abandoned by the "insured". 

Paragraph a. above does not apply to fuels, 
lubricants, fluids, exhaust gases or other similar 
"pollutants" that are needed for or result from the 
normal electrical, hydraulic or mechanical 
functioning of the covered "auto" or its parts if: 

(1) The "pollutants" escape, seep, migrate or 
are discharged, dispersed or released 
directly from an "auto" part designed by 
its manufacturer to hold, store, receive or 
dispose of such "pollutants"; and 

(2) The "bodily injury", "property damage" or 
"covered pollution cost or expense" does 
not arise out of the operation of any 
equipment listed in Paragraphs 6.b. and 
6.c. of the definition of "mobile 
equipment". 

Paragraphs b. and c. above of this exclusion do 
not apply to "accidents" that occur away from 
premises owned by or rented to an "insured" 
with respect to "pollutants" not in or upon a 
covered "auto" if: 

(a) The "pollutants" or any property in 
which the "pollutants" are contained 
are upset, overturned or damaged as 
a result of the maintenance or use of 
a covered "auto"; and 

(b) The discharge, dispersal, seepage, 
migration, release or escape of the 
"pollutants" is caused directly by such 
upset, overturn or damage. 

12. War
"Bodily injury" or "property damage" arising 
directly or indirectly out of:
a. War, including undeclared or civil war;
b. Warlike action by a military force, including 

action in hindering or defending against an 
actual or expected attack, by any 
government, sovereign or other authority 
using military personnel or other agents; or

c. Insurrection, rebellion, revolution, usurped 
power or action taken by governmental 
authority in hindering or defending against 
any of these.

13. Racing
Covered "autos" while used in any professional 
or organized racing or demolition contest or 
stunting activity, or while practicing for such 
contest or activity. This insurance also does not 
apply while that covered "auto" is being 
prepared for such a contest or activity. 

14. Unmanned Aircraft
“Bodily injury” or “property damage” arising out 
of the ownership, maintenance or use of 
“unmanned aircraft”.

C. Limit Of Insurance
Regardless of the number of covered "autos", 
"insureds", premiums paid, claims made or vehicles 
involved in the "accident", the most we will pay for 
the total of all damages and "covered pollution cost 
or expense" combined resulting from any one 
"accident" is the Limit Of Insurance for Covered 
Autos Liability Coverage shown in the Declarations. 
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All "bodily injury", "property damage" and "covered 
pollution cost or expense" resulting from continuous 
or repeated exposure to substantially the same 
conditions will be considered as resulting from one 
"accident". 
No one will be entitled to receive duplicate 
payments for the same elements of "loss" under 
this Coverage Form and any Medical Payments 
Coverage endorsement, Uninsured Motorists 
Coverage endorsement or Underinsured Motorists 
Coverage endorsement attached to this Coverage 
Part. 

SECTION III – PHYSICAL DAMAGE COVERAGE
A. Coverage

1. We will pay for "loss" to a covered "auto" or its 
equipment under: 
a. Comprehensive Coverage

From any cause except: 
(1) The covered "auto's" collision with 

another object; or 
(2) The covered "auto's" overturn. 

b. Specified Causes Of Loss Coverage
Caused by:

(1) Fire, lightning or explosion;
(2) Theft;
(3) Windstorm, hail or earthquake;
(4) Flood;
(5) Mischief or vandalism; or
(6) The sinking, burning, collision or 

derailment of any conveyance 
transporting the covered "auto".

c. Collision Coverage
Caused by:

(1) The covered "auto's" collision with 
another object; or 

(2) The covered "auto's" overturn. 
2. Towing And Labor

We will pay up to the limit shown in the 
Declarations for towing and labor costs incurred 
each time a covered "auto" that is a private 
passenger type, light truck or medium truck is 
disabled. However, the labor must be performed 
at the place of disablement. 

3. Glass Breakage – Hitting A Bird Or Animal –
Falling Objects Or Missiles
If you carry Comprehensive Coverage for the 
damaged covered "auto", we will pay for the 
following under Comprehensive Coverage: 
a. Glass breakage; 
b. "Loss" caused by hitting a bird or animal; and 
c. "Loss" caused by falling objects or missiles. 
However, you have the option of having glass 
breakage caused by a covered "auto's" collision 
or overturn considered a "loss" under Collision 
Coverage. 

4. Coverage Extensions
a. Transportation Expenses

We will pay up to $30 per day, to a maximum 
of $900, for temporary transportation 
expense incurred by you because of the total 
theft of a covered "auto" of the private 
passenger type. We will pay only for those 
covered "autos" for which you carry either 
Comprehensive or Specified Causes Of 
Loss Coverage. We will pay for temporary 
transportation expenses incurred during the 
period beginning 48 hours after the theft and 
ending, regardless of the Policy's expiration, 
when the covered "auto" is returned to use 
or we pay for its "loss". 

b. Loss Of Use Expenses
For Hired Auto Physical Damage, we will 
pay expenses for which an "insured" 
becomes legally responsible to pay for loss 
of use of a vehicle rented or hired without a 
driver under a written rental contract or 
agreement. We will pay for loss of use 
expenses if caused by:

(1) Other than collision only if the 
Declarations indicates that 
Comprehensive Coverage is provided for 
any covered "auto";

(2) Specified Causes of Loss only if the 
Declarations indicates that Specified 
Causes Of Loss Coverage is provided for 
any covered "auto"; or
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(3) Collision only if the Declarations 
indicates that Collision Coverage is 
provided for any covered "auto".

However, the most we will pay for any 
expenses for loss of use is $30 per day, to a 
maximum of $900.

B. Exclusions
1. We will not pay for "loss" caused by or resulting 

from any of the following. Such "loss" is 
excluded regardless of any other cause or event 
that contributes concurrently or in any sequence 
to the "loss".
a. Nuclear Hazard

(1) The explosion of any weapon employing 
atomic fission or fusion; or 

(2) Nuclear reaction or radiation, or 
radioactive contamination, however 
caused.

b. War Or Military Action
(1) War, including undeclared or civil war; 
(2) Warlike action by a military force, 

including action in hindering or defending 
against an actual or expected attack, by 
any government, sovereign or other 
authority using military personnel or other 
agents; or 

(3) Insurrection, rebellion, revolution, 
usurped power or action taken by 
governmental authority in hindering or 
defending against any of these. 

2. We will not pay for "loss" to any covered "auto" 
while used in any professional or organized 
racing or demolition contest or stunting activity, 
or while practicing for such contest or activity. 
We will also not pay for "loss" to any covered 
"auto" while that covered "auto" is being 
prepared for such a contest or activity. 

3. We will not pay for "loss" due and confined to: 
a. Wear and tear, freezing, mechanical or 

electrical breakdown. 
b. Blowouts, punctures or other road damage 

to tires. 
This exclusion does not apply to such "loss" 
resulting from the total theft of a covered "auto".

4. We will not pay for "loss" to any of the following: 
a. Tapes, records, discs or other similar audio, 

visual or data electronic devices designed 
for use with audio, visual or data electronic 
equipment. 

b. Any device designed or used to detect 
speed-measuring equipment, such as radar 
or laser detectors, and any jamming 
apparatus intended to elude or disrupt 
speed-measuring equipment.

c. Any electronic equipment, without regard to 
whether this equipment is permanently 
installed, that reproduces, receives or 
transmits audio, visual or data signals. 

d. Any accessories used with the electronic 
equipment described in Paragraph c. above.

5. Exclusions 4.c. and 4.d. do not apply to 
equipment designed to be operated solely by 
use of the power from the "auto's" electrical 
system that, at the time of "loss", is: 
a. Permanently installed in or upon the covered 

"auto";
b. Removable from a housing unit which is 

permanently installed in or upon the covered 
"auto"; 

c. An integral part of the same unit housing any 
electronic equipment described in 
Paragraphs a. and b. above; or

d. Necessary for the normal operation of the 
covered "auto" or the monitoring of the 
covered "auto's" operating system.

6. We will not pay for "loss" to a covered "auto" due 
to "diminution in value".

C. Limits Of Insurance
1. The most we will pay for:

a. "Loss" to any one covered "auto" is the 
lesser of: 

(1) The actual cash value of the damaged or 
stolen property as of the time of the 
"loss"; or 

(2) The cost of repairing or replacing the 
damaged or stolen property with other 
property of like kind and quality. 

b. All electronic equipment that reproduces, 
receives or transmits audio, visual or data 
signals in any one "loss" is $1,000, if, at the 
time of "loss", such electronic equipment is:

(1) Permanently installed in or upon the 
covered "auto" in a housing, opening or 
other location that is not normally used by 
the "auto" manufacturer for the 
installation of such equipment;
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(2) Removable from a permanently installed 
housing unit as described in Paragraph 
b.(1) above; or

(3) An integral part of such equipment as 
described in Paragraphs b.(1) and b.(2) 
above.

2. An adjustment for depreciation and physical 
condition will be made in determining actual 
cash value in the event of a total "loss".

3. If a repair or replacement results in better than 
like kind or quality, we will not pay for the 
amount of the betterment.

D. Deductible
For each covered "auto", our obligation to pay for, 
repair, return or replace damaged or stolen property 
will be reduced by the applicable deductible shown 
in the Declarations prior to the application of the 
Limit Of Insurance, provided that:

1. The Comprehensive or Specified Causes Of 
Loss Coverage deductible applies only to 
“loss” caused by:

a. Theft or mischief or vandalism; or 

b. All perils.

2. Regardless of the number of covered “autos” 
damaged or stolen, the maximum deductible 
applicable for all “loss” in any one event 
caused by:

a. Theft or mischief or vandalism; or 

b. All perils.

will be equal to five times the highest 
deductible applicable to any one covered 
“auto” on the Policy for Comprehensive or 
Specified Causes Of Loss Coverage. The 
application of the highest deductible will be 
made regardless of which covered “autos” 
were damaged or stolen in the “loss”.

SECTION IV – BUSINESS AUTO CONDITIONS
The following conditions apply in addition to the 
Common Policy Conditions: 
A. Loss Conditions 

1. Appraisal For Physical Damage Loss 
If you and we disagree on the amount of "loss", 
either may demand an appraisal of the "loss". In 
this event, each party will select a competent 
appraiser. The two appraisers will select a 
competent and impartial umpire. The appraisers 
will state separately the actual cash value and 
amount of "loss". If they fail to agree, they will 
submit their differences to the umpire. A 
decision agreed to by any two will be binding. 
Each party will: 
a. Pay its chosen appraiser; and 
b. Bear the other expenses of the appraisal and 

umpire equally. 
If we submit to an appraisal, we will still retain 
our right to deny the claim. 

2. Duties In The Event Of Accident, Claim, Suit 
Or Loss 
We have no duty to provide coverage under this 
Policy unless there has been full compliance 
with the following duties:
a. In the event of "accident", claim, "suit" or 

"loss", you must give us or our authorized 
representative prompt notice of the 
"accident" or "loss". Include: 

(1) How, when and where the "accident" or 
"loss" occurred; 

(2) The "insured's" name and address; and 
(3) To the extent possible, the names and 

addresses of any injured persons and 
witnesses. 

b. Additionally, you and any other involved 
"insured" must: 

(1) Assume no obligation, make no payment 
or incur no expense without our consent, 
except at the "insured's" own cost. 
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(2) Immediately send us copies of any 
request, demand, order, notice, 
summons or legal paper received 
concerning the claim or "suit". 

(3) Cooperate with us in the investigation or 
settlement of the claim or defense 
against the "suit".

(4) Authorize us to obtain medical records or 
other pertinent information.

(5) Submit to examination, at our expense, 
by physicians of our choice, as often as 
we reasonably require. 

c. If there is "loss" to a covered "auto" or its 
equipment, you must also do the following: 

(1) Promptly notify the police if the covered 
"auto" or any of its equipment is stolen. 

(2) Take all reasonable steps to protect the 
covered "auto" from further damage. Also 
keep a record of your expenses for 
consideration in the settlement of the 
claim. 

(3) Permit us to inspect the covered "auto" 
and records proving the "loss" before its 
repair or disposition. 

(4) Agree to examinations under oath at our 
request and give us a signed statement 
of your answers. 

3. Legal Action Against Us
No one may bring a legal action against us 
under this Coverage Form until: 
a. There has been full compliance with all the 

terms of this Coverage Form; and 
b. Under Covered Autos Liability Coverage, we 

agree in writing that the "insured" has an 
obligation to pay or until the amount of that 
obligation has finally been determined by 
judgment after trial. No one has the right 
under this Policy to bring us into an action to 
determine the "insured's" liability. 

4. Loss Payment – Physical Damage 
Coverages
At our option, we may: 
a. Pay for, repair or replace damaged or stolen 

property; 
b. Return the stolen property, at our expense. 

We will pay for any damage that results to 
the "auto" from the theft; or 

c. Take all or any part of the damaged or stolen 
property at an agreed or appraised value. 

If we pay for the "loss", our payment will include 
the applicable sales tax for the damaged or 
stolen property.

5. Transfer Of Rights Of Recovery Against 
Others To Us 
If any person or organization to or for whom we 
make payment under this Coverage Form has 
rights to recover damages from another, those 
rights are transferred to us. That person or 
organization must do everything necessary to 
secure our rights and must do nothing after 
"accident" or "loss" to impair them.

B. General Conditions
1. Bankruptcy

Bankruptcy or insolvency of the "insured" or the 
"insured's" estate will not relieve us of any 
obligations under this Coverage Form. 

2. Concealment, Misrepresentation Or Fraud
This Coverage Form is void in any case of fraud 
by you at any time as it relates to this Coverage 
Form. It is also void if you or any other "insured", 
at any time, intentionally conceals or 
misrepresents a material fact concerning: 
a. This Coverage Form; 
b. The covered "auto"; 
c. Your interest in the covered "auto"; or 
d. A claim under this Coverage Form. 

3. Liberalization
If we revise this Coverage Form to provide more 
coverage without additional premium charge, 
your policy will automatically provide the 
additional coverage as of the day the revision is 
effective in your state. 

4. No Benefit To Bailee – Physical Damage 
Coverages
We will not recognize any assignment or grant 
any coverage for the benefit of any person or 
organization holding, storing or transporting 
property for a fee regardless of any other 
provision of this Coverage Form. 
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5. Other Insurance
a. For any covered "auto" you own, this 

Coverage Form provides primary insurance. 
For any covered "auto" you don't own, the
insurance provided by this Coverage Form is 
excess over any other collectible insurance. 
However, while a covered "auto" which is a 
"trailer" is connected to another vehicle, the 
Covered Autos Liability Coverage this 
Coverage Form provides for the "trailer" is: 

(1) Excess while it is connected to a motor 
vehicle you do not own; or 

(2) Primary while it is connected to a covered 
"auto" you own. 

b. For Hired Auto Physical Damage Coverage, 
any covered "auto" you lease, hire, rent or 
borrow is deemed to be a covered "auto" you 
own. However, any "auto" that is leased, 
hired, rented or borrowed with a driver is not 
a covered "auto".

c. Regardless of the provisions of Paragraph a.
above, this Coverage Form's Covered Autos 
Liability Coverage is primary for any liability 
assumed under an "insured contract".

d. When this Coverage Form and any other 
Coverage Form or policy covers on the same 
basis, either excess or primary, we will pay 
only our share. Our share is the proportion 
that the Limit of Insurance of our Coverage 
Form bears to the total of the limits of all the 
Coverage Forms and policies covering on 
the same basis. 

6. Premium Audit
a. The estimated premium for this Coverage 

Form is based on the exposures you told us 
you would have when this Policy began. We 
will compute the final premium due when we 
determine your actual exposures. The 
estimated total premium will be credited 
against the final premium due and the first 
Named Insured will be billed for the balance, 
if any. The due date for the final premium or 
retrospective premium is the date shown as 
the due date on the bill. If the estimated total 
premium exceeds the final premium due, the 
first Named Insured will get a refund. 

b. If this Policy is issued for more than one 
year, the premium for this Coverage Form 
will be computed annually based on our 
rates or premiums in effect at the beginning 
of each year of the Policy. 

7. Policy Period, Coverage Territory
Under this Coverage Form, we cover 
"accidents" and "losses" occurring: 
a. During the policy period shown in the 

Declarations; and 
b. Within the coverage territory. 
The coverage territory is: 

(1) The United States of America; 
(2) The territories and possessions of the 

United States of America; 
(3) Puerto Rico; 
(4) Canada; and
(5) Anywhere else in the world if a covered 

"auto" of the private passenger type is 
leased, hired, rented or borrowed without 
a driver for a period of 30 days or less,

provided that the "insured's" responsibility to 
pay damages is determined in a "suit" on the 
merits, in the United States of America, the 
territories and possessions of the United States 
of America, Puerto Rico or Canada, or in a 
settlement we agree to.
We also cover "loss" to, or "accidents" involving, 
a covered "auto" while being transported 
between any of these places.

8. Two Or More Coverage Forms Or Policies 
Issued By Us
If this Coverage Form and any other Coverage 
Form or policy issued to you by us or any 
company affiliated with us applies to the same 
"accident", the aggregate maximum Limit of 
Insurance under all the Coverage Forms or 
policies shall not exceed the highest applicable 
Limit of Insurance under any one Coverage 
Form or policy. This condition does not apply to 
any Coverage Form or policy issued by us or an 
affiliated company specifically to apply as 
excess insurance over this Coverage Form.

SECTION V – DEFINITIONS
A. "Accident" includes continuous or repeated 

exposure to the same conditions resulting in "bodily 
injury" or "property damage". 

B. "Auto" means:
1. A land motor vehicle, "trailer" or semitrailer 

designed for travel on public roads; or 
2. Any other land vehicle that is subject to a 

compulsory or financial responsibility law or 
other motor vehicle insurance law where it is 
licensed or principally garaged.

However, "auto" does not include "mobile 
equipment".
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C. "Bodily injury" means bodily injury, sickness or 
disease sustained by a person, including death 
resulting from any of these. 

D. "Covered pollution cost or expense" means any 
cost or expense arising out of: 
1. Any request, demand, order or statutory or 

regulatory requirement that any "insured" or 
others test for, monitor, clean up, remove, 
contain, treat, detoxify or neutralize, or in any 
way respond to, or assess the effects of, 
"pollutants"; or 

2. Any claim or "suit" by or on behalf of a 
governmental authority for damages because of 
testing for, monitoring, cleaning up, removing, 
containing, treating, detoxifying or neutralizing, 
or in any way responding to, or assessing the 
effects of, "pollutants".

"Covered pollution cost or expense" does not 
include any cost or expense arising out of the 
actual, alleged or threatened discharge, dispersal, 
seepage, migration, release or escape of 
"pollutants": 

a. That are, or that are contained in any 
property that is: 

(1) Being transported or towed by, handled 
or handled for movement into, onto or 
from the covered "auto"; 

(2) Otherwise in the course of transit by or 
on behalf of the "insured"; or

(3) Being stored, disposed of, treated or 
processed in or upon the covered "auto";

b. Before the "pollutants" or any property in 
which the "pollutants" are contained are 
moved from the place where they are 
accepted by the "insured" for movement into 
or onto the covered "auto"; or 

c. After the "pollutants" or any property in which 
the "pollutants" are contained are moved 
from the covered "auto" to the place where 
they are finally delivered, disposed of or 
abandoned by the "insured". 

Paragraph a. above does not apply to fuels, 
lubricants, fluids, exhaust gases or other similar 
"pollutants" that are needed for or result from the 
normal electrical, hydraulic or mechanical 
functioning of the covered "auto" or its parts, if:

(1) The "pollutants" escape, seep, migrate or 
are discharged, dispersed or released 
directly from an "auto" part designed by 
its manufacturer to hold, store, receive or 
dispose of such "pollutants"; and

(2) The "bodily injury", "property damage" or 
"covered pollution cost or expense" does 
not arise out of the operation of any 
equipment listed in Paragraph 6.b. or 6.c.
of the definition of "mobile equipment".

Paragraphs b. and c. above do not apply to 
"accidents" that occur away from premises 
owned by or rented to an "insured" with respect 
to "pollutants" not in or upon a covered "auto" if: 

(a) The "pollutants" or any property in 
which the "pollutants" are contained 
are upset, overturned or damaged as 
a result of the maintenance or use of 
a covered "auto"; and 

(b) The discharge, dispersal, seepage, 
migration, release or escape of the 
"pollutants" is caused directly by such 
upset, overturn or damage. 

E. "Diminution in value" means the actual or perceived 
loss in market value or resale value which results 
from a direct and accidental "loss".

F. "Employee" includes a "leased worker". 
"Employee" does not include a "temporary worker".

G. "Insured" means any person or organization 
qualifying as an insured in the Who Is An Insured 
provision of the applicable coverage. Except with 
respect to the Limit of Insurance, the coverage 
afforded applies separately to each insured who is 
seeking coverage or against whom a claim or "suit" 
is brought. 

H. "Insured contract" means: 
1. A lease of premises; 
2. A sidetrack agreement; 
3. Any easement or license agreement, except in 

connection with construction or demolition 
operations on or within 50 feet of a railroad; 

4. An obligation, as required by ordinance, to 
indemnify a municipality, except in connection 
with work for a municipality; 

5. That part of any other contract or agreement 
pertaining to your business (including an 
indemnification of a municipality in connection 
with work performed for a municipality) under 
which you assume the tort liability of another to 
pay for "bodily injury" or "property damage" to a 
third party or organization. Tort liability means a 
liability that would be imposed by law in the 
absence of any contract or agreement; or
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6. That part of any contract or agreement entered 
into, as part of your business, pertaining to the 
rental or lease, by you or any of your 
"employees", of any "auto". However, such 
contract or agreement shall not be considered 
an "insured contract" to the extent that it 
obligates you or any of your "employees" to pay 
for "property damage" to any "auto" rented or 
leased by you or any of your "employees".

An "insured contract" does not include that part of 
any contract or agreement: 

a. That indemnifies a railroad for "bodily injury" 
or "property damage" arising out of 
construction or demolition operations, within 
50 feet of any railroad property and affecting 
any railroad bridge or trestle, tracks, 
roadbeds, tunnel, underpass or crossing; 

b. That pertains to the loan, lease or rental of 
an "auto" to you or any of your "employees", 
if the "auto" is loaned, leased or rented with 
a driver; or 

c. That holds a person or organization engaged 
in the business of transporting property by 
"auto" for hire harmless for your use of a 
covered "auto" over a route or territory that 
person or organization is authorized to serve 
by public authority. 

I. "Leased worker" means a person leased to you by 
a labor leasing firm under an agreement between 
you and the labor leasing firm to perform duties 
related to the conduct of your business. "Leased 
worker" does not include a "temporary worker".

J. "Loss" means direct and accidental loss or damage. 
K. "Mobile equipment" means any of the following 

types of land vehicles, including any attached 
machinery or equipment: 
1. Bulldozers, farm machinery, forklifts and other 

vehicles designed for use principally off public
roads; 

2. Vehicles maintained for use solely on or next to 
premises you own or rent; 

3. Vehicles that travel on crawler treads; 
4. Vehicles, whether self-propelled or not, 

maintained primarily to provide mobility to 
permanently mounted: 
a. Power cranes, shovels, loaders, diggers or 

drills; or 
b. Road construction or resurfacing equipment 

such as graders, scrapers or rollers; 

5. Vehicles not described in Paragraph 1., 2., 3. or 
4. above that are not self-propelled and are 
maintained primarily to provide mobility to 
permanently attached equipment of the 
following types: 
a. Air compressors, pumps and generators, 

including spraying, welding, building 
cleaning, geophysical exploration, lighting 
and well-servicing equipment; or 

b. Cherry pickers and similar devices used to 
raise or lower workers; or

6. Vehicles not described in Paragraph 1., 2., 3. or 
4. above maintained primarily for purposes 
other than the transportation of persons or 
cargo. However, self-propelled vehicles with the 
following types of permanently attached 
equipment are not "mobile equipment" but will 
be considered "autos": 
a. Equipment designed primarily for: 

(1) Snow removal; 
(2) Road maintenance, but not construction 

or resurfacing; or 
(3) Street cleaning; 

b. Cherry pickers and similar devices mounted 
on automobile or truck chassis and used to 
raise or lower workers; and 

c. Air compressors, pumps and generators, 
including spraying, welding, building 
cleaning, geophysical exploration, lighting or 
well-servicing equipment. 

However, "mobile equipment" does not include land 
vehicles that are subject to a compulsory or 
financial responsibility law or other motor vehicle 
insurance law where it is licensed or principally 
garaged. Land vehicles subject to a compulsory or 
financial responsibility law or other motor vehicle 
insurance law are considered "autos".

L. "Pollutants" means any solid, liquid, gaseous or 
thermal irritant or contaminant, including smoke, 
vapor, soot, fumes, acids, alkalis, chemicals and 
waste. Waste includes materials to be recycled, 
reconditioned or reclaimed. 

M. "Property damage" means damage to or loss of use 
of tangible property. 

N. "Suit" means a civil proceeding in which: 
1. Damages because of "bodily injury" or "property 

damage"; or 
2. A "covered pollution cost or expense"; 
to which this insurance applies, are alleged. 
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"Suit" includes: 
a. An arbitration proceeding in which such 

damages or "covered pollution costs or 
expenses" are claimed and to which the 
"insured" must submit or does submit with 
our consent; or 

b. Any other alternative dispute resolution 
proceeding in which such damages or 
"covered pollution costs or expenses" are 
claimed and to which the insured submits 
with our consent. 

O. "Temporary worker" means a person who is 
furnished to you to substitute for a permanent 
"employee" on leave or to meet seasonal or short-
term workload conditions.

P. "Trailer" includes semitrailer.

Q. “Unmanned aircraft” means an aircraft that is not:

1. Designed;

2. Manufactured; or

3. Modified after manufacture;

to be controlled directly by a person from within or 
on the aircraft.
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FLORIDA CHANGES

 
 
For a covered "auto" licensed or principally garaged in, or "auto dealer operations" conducted in, Florida, this 
endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:  

 
AUTO DEALERS COVERAGE FORM 
BUSINESS AUTO COVERAGE FORM 
MOTOR CARRIER COVERAGE FORM 

 
With respect to coverage provided by this endorsement, the provisions of the Coverage Form apply unless modified 
by the endorsement.  
 

A. Covered Autos Liability Coverage is changed as 
follows: 
Paragraph (5) of a. Supplementary Payments under 
Coverage Extensions in the Auto Dealers, Business 
Auto and Motor Carrier Coverage Forms is replaced 
by the following: 

We will pay for the "insured": 
 (5) All court costs taxed against the "insured" in 

any "suit" against the "insured" we defend. 
However, these payments do not include 
attorneys' fees or attorneys' expenses taxed 
against the "insured". 

B. Physical Damage Coverage is changed as follows:  
 1. No deductible applies under Specified Causes Of 

Loss or Comprehensive Coverage for "loss" to 
glass used in the windshield.  

 2. All other Physical Damage Coverage provisions 
will apply.  

C. Paragraph 1. of Loss Conditions, Appraisal For 
Physical Damage Loss, is replaced by the following:  

 1. Appraisal For Physical Damage Loss  
If you and we disagree on the amount of "loss", 
either may demand an appraisal of the "loss". 
Upon notice of a demand for appraisal, the 
opposing party may, prior to appraisal, demand 
mediation of the dispute in accordance with the 
Mediation provision contained in this endorsement. 
The mediation must be completed before a 
demand for appraisal can be made. In this event, 
each party will select a competent appraiser. The 
two appraisers will select a competent and 
impartial umpire. The appraisers will state 
separately the actual cash value and amount of 
"loss". If they fail to agree, they will submit their 
differences to the umpire. A decision agreed to by 
any two will be binding. Each party will:  

 a. Pay its chosen appraiser; and  

b.Bear the other expenses of the appraisal and umpire 
equally.  

If we submit to an appraisal, we will still retain our 
right to deny the claim.  

D. The General Conditions are amended as follows: 
 1. The following is added to the Other Insurance 

Condition in the Auto Dealers and Business Auto 
Coverage Forms, and Other Insurance – Primary 
And Excess Provisions Condition in the Motor 
Carrier Coverage Form: 

 a. When this Coverage Form and any other 
Coverage Form or policy providing liability 
coverage applies to an "auto" and: 

 (1) One provides coverage to a lessor of 
"autos" for rent or lease; and 

 (2) The other provides coverage to a person not 
described in Paragraph D.1.a.(1);  

then the Coverage Form or policy issued to the 
lessor described in Paragraph D.1.a.(1) is 
excess over any insurance available to a 
person described in D.1.a.(2) if the face of the 
lease or rental agreement contains, in at least 
10 point type, the following language: 

The valid and collectible liability insurance 
and personal injury protection insurance of 
any authorized rental or leasing driver is 
primary for the limits of liability and personal 
injury protection coverage required by FLA. 
STAT. SECTION 324.021(7) and FLA. 
STAT. SECTION 627.736. 
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 b. When this Coverage Form and any other 
Coverage Form or policy providing liability 
coverage applies to an "auto" being used as a 
temporary substitute for a service customer's 
auto that is being held by a motor vehicle 
dealer, or a motor vehicle dealer's leasing or 
rental affiliate for repair, service or adjustment; 
and: 

 (1) One provides coverage to the service 
customer; and 

 (2) The other provides coverage to a motor 
vehicle dealer, or a motor vehicle dealer's 
leasing or rental affiliate;  

then the Coverage Form or policy issued to the 
service customer described in Paragraph 
D.1.b.(1) is primary over any insurance 
available to an entity described in D.1.b.(2) if:  

 (1) The vehicle is provided without charge or at 
a reasonable daily charge; 

 (2) There is no negligence or criminal 
wrongdoing on the part of the vehicle 
dealer, or its leasing or rental affiliate; and  

 (3) The vehicle dealer or its leasing or rental 
affiliate executes a written rental or use 
agreement and obtains from the person 
receiving the temporary replacement a copy 
of the person's driver license and insurance 
information reflecting at least the minimum 
motor vehicle insurance coverage provided 
in the state. 

 2. The following condition is added to the Auto 
Dealers, Business Auto and Motor Carrier 
Coverage Forms:  
Mediation  

 1. In any claim filed by an "insured" with us for:  
 a. "Bodily injury" in an amount of $10,000 or 

less, arising out of the ownership, operation, 
use or maintenance of a covered "auto";  

 b. "Property damage" in any amount, arising 
out of the ownership, operation, 
maintenance or use of a covered "auto"; or  

 c. "Loss" to a covered "auto" or its equipment, 
in any amount;  

either party may make a written demand for 
mediation of the claim prior to the institution of 
litigation.  

 2. A written request for mediation must be filed 
with the Florida Department of Financial 
Services on an approved form, which may be 
obtained from the Florida Department of 
Financial Services.  

 3. The request must state:  
 a. Why mediation is being requested.  
 b. The issues in dispute, which are to be 

mediated.  
 4. The Florida Department of Financial Services 

will randomly select mediators. Each party may 
reject one mediator, either before or after the 
opposing side has rejected a mediator. The 
mediator will notify the parties of the date, time 
and place of the mediation conference. The 
mediation conference will be held within 45 
days of the request for mediation. The 
conference will be held by telephone if feasible. 
Participants in the mediation conference must 
have the authority to make a binding decision, 
and must mediate in good faith. Each party will 
bear the expenses of the mediation equally, 
unless the mediator determines that one party 
has not mediated in good faith.  

 5. Only one mediation may be requested for each 
claim unless all parties agree to further 
mediation. A party demanding mediation shall 
not be entitled to demand or request mediation 
after a suit is filed relating to the same facts 
already mediated.  

 6. The mediation shall be conducted as an 
informal process and formal rules of evidence 
and procedures need not be observed. 
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THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY.  PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY. 
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FLORIDA CHANGES – 
CANCELLATION AND NONRENEWAL 

 
This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:  

 
AUTO DEALERS COVERAGE FORM 
BUSINESS AUTO COVERAGE FORM 
MOTOR CARRIER COVERAGE FORM 

 
With respect to the coverage provided by this endorsement, the provisions of the Coverage Form apply unless 
modified by the endorsement.  
 

A. Paragraph A.2.b. of the Common Policy Conditions, 
Cancellation, is replaced by the following: 

 b. 45 days before the effective date of cancellation 
if we cancel for any other reason. 

B. Paragraphs A.4. and A.5. of the Common Policy 
Conditions, Cancellation, are replaced by the 
following: 

 4. Notice of cancellation will state the effective date of, 
and reason(s) for, the cancellation. The policy 
period will end on that date. 

 5. If this Policy is cancelled, we will send the first 
Named Insured any premium refund due. If we 
cancel, the refund will be pro rata. If the first Named 
Insured cancels, the refund may be less than pro 
rata. If the return premium is not refunded with the 
notice of cancellation or when this Policy is returned 
to us, we will mail the refund within 15 working days 
after the date cancellation takes effect, unless this is 
an audit policy. 

If this is an audit policy, then, subject to your full 
cooperation with us or our agent in securing the 
necessary data for audit, we will return any premium 
refund due within 90 days of the date cancellation 
takes effect. If our audit is not completed within this 
time limitation, then we shall accept your own audit, 
and any premium refund due shall be mailed within 
10 working days of receipt of your audit. 
The cancellation will be effective even if we have not 
made or offered a refund. 

C. The following is added to Paragraph A. of the Common 
Policy Conditions, Cancellation:  

 7. If this Policy provides Personal Injury Protection, 
Property Damage Liability Coverage or both and:  

 a. It is a new or renewal policy, it may not be 
cancelled by the first Named Insured during the 
first 60 days immediately following the effective 
date of the Policy or renewal, except for one of 
the following reasons:  

 (1) The covered "auto" is completely destroyed 
such that it is no longer operable;  
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 (2) Ownership of the covered "auto" is 
transferred; or  

 (3) The Named Insured has purchased another 
policy covering the motor vehicle insured 
under this Policy.  

 b. It is a new policy, we may not cancel it during the 
first 30 days immediately following the effective 
date of the Policy for nonpayment of premium 
unless a check used to pay us is dishonored for 
any reason or any other type of premium 
payment is subsequently determined to be 
rejected or invalid.  

D. The following condition is added:  
Nonrenewal  

 1. If we decide not to renew or continue this Policy, we 
will mail you notice at least 45 days before the end 
of the policy period. If we offer to renew or continue 
and you do not accept, this Policy will terminate at 
the end of the current policy period. Failure to pay 
the required renewal or continuation premium when 
due shall mean that you have not accepted our offer.  

 2. If we fail to mail proper notice of nonrenewal and you 
obtain other insurance, this Policy will end on the 
effective date of that insurance.  

 3. Notice of nonrenewal will state the reason(s) for the 
nonrenewal and the effective date of nonrenewal. 
The policy period will end on that date.  
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EMPLOYEE HIRED AUTOS 
 
 
This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following: 

 
AUTO DEALERS COVERAGE FORM 
BUSINESS AUTO COVERAGE FORM 
MOTOR CARRIER COVERAGE FORM 
 
 

With respect to coverage provided by this endorsement, the provisions of the Coverage Form apply unless modified 
by the endorsement. 
 
A. Changes In Covered Autos Liability Coverage 

The following is added to the Who Is An Insured 
provision: 
An "employee" of yours is an "insured" while 
operating an "auto" hired or rented under a contract 
or agreement in an "employee's" name, with your 
permission, while performing duties related to the 
conduct of your business. 

B. Changes In General Conditions 
Paragraph 5.b. of the Other Insurance Condition 
in the Business Auto and Auto Dealers Coverage 
Forms and Paragraph 5.f. of the Other Insurance 
– Primary And Excess Insurance Provisions 
Condition in the Motor Carrier Coverage Form are 
amended by the addition of the following: 

For Hired Auto Physical Damage Coverage, any 
covered "auto" hired or rented by your "employee" 
under a contract in an "employee's" name, with your 
permission, while performing duties related to the 
conduct of your business is deemed to be a 
covered “auto” you own. 
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THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

SILICA OR RELATED DUST EXCLUSION

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

BUSINESS AUTO COVERAGE FORM
AUTO DEALERS COVERAGE FORM
MOTOR CARRIER COVERAGE FORM

A. The fol lowing exclusion is added to the Ex-
clusions section o f the LIABILITY COVER-
AGE:

Exclusions

This insurance does not apply to any o f the
following:

Silica or Related Dust

a. Any "bodily injury" or "accident" which
would not have occurred, in whole or in
part, but f o r the actual, alleged, threat-
ened, or suspected inhalation or ingestion
of , exposure to, or contact with, "silica"
or dust that includes or contains "silica."

b. Any "property damage," "covered pollution
cost or expense," or "accident" which
would not have occurred, in whole or in
part, but f o r the actual, alleged, threat-
ened, or suspected contact with, exposure
to, existence of , or presence of , "silica"
or dust that includes or contains "silica."

c. Any "loss," cost or expense arising out o f
the abating, testing for , monitoring, clean-
ing up, removing, containing, treating, de -
toxifying, neutralizing, remediating or d is -
posing of , or in any way responding to or
assessing the ef fects of , "silica" or dust
that includes or contains "silica," by any
insured or by any other person or entity.

This exclusion applies regardless of:

(1) the circumstances o f or leading to
such actual, alleged, threatened, or
suspected inhalation, ingestion, expo -
sure, contact, existence, or presence;
and

(2) whether the "silica" or dust that i n -
cludes or contains "silica," is mixed or
combined with, or also includes or
contains, any other substance.

However, this exclusion does not apply to
"bodily injury," "property damage," or
"covered pollution cost or expense" caus-
ed by an "accident," i f that "accident" is
caused by the presence o f "silica" on the
surface o f a roadway.

B. The fol lowing exclusion is added to the Ex-
clusions section o f the Physical Damage
Coverage (and, i f this Policy includes
Garagekeepers Coverage, it is also added to
the Exclusions section o f the Garagekeepers
Coverage:

Exclusions

This insurance does not apply to any o f the
following:

Silica or Related Dust

a. Any "loss" to a covered "auto" or its
equipment which would not have o c -
curred, in whole or in part, but f o r the
actual, alleged, threatened, or suspected
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contact with, exposure to, existence of ,
or presence of , "silica" or dust that i n -
cludes or contains "silica."

b. Any "loss," cost or expense arising out o f
the abating, testing for , monitoring, clean-
ing up, removing, containing, treating, de -
toxifying, neutralizing, remediating or d is -
posing of , or in any way responding to or
assessing the ef fects of , "silica" or dust
that includes or contains "silica," by any
insured or by any other person or entity.

This exclusion applies regardless of:

(1) the circumstances o f or leading to
such actual, alleged, threatened, or
suspected contact, exposure, ex is -
tence, or presence; and

(2) whether the "silica" or dust that i n -
cludes or contains "silica," is mixed or
combined with, or also includes or
contains, any other substance.

However, this exclusion does not apply to
"loss" to a covered "auto" or its equipment
directly caused by its collision with an-
other object or its overturn, i f that col l i -
sion or overturn is directly caused by the
presence o f "silica" on the surface o f a
roadway.

C. I f this Policy includes Trailer Interchange
Coverage, the fol lowing exclusions is added
to the Exclusions section o f the Trailer In -
terchange Coverage:

Exclusions

This insurance does not apply to any o f the
following:

Silica or Related Dust

a. Any "loss" to any "trailer" or its equipment
which would not have occurred, in whole
or in part, but f o r the actual, alleged,
threatened, or suspected contact with,
exposure to, existence of , or presence
of , "silica" or dust that includes or contains
"silica."

b. Any "loss," cost or expense arising out o f
the abating, testing for , monitoring, clean-
ing up, removing, containing, treating, de -
toxifying, neutralizing, remediating or d is -
posing of , or in any way responding to or
assessing the ef fects of , "silica" or dust
that includes or contains "silica," by any
insured or by any other person or entity.

This exclusion applies regardless of:

(1) the circumstances o f or leading to
such actual, alleged, threatened, or
suspected contact, exposure, ex is -
tence, or presence; and

(2) whether the "silica" or dust that i n -
cludes or contains "silica," is mixed or
combined with, or also includes or
contains, any other substance.

However, this exclusion does not apply to
"loss" to a covered "trailer" or its equip-
ment directly caused by its collision with
another object or its overturn, i f that co l -
lision or overturn is directly caused by the
presence o f "silica" on the surface o f a
roadway.

D. The fol lowing definition is added to the Policy:

"Silica" means silicon dioxide (SiO2) in any
form, f rom any source.
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THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

COMMERCIAL AUTO EXCLUSION - ASBESTOS

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

AUTO DEALERS COVERAGE FORM
BUSINESS AUTO COVERAGE FORM
MOTOR CARRIER COVERAGE FORM

This insurance does not apply to "bodily injury" or "property damage" arising out o f or related in any way
to asbestos, asbestos-containing materials, or asbestos-containing products.

We shall not have the duty to defend any such claim or "suit".

All other policy terms and conditions remain unchanged.
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THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

EMPLOYEES AS INSUREDS

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

BUSINESS AUTO COVERAGE FORM
MOTOR CARRIER COVERAGE FORM

With respect to coverage provided by this endorsement, the provisions o f the Coverage Form apply
unless modified by the endorsement.

The fol lowing is added to the SECTION II - COVERED AUTOS LIABILITY COVERAGE, paragraph A.1.
Who Is an Insured provision:

Any "employee" o f yours is an "Insured" while using a covered "auto" you don't own, hire or bor row in
your business or your personal affairs.

Copyright, ISO Properties, Inc., 2011
CA 99 33 (Ed. 10/13)
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